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NEPTUNE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 

• 
February 6, 2019 

Honorable President and Members of the 
Neptune Township Board of Education 

60 Neptune Boulevard 
Neptune Township 
County of Monmouth, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members and Constituents: 

60 NEPTUNE BOULEVARD 
NEPTUNE, NJ 07753-4836 

TELEPHONE: 732.776.2000 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Neptune Township School District (the "District") 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy 
of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the 
management of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented 
in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly 
the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund information at June 30, 2018 and the respective changes. in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended. All disclosures necessary 
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, 
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to be read 
in conjunction with management's discussion and analysis), the District's organization chart, 
independent auditors and advisors, certificate of excellence in financial reporting, and a roster of 
officials. The financial section includes Management's discussion and analysis (presented immediately 
after the report of independent auditors), the basic financial statements, required supplementary 
information, supplementary and other information, as well as the auditors' report thereon. The 
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally pr~sented on a· 
multi-year basis and is unaudited. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in 
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulation (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, 
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments. 
Information related to this Single Audit, including the auditors' report on internal control and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, if applicable, are 
included in the single audit section of this report. 
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1. Reporting Entity and its Services 

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board ("GASB"). All funds and the government-wide financial statements of the District are 
included in this report. The Neptune Township Board of Education with all its schools constitute the District's 
reporting entity and does not have any component units and is not considered a component unit of any other 
governmental entity. The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels 
Pre-K through 12. These include regular, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped students. 
The District completed the 2017-2018 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of 3,986 students. The 
following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last five years. 

. 
Fiscal 
Year 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 

Average Daily Enrollment 
Student 

Enrollment 
3,986 
4,169 
4,265 
4,300 
4,434 

Percent 
Change 
(4.37)% 
(2.26) 
(0.81) 
(3.02) 
(0.14) 

Comprehensive academic services are offered to all students beginning in preschool at the age of three and 
continuing up to grade twelve. Preschool classes for approximately 429 (down 2 from the prior year] 
youngsters are housed in the Early Childhood Center as well as in each of the five neighborhood elementary 
schools located throughout the Township. Grades kindergarten through five enrolled 1,491 [down 99) on 
average during the school year while the Neptune Middle School averaged 738 [down 59] teenagers in grades 
six through eight and Neptune High School averaged 1,327 [down 23) students in grades ninethrough twelve. 

The Neptune Township School District operates during the traditional school year from September through 
June for 180 instructional days and supplements this with a 20-day summer program for regular and special 
education needs. 

2. Economic Condition and Outlook 

A careful review of the New Jersey economy by Rutgers' Edward J. Blaustein School of Planning and Public · 
Policy indicates that the state's economic recovery continues to trail its neighbors and that of the nation. One 
key indicator of the health ofan economy is the rate of unemployment-the percentage of unemployed workers 
in the total labor force (a labor force that includes only people who are actively looking for work). The rate 
sheds light on the performance of the economy along with certain business sectors therein. In January the NJ 
unemployment rate was 5.0% while the national rate sat at 4.4%. A steady decline - to a I 0-year low - reflected 
a June NJ rate of 4.3% and a national rate of 4.0%. On a local level, the Neptune Township area held steady 
with a 5% rate of unemployment. 

Wage rates in the Garden State have been relatively stagnant. While there are jobs available,.many appear to 
pay too little to attract workers. The recent gubernatorial election focused on raising the minimum wage to 
$15 per hour. Legislative action has not been forthcoming to make that happen. 
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Some other market-related indicators that reflect on the health of the economy are home construction (starts), 
home prices and mortgage rates. Data from the Commerce Department and the National Association of 
Realtors for the spring of 2018 show a flattening housing market, particularly in the new home buyer range of 
$250,000 or less. With inventories of homes dwindling, home prices will rise. A national index of 20-city 
home prices reported a 6.5% increase in home sales in May over the year prior. To compound matters, the 
cost of borrowing money i.e. 30-year fixed-rate mortgage rates inched up to 4.6%. This is up from 3.93% a 
year ago. 

Economic indicators are predicting a moderate level of job growth over the next three to five years. The jobs 
on the rise in the state will most likely be in the health care industry. 

3. Initiatives 

The Neptune Township Board of Education along with its administrative team maintain as its primary goal the 
continual academic improvement and success of the student body. This success is partially measured by state 
and local assessments. The District continues to employ a data-driven approach to interpreting the outcome 
of standardized testing and works to better align the curriculum with state and national standards to ensure that 
the instructional program best serves the students of the community. Results of standardized testing are shared 
with administration and targeted professional development is created to address the needs of the learners and 
allows for review and revision to programs implemented throughout the district. Data are shared with the 
public to ensure that all stakeholders are informed. 

On an annual basis, the Neptune Township Board of Education in conjunction with the Chief School 
Administrator convene a meeting to formulate District goals. The weight and importance of the preceding 
year's goals warrant a continued and renewed focus for the ensuing school year. 

Below are the key areas of concern for the Board and Administration: 
• Provide a physically and socially /emotionally safe, secure, and responsive environment for students and 

staff through continued attention to district safety planning and training as well as to school culture. 
• Provide support for students and increased teacher capacity in the area of reading instruction. 
• Implement phase three of one-to-one technology device roll-out, complete with training. 
• Employ efficient and effective fiscal management practices. 
• Strengthen communications practices to promote the positive work that happens in the district. 

Through various avenues - emails, newsletters, website, in-person training - these initiatives are becoming a 
reality. 

4. Service Efforts and Accomplishments 

Pr~fessional associations that have formed over the years, between the Neptune Township Public School 
District and various respected community organizations, continue to yield dividends for our students. 
Renewed agreements with the local Brookdale Community College offer college level academic credit well 
before the students formally graduate from high school. A "Dual Enrollment" option provides seniors in good 
academic standing with the opportunity to earn up to six college credits at no cost to the student. A recent, 
more comprehensive agreement called the Poseidon Early College High School will result in select high school 
students graduating with a recognized Associates Degree from Brookdale. The program is entering its fifth 
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year of operation and this past spring saw the inaugural class of 19 students receive their diplomas a month 
before receiving their High School diplomas. 

The District maintains a solid relationship with its neighbor, Hackensack Meridian Health Jersey Shore 
University Medical Center, to provide practical and actual medical experiences from shadowing doctors to 
observing live surgical operations. This partnership bolsters one of the various specialty Academies that are 
offered at Neptune High School. Some of the other Academies focus on environmental sciences, engineering, 
education, communications, law and criminal justice, performing arts, hospitality and tourism: Each academy 
seeks to foster connections with relevant organizations that can offer real-world experiences to the students 
and ultimately help in post-high school decisions. 

5. Maior Operational or Financial Concerns 

New Jersey public schools have become increasingly dependent upon local property taxes to support their 
mission as state aid for public school education has remained relatively static over the past several years. 
Couple this with the legislative restriction whereby local property tax increases are limited to a 2% levy 
increase each year, it would essentially limit the budgetary growth of the school to 2% or less. In Neptune 
Township where the tax levy represents about half of the requisite revenue, its budget growth would essentially 
be limited to I% each year, assuming there were no increases in state and federal revenue. Status quo would 
be acceptable if it weren't for the inflationary impact of operational expenses such as salaries, health insurance, 
pupil transportation and general repairs and maintenance of equipment and facilities. The first two mentioned 
expenses comprise nearly 70% of the school budget. Negotiated salaries are running above 2% and health 
insurance costs locally and nationally are above 12%. Therein lies a problem that cannot simply be solved by 
"budgetary austerity." On the heels of a change in governorship, the District witnessed an unexpected 
reduction in state aid of nearly $700 thousand after the 2017-18 school budget was finalized. As of this writing, 
another $700 thousand was cut from the 2018-19 school appropriations. The forecast for further reductions in 
the coming years is quite clear. 

The student data above, reflecting a declining enrollment, is a trend witnessed in many of the public schools 
throughout Monmouth County, NJ. This decline is attributable in part, to the relatively high ~ost of living in 
this area of the state. It is also, in part, the response from parents to the academic options available to them. 
State-approved "Choice" schools and the growing number of Charter schools are drawing students away from 
the traditional public school. With education funding already stretched thin, the growth of these tax-funded 
alternative programs is having a fiscal impact that is becoming more and more difficult to reconcile. 

6. Significant Budget Variances or Budget Modifications 

Overall revenues earned in excess of expenditures effectively served to restore the District's permitted capital 
and maintenance reserve accounts at year's end. The District witnessed an increase in unanticipated revenue 
of nearly $800 thousand from tuitions, transportation, facility rentals and E-rate reimbursements. This was in 
contrast to an unexpected, last minute reduction in state adjustment aid of $655 thousand. The 2018 fiscal year 
ended with expenditures of $94.16 mill ion, down $4.66 million from the prior year. Minor budget 
modifications occur throughout the year. Appropriation adjustments took place as contractual salaries were 
aligned with staffing transfers, midyear retirements and new hire salaries. Other budget variations resulted 
from changes in out-of-district tuition placements; increase in charter school tuition from th~ newly established 
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College Achieve Charter School; expansion of required professional consultant student services; and the 
realignment in appropriations due to the reduced aid. 

7. Internal Control 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure 
that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting 
data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates 
and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring that adequate 
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. 
This internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management. As part of the Districes 
single audit described earlier, tests are made to evaluate the adequacy of internal control, including that portion 
related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to evaluate the District's compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations. 

8. Budgetary Controls 

In addition to internal controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary 
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved 
by the voters of the municipality. The Board of Education of Neptune Township approves modifications to 
the budget. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted 'for the general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets 
are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount 
as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. An encumbrance accounting system is used 
to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line-item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either 
canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be 
reappropriated are reported as assignments of fund balance at June 30, 20 I 8 in the basic financial statements. 

9. Accounting Systems and Reports 

The District's accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, as 
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the 
District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in ''Notes to the '3asic Financial 
Statements," Note I . 

10. Other Information 

A. Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or 
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Wiss and Company, LLP was selected by the full 
Board of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was 
designed to meet the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. The 
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auditors' report on the basic financial statements and specific required supplementary information is included 
in the financial section of this report. The auditors• reports related specifically to the Single Audit are included 
in the Single Audit section of this report. 

B. Awards: The Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017. This was the twenty-third consecutive year that the District has received this prestigious award 
and is the only District in the State of New Jersey to receive twenty-three consecutive awards. In order to be 
awarded this certificate, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 
annual financial report. This report satisfied both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
and applicable legal requirements. 

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual 
financial report continues to meet the Programs' requirements and we are submitting it to ASBO to determine 
its eligibility for the fiscal year 2017-18 certificate. 

11. Acknowledgments 

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Neptune Township Board of Education for 
their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District and thereby 
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation 
of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial 
and accounting staff. Additionally, we wish to acknowledge the assistance given by Peter I. Bartlett, Assistant 
Business Administrator, Township of Neptune personnel including Michael J. Bascom, Chief Financial 
Officer/Tax Collector; Bernard Haney, Assessor and Richard Cuttrell, Township Clerk and the cover photo 
courtesy of Jerard Terrell. 

/ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~ 
Tami R. Crader, Ed.D 
Superintendent 

Peter J. Leonard 
Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
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WISS 
A Partner to Grow With 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Neptune Township School District 
Neptune, New Jersey 
County of Monmouth 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Neptune Township School District, County of Monmouth, New Jersey (the "District"), as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or enor. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards and requirements require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

1'1 r1en11 Plaza. Suite 1010 
Nt>w York, NY 10122 

'12 594.8155 

354 Eisenhower Parkway. Suite 1850 
L1v1ngston. NJ 07039 

973.994.9400 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Otlier Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
management's discussion and analysis, schedule of the District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability-PERS, schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of the 
State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the District and changes in the 
total OPEB liability and related ratios - (PERS and TP AF) and budgetary comparison information 
as identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary 
information such as the school based budget schedules combining and individual fund financial 
statements, and the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative 
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Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 
and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State 
Grants and State Aid, respectively, and the other information, such as the introductory and 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The school based budget schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements and the 
schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accountipg and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the school based budget 
schedules, combining and individual fund financial statements and the schedules of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 
6, 2019 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or 
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

February 6, 2019 
Livingston, New Jersey 

Scott A. Clelland 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 1049 

/JIM,A, "I" ~ 
WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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Required Supplementary Information - Part I 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 



Neptune Township School District 
Neptune, New Jersey 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended June 30, 2018 

The discussion and analysis of the Neptune Township School District's (the "District") financial 
performance provides an overall review of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 
30, 2018. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's financial performance 
as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements, notes and additional 
information in the transmittal letter to enhance their understanding of the District's financial 
performance. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary 
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 
34 - Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments. Certain comparative information between the current year and the prior year is 
presented in the MD&A. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2018 are as follows: 

• The total net position of the District decreased $4,208,654 during the current fiscal year, which 
was mostly attributable to a decrease in state aid revenues and tuition revenues. 

• General revenues of$98,560,911 in both governmental activities and business-type activities 
accounted for 86% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for 
services and operating grants and contributions accounted for $16,237,257 or 14% of total 
revenues of $114,798,168, of which $112,248,742 pertained to governmental activities and 
$2,549,426 pertained to business-type activities. 

• The District generated fund balance in excess of 2% in the current year in the general fund in 
the amount of$2,000,000. 

• The District maintains restricted reserves for capital and maintenance of $7,314,815 and 
$1,798,000, respectively in the general fund. 

• The District implemented GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75), Accounting and Financial 
Reporting/or Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the 2018 fiscal year 
resulting in the recording of additional revenue and expense in the amount of$10,247,099 
related to post-employment health benefits. 
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Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

This annual report consists of a series of basic financial statements and notes to those statements. 
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the Neptune Township School District 
as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to offer an increasingly 
detailed look at specific financial activities. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an 
introduction to the District's basic financial statements. The three components of the District's basic 
financial statements are: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 
3) notes to the basic financial statements. The CAFR also contains required and other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Reporting the School District as a Whole 

Government-wide Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of 
the entire School district and are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's 
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. 

These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources 
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private­
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into consideration all of the current year's revenues 
and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in net position. The change in 
net position is important because it informs the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the 
financial position of the School District has improved or worsened. The causes of the change may 
be the result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the 
District's property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility 
conditions, and required educational programs to cite just a few. In the Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two distinct types of activities: 

• Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here 
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil 
transportation and extracurricular activities. 

• Business-type activities - Programs reported here are used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of 
the District is that the costs of providing goods and services be financed through user charges. 
The District operates two enterprise funds. The Food Service and Aquatic Center enterprise 
funds are reported as business-type activities. The District uses an internal service fund to 
account for its self-insurance prescription drug program which is considered to be a major fund 
of the District. The internal service fund has been included within the governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. 
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The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25 and 26 of this report. 

Reporting the District's Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the District's funds. The District, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

The District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into 
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. 
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental 
fund statements provide a detailed, short-term view of the District's general government operations 
and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
educational programs. Differences that arise between governmental activities (as reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are reconciled in 
the financial statements. 

The District maintains two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the general fund and special revenue fund, both of 
which are considered to be major funds. 

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and special revenue fund. 
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary information for 
the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 29 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 

The District maintains a proprietary fund type in the form of two enterprise funds and one internal 
service fund. The enterprise funds are used to report business-type activities in the government­
wide financial statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of its food 
service program and aquatic center, which are also considered to be major funds of the District. The 
District utilizes the internal service fund to account for the activities of its self-insured prescription 
drug program. 

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 30 through 32 of this report. 
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Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the 
governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's own programs. The 
District utilizes a long established unemployment compensation trust fund to account for 
contributions from the District and employees to reimburse the State of New Jersey for the cost of 
approved unemployment compensation claims. The District uses separate and distinct agency funds 
to account for resources held for student activity groups as well as for payroll-related liabilities. The 
basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 and 34 of this report. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements 
can be found on pages 35 to 71 of this report. 

The School District as a Whole 

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Net 
position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The 
District's financial position is the product of varied financial transactions including the net results 
of activities, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets. 

The following table provides a summary of the District's net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Neptune Township School District 
Net Position 

June 30, 

2018 2017 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 
Assets: 
Current and other assets $ 14,105,003 $1,227,148 $ 15,332,151 $ 13,821,807 $1,495,353 $ 15,317,160 
C11pital assets, net 236,264,522 827.306 237,091,828 240,474,059 734,246 241,208,305 

Total assets 250,369,525 2,054,454 252,423,979 254,295,866 2,229,599 256,525,465 
Deferred outflow of resources: 
Pension deferrals 7,627.123 7,627,123 10,483,601 10,483,601 

Li11bilities: 
Current liabilities and other 2,044,808 184,740 2.229,548 2,778,361 380,299 3,158,660 
Long-term liabilities 

outstanding 25,908.464 25,908,464 32,669,887 32669,887 
Total liabilities 27,953,272 184.740 28,132,012 35,448,248 380,299 35;828,547 

Deferred inflow of resources: 
Pension deferrals 4,941.225 4:941,225 

Net position: 
Investment in capital assets 236,264,522 827,306 237,091,828 240,474,059 734,246 241,208,305 
Restricted 11,112,815 11,112,815 9,293,018 9,293,018 
Unrestricted ( deficit) (22,275,186} 1,042,408 {21,232,778} (20,435,858} 1,115,054 (19,320,804} 

Total net position $225,102.151 $ 1.869,714 $226,971.865 $229,331,219 $ 1,849.300 $231,180,519 
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The largest portion of the District's net position is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings 
and improvements, furniture and equipment and construction in progress). The District uses these 
capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Capital assets, net, and the net investment in capital assets decreased mainly due to current 
year depreciation exceeding current year capital asset additions. Current liabilities decreased from 
the prior year as the District had recorded a significant retroactive payroll accrual which was paid to 
employees in the current year. Long term liabilities and deferred outflows of resources decreased 
while the deferred inflow of resources increased due to the actuarial calculation related to net pension 
liability of the District. 

Total net position of the District decreased by $4,208,654 during the current fiscal year. This was 
primarily the result of the decrease in revenues exceeding the decrease in expenditures. The following 
table shows changes in net position for fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Operating grants and 
contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Federal and state aid not 
restricted to specific purposes 

Earnings on investments 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
Instruction 
Support services 
Charter schools 

Total expenses 

Change in net position before 
Special item 

Special item - prior year accrual 
cancelled 

Change in net position 

Net position - beginning 
Net position - ending 

Neptune Township School District 
Changes in Net Position 

Year ended June 30, 

2018 2017 

Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 

$ 5,857,896 $ 1,005,909 $ 6,863,805 $ 6,319,418$ 984,664 $ 7,304,082 

7,837,918 1,535,534 9,373,452 7,900,664 1,653,545 9,554,209 

37,491,489 37,491,489 36,756,362 36,756,362 

59,309,626 59,309,626 56,052,469 56,052,469 
52,240 7,983 60,223 21,156 3,337 24,493 

___ l.;.;.69_9 __ .5_7 __ 3 _________ 1 ...... 69 __ 9=.5"'"'"'73 -"""".""'.~7""."14 __ 00~9-___,,....,...,."""""" __ __,. ..... 7;;...;14=.00~9 
112,248,742 2,549,426 112,248,742 107,764,078 2,641,546 l l0,405,624 

69,463.599 69,463,599 68,016,717 68,016,717 
45,631,246 2,529,012 48,160,258 45,231,088 2,465,980 47,697,068 

___ 1. __ 3s_2 __ .9_6_s _______ 1._38_2 __ .9_65 ___ 5_20 ...... ,_s_o ________ s2_0 __ .1_80 
116,477.8!0 2,529,012 119,006,822 113,768,585 2,465,980 116,234,565 

(4,229,068) 20,414 (4,208,654) 

(4,229,068) 20,414 (4,208,654) 

(6,004,507) 

999,544 

(5,004,963) 

175,566 

175,566 

(5,828,941) 

999,544 

(4,829,397) 

229,331.219 1.849.300 231.180.519 ~-2;;;.;;3-"4=,3=36=. l;;.;;8~2-,,-----a.la.a.6"""73=, 7""3_4__,,...a2~3"""6, ... 00_9 •• 9~16 
$ 22s.io2.151 s 1.869, 114 s 226.971.865 _s __ 2_2_9._33_1_.2_19 ........ S __ 1._84_9_.3_00......;s ...... 23_1.,,;, 1_80.,5 ...... 19 

The decrease in charges for services was the result of decreased enrollment in the current year. 
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The increase in federal and state aid was the result of the implementation of GASB 75, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which required the 
District to record approximately $10.2 million in revenues, which were contributions made on-behalf 
of the District by the State for post-employment benefits. This increase was offset by a.decrease in 
the TPAF adjustment in regards to GASB 68 of approximately $5.4 million. 

The increase in miscellaneous revenue was the result of insurance proceeds received, as well as 
increased E-rate funds in the current year. 

Expenses increased due to approximately $10.2 million in expenses reported for contributions made 
on behalf of the District by the State for post-employment benefits due to the implementation of 
GASB 75. This was offset by a decrease in the TP AF adjustment in regards to GASB 68 of 
approximately $5.4 million. 

Governmental Activities 

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the legal requirements to annually seek 
voter approval for District operations. Property taxes made up 35. 7 percent of revenues for 
governmental activities in the Neptune Township School District for fiscal year 2018. Unrestricted 
federal and state aid accounted for another 49.5 percent of revenue. The balance of revenues 
generated from tuition and transportation revenue, investment income and other miscellaneous 
unrestricted sources comprised 14.8 percent of the total governmental revenues. 

The total cost of all programs and services was $109,062,375. Instruction comprised 59.3 percent of 
District expenses. Instructional expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of 
pupils and the interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities. It is 
important to note that additional instructional costs are included with support services, which is in 
conformity with New Jersey Budget Guidelines. 

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants 
offsetting those services. 

Business-Type Activities 

Revenues for the District's business-type activities were comprised of charges for services and federal 
and state reimbursements. Charges for services were $1,005,909 or 39.4 percent of revenue. This 
represents amounts paid by patrons for daily food service and use of the aquatic center. Federal and 
state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and reduced-priced lunch and breakfast, 
and donated commodities amounted to $1,535,534 or 60.2 percent of total revenue. The balance of 
revenues generated from investment income comprised 0.4 percent of the total business-type 
revenues. 
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Financial Analysis of the District's Funds 

Governmental Funds 

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The focus 
of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing 
requirements. 

General Fund The general fund is the main operating fund of the District. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, the total fund balance· was $13,095,350 including funds restricted for capital and 
maintenance reserves in the amount of $9,112,815 and excess surplus of $2,000,000. 

Special Revenue Fund. The special revenue fund is used to track the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes, other than debt service 
or capital projects. Revenue and expenditures for the current fiscal year were comparable to the prior 
fiscal year. IDEA continues to be the largest federal grant in the special revenue fund, with 
expenditures in the current fiscal yearof$I,249,739. The District's largest state grant is the Preschool 
Education Childhood Aid with expenditures in the current fiscal year of $5,251,016. 

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this 
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following 
schedule presents a summary of the revenues of the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation 
to prio.r year revenues. 

Percent Increase Percent of 
Revenues Amount of Total from 2017 Increase 

Local sources $ 44,499,362 47.0% $688,417 1.5% 
State sources 47,683,591 50.3 614,188 1.3 
Federal sources 2,564,665 2.7 6,142 0.2 
Total $ 94,747,618 100.0% $ 1,308,747 1.4% 

Local sources increased due to the increased local tax levy, as well as an increase in facility rentals 
during the year. 

The following schedule presents a summary of general fund and special revenue fund expenditures 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in 
relation to prior year expenditures. 
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(Decrease) Percent of 
Percent Increase (Decrease) 

Expenditures Amount of Total from 2017 Increase 

Current expenditures: 
$ Instruction $ 38,264,216 40.6% (221,442) (0.6) % 

Support services 51,390,866 54.6 967,265 1.9 
Capital outlay 3,125,079 3.3 (6,276,722) (66.7) 
Charter schools 123822965 1.5 8622185 165.6 
Total $94zl63zI26 100.0% $ 4z6682714 4.7 % 

Current expenditures reflect an increase attributable to salary and health benefit increases and the 
increases in the amount contributed by the State on behalf of the District for the TP AF pension. 

Capital outlay expenditures decreased as a direct result of the District's capital projects that were on 
going during the prior year were completed with ·minimal costs in the current year, specifically 
renovations at the Middle School. 

Charter school expenditures increased as more students enrolled in charter schools within the District 
boundaries. 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The District's budget is prepared in accordance with New Jersey law and is based on accounting for 
certain transactions on the modified accrual basis. The most significant budgeted fund is the General 
Fund. 

During the course of the year under audit, the District made several necessary revisions to its annual 
operating budget. Overall, the original budget differed from the final budget due to the reduction of 
state aid which was offset by increasing the appropriations of extraordinary aid. In addition there 
was an appropriation of fund balance into Capital Outlay to fund the construction projects that were 
on going. Revisions in the budget were made to prevent over-expenditures in specific line item 
accounts. Several of these significant revisions are mentioned below: 

There were significant budget transfers out of Regular Programs - Instruction due to decreased 
enrollment, as well as the need to send special education students to private schools and charter 
schools within the state based on current student needs. 

There were significant trans(ers to Undistributed Expenditures - Other Support Services - Students 
related Services - Purchased Professional - Education Services due to the additional need for students 
to receive various therapy services and the District contracted with a variety of vendors to satisfy this 
need. 

There were significant budget transfers out of Undistributed Expenditures - Custodial Services -
Electricity. As the District budgets conservatively, and as the utility expenses are volatile based on 
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current conditions and energy savings initiatives, funds were utilized in other areas of need as the 
District surpassed the winter months with a significant excess. 

There were significant budget transfers out of Unallocated Benefits Health Benefits due to the District 
moving out of a private insurance plan ( off of the state health benefit plan) and utilizing a self­
insurance plan for prescription benefits which allowed the District to save costs and utilize the funds 
elsewhere. 

There were significant budget transfers out of Unallocated Benefits - Other Employee Benefits due 
to the decrease in the waiver payments required to be made in the current year compared to the prior 
year, which was what the original budget was based on. 

There were significant budget transfers to Facilities Acquisition and Construction Service to fund 
projects including the renovations at the District Data Center, RAC Running Track, RAC Turf 
Baseball Field. 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year 2018, the District had $237,091,828 invested in land, construction in 
progress, land improvements, building and building improvements and machinery, equipment and 
vehicles, net of accumulated depreciation. The following presents a comparison of capital assets, net 
of depreciation, held at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Governmental and Business-Type 
Activities 

2018 2017 

Land $ 4,790,571 $ 4,790,571 
Construction in progress 547,357 9,923,766 
Land improvements 3,498,350 3,190,387 
Building and building 
improvements 224,667,979 219,228,530 

Machinery, equipment and vehicles _..,,...,....,,...,3,,...,5..,,...8 .... 7~,5,,...,7,....,,1 ___ .....,...-_4_,0.,...7,...5 __ ,0...,5_1 __ 
Total $237,091,828 $241,208,305 

For more detailed information, please refer to Note 4 to the basic financial statements. 

Long-Term Liabilities 

At June 30, 2018, the District had $26,033,664 of outstanding long-term liabilities relating to 
compensated absences and the net pension liability. The District does not have any other long-term 
debt as of June 30, 2018. 

For more detailed information, please refer to Note 5 to the basic financial statements. 
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For the Future 

The fiscal outlook in the near term is a concern for most school districts and municipalities, including 
this one. Top-down changes in funding will require flexibility and very careful planning at the local 
level. The Neptune Township School District will continue to employ prudent and responsible fiscal 
practices to maintain its sound financial condition. 

The School District is proud of its community support and is mindful of retaining a positive image 
within the local and statewide communities. With this reputation, the School District will look to 
partner with surrounding districts at various levels to achieve economies that may be needed for 
future stability and growth. 

Contacting the District's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the District• s finances and to show the District• s accountability for the resources 
entrusted to it. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Mr. 
Peter J. Leonard, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at Neptune Township Board of Education, 
60 Neptune Boulevard, Neptune, NJ 07753. Please visit our website at www.neptuneschools.org. 
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Basic Financial Statements 



Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the District's 
operations. These financial statements present the financial position and operating results 
of all governmental activities and business-type activities as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2018. 



A-1 

Neptune Township School District 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,866,515 $ 1,190,407 $ 4,056,922 
Accounts receivable 1,984,216 129,566 2,113,782 
Internal balances 141,457 (141,457) 
Inventories 48,632 48,632 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 9,112,815 9,112,815 
Capital assets, non-depreciable 5,337,928 5,337,928 
Capital assets, depreciable, net 230.926.594 827.306 231.753.900 

Total assets 250.369,525 2,054,454 252,423.979 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 
Pension deferrals 7,627,123 7,627.123 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 1,561,308 141,687 1,702,995 
Intergovernmental accounts payable: 

State 5,613 5,613 
Federal 155,778 155,778 

Unearned revenue 196,909 43,053 239,962 
Net pension liability 23,917,075 23,917,075 
Current portion of long-term obligations 125,200 125,200 
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 1,991,389 1,991,389 

Total liabilities 27,953,272 184,740 28,138,012 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 
Pension deferrals 4,941,225 4,941,225 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 236,264,522 827,306 237,091,828 
Restricted for: 

Excess Surplus - current year 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Capital Reserve 7,314,815 7,314,815 
Maintenance Reserve 1,798,000 1,798,900 

Unrestricted (deficit) {22,275,186) 1,042,408 {21,232, 778l 
Total net position $ 2251102, I 5 I $ 1,869.714 $ 226.971.865 

See accompanying notes lo basic financial statements. 25 



A-2 

Neptune Township School District 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Net (Expeme) Revenue and 
Proaram Revenues Chan;es In Net Position 

Oper11llng 
Chorges for Grantsond Govemmentol Business-type 

FunctioasJProems Ex11e11.1es Services Contributions Activities Activities Tollll 

Governmental activities 
lnsbuclion s 69,463,599 s 5,300,608 s 3,604,565 s (60,558,426) s (60,558,426) 
Suppon sen.ices: 

Allendance/social work 649,173 4,233,353 3,584,180 3,584,180 
Health services 1,494,220 (1,494,220) (1,494,220) 
Other support services 11,112,965 (I l,112,96S) (II, 112,965) 
'lmpro,'Cfflent of instruction 1,431,875 (1,431,875) {1,431,875) 
School libnuy 1,812,837 (1,812,837) (1,812,837) 

General administration 2,133,802 (2,133,802) (2,133,802} 
School admimstralion 6,590,063 (6,590,063) (6,590,063) 
Required maintenance 4,012,216 (4,012,216) (4,012,216) 
Operation of plant 9,541,554 (9,547,554) (9,547,554) 
Sel:urity 1,131,291 (1,131,291) (1,131,291) 
Student transportation 3,211,524 SS7,288 (2,654,236) (2,654,236} 
Business and other support 

services and benefits 2,503,726 (2,503,726) (2,503,726) 
Charter schools t,382,965 !1,382,965! {IJ82196S} 
Total go,'CfflDlCDtal activities 116,477,810 5,857,896 7,837.918 {102,781,996} {to;1st,996} 

Business-type activities 
Food Senic:e 2,247,277 700,209 1,535,534 s (11,534) (11,534) 
Aquatic Center 281 735 305 700 23 96S 23 96S 
Total business-type activities 21S291012 1,005,909 11S351534 12 431 12 431 
Total primaiy government s 119,006,822 $ 6 863 RQ~ I 9,~73 452 (102,781,996} 12,431 {102,769,565} 

General re\'fflues: 
Property taxes, levied for 

general purposes 37,491,489 37,491,489 
State Sources 59,156,143 59,156,143 
Federal Sources 153,483 153,483 
Interest Earnings 52,240 7,983 60,223 
Miscellaneous Income 1,699,573 1,699,573 

Total general revenues 98,552,928 7,983 98,560,911 

Change in net position (4,229,068) 20,414 {4,208,654) 

Net position-beginning 229,331.219 1,849,300 231,180,519 
Net position-ending s 225.102,151 s 1,869,714 s 226,971,865 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 26 
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Neptune Township School District 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2018 

Assets 
Cash and cash cquivalenls 
Accounts receivable: 

lntergovanmcntal-Slalc 
lntergo,=cntal-fcdcral 

Accounts receivable - other 
lnterfund receivable 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Total asselS 

Llabilidcs and Fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
lntcrgovcmmcntal accounts payable: 

State 
Federal 

ln1erfund payable 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Excess surplus current year 
Maintenance reserve 
Capital reserve 

Assigned to: 
Designated for subsequent year expenditures 

Unassigned: 
Special revenue fund (deficit) 

$ 

$ 

s 

Major Funds 

General 
Fund 

2,204,579 

710,522 
3,737 

1,206,990 
361,726 

9.112,SIS 
13.600,369 

SOS,019 

SOS,019 

2,000,000 
1,798,000 
7,314,815 

1,982,SlS 

Total fund balances (deficit) 13,09S.3SO 
Total liabilities and fund balances ==$=====1=3=.6=00='=36=9= 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ IS,648 
S,609 

S 21,2S7 

$ S,613 
ISS,778 
178,559 
196,909 
S36,8S9 

(SIS,602) 
(SIS,602) 

S 21.2S7 

Amounts reported for gowmnrentaf actMlles in the 
stlllcment of net position (A-1) arc different because: 

Capital 11SSets used in go\'fflllllental activities arc not financial 
resources :md therefore are not reported in the funds. The 

cost of the assets is $321,921,410 and the uccumulated 
depreciation is S8S,6S6,888. 

Deferred pension costs in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Accrued pension contributions for the Juno 30, 2018 plan year 
end arc no! paid with currcnl economic resources and are 

therefore not reported as a liability in the funds, but are included 
in accounts payable in the go\-emment-wide statemenl of nee 

s 

B-1 

Tollll 
Govemmenllll 

Funds 

2,204,579 

710,522 
19,38S 

l,212,S99 
361,726 

9,112,815 
S 13,621,626 

s SOS,019 

S,613 
ISS,778 
178,SS9 
196909 

1.041,878 

2,000,000 
1,798,000 
7,314,BIS 

1,982,SlS 

(SIS,602) 
12,579,748 

236,264,522 

2,685,898 

position. (996, I 89) 

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds. (23,917,075) 

Long-term liabilities arc not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not rcponed as liabilities in the funds. (2,116,589) 

Internal scnicc funds are used by the District 10 charge !he costs of the self•insuran" 
program 10 the individual f1md. The activities of this fund are included in the 

Statement of Activities. 60 I 836 

Nee position of governmental activities S 22S,102,ISI 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 27 



Neptune Township School District 
Governmental Funds 

B-2 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Revenues 
Local sources: 

Local tu IC\'Y 
Interest on investments 
Transpor1lllion fees from other LEAs 

within the Stale 
Tuition from other LEAs within the State 
MisceUancous 

Total TC\'CIIUCS-local soun:cs 

State sources 
Federal sources 
Total revenues 

E1pendltures 
Current: 

Instruction 
Undistributed: 

lnstruetiGII 
Attendance/social work 
Health services 
Guidance services 
Speech, OT, PT and related services 
Child study teams/ special education 
Improvement of instruction 

. School library 
General administration 
School administration 
Ccntml services 
Administrati,'C information technoloRY 
Required maintenance 
Custodial services 
Care and upkeep of grounds 
Security 
Student transportation 
Personnel services-

u1111llocatcd employee benefits 
On-behalfpayments-TPAF, FICA, lon111enn 

disability, medical and pension 
Charter schools • current 
Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

(Deficiency) Excess ofRe,'Cllues {Under) 0,-cr 
ExpcnditUl'CS 

Other financing sources {uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances {deficit), July I 
Fund balances (deficit), June 30 

Major Funds 
Special 

General Rnenue 
Fund Fund 

S 37,491,489 

s 

52,240 

557,288 
5,300,608 
I 097 737 

44,499,362 

42,256,855 
153 483 

86,909,700 

27,834,786 

7,631,810 
299,155 
702,770 

1,377,906 
1,433,231 
1,257,127 

732,070 
853,439 

1,304,437 
3,086,644 

779,804 
440,010 

2,930,383 
S,303,020 

735,247 
561,717 

2,780,152 

14,033,250 

9,494,767 
1,382,965 
3,125,079 

88.079.769 

{1,170,069) 

1,735,587 

I 73S S87 

565,518 

12,529.832 
J3 09$ 3$0 

S 5,426,736 
2,411.182 
7,837,918 

2,797,620 

3,285,737 

6,083.357 

1,754,561 

(I 1735,587) 
(1.735.587) 

18,974 

(534,576) 
S {SIS 602\ 

Tollll 
Governmental 

Funds 

S 37,491,489 
52,240 

557,288 
S,300,608 
1.097.737 

44,499,362 

47,683,591 
2,564,665 

94,747,618 

30,632,406 

7,631,810 
299,ISS 
702,770 

1,377,906 
1,433,231 
4,542,864 

732,070 
853,439 

1,304,437 
3,086,644 

779,804 
440,010 

2,930,383 
5,303,020 

735,247 
561,717 

2,780,152 

14,033,250 

9,494,767 
1,382,965 
3,125,079 

94,163,126 

584,492 

1,735,587 
( I ,735.587) 

584,492 

11.995.256 
S J2 SJ9 748 

The reconciliation of the fund balances of governmental funds to the net position of government 
activities in the statement of activities is presented in an accompanying schedule (B-3 ). 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 28 



Neptune Township School District 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (B-2) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities (A-2) are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 
This is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital 
asset additions in the period. 

Depreciation expense $ (7,362,774) 
Capital additions 3, I 53,237 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., 
compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts 
earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, 
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of 
financial resources used (paid). The amount represents the 
net change. 

Certain expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported 
as expenditures in governmental funds 

Pension expense 

The internal service fund is used by the District to charge the 
costs of the self-insurance program to the individual fund. The 
assets and liabilities of the internal service fund is included with 
governmental activities. 

Change in net position of governmental activities (A-2) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

B-3 

$ 584,492 

(4,209,537) 

(109,761) 

(1,096,098) 

601,836 

$ (4,229,068) 
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8-4 

Neptune Township School District 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Business-Type Activities Major 
Major Enterprise Funds Internal 

· Food Aquatic Service 
Assets Service Center Totals Fund 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 179,087 $ 1,011,320 $ 1,190,407 $ 661,936 
Accounts receivable: 

State 1,650 1,650 
Federal 96,158 96,158 
Other 31,758 31,758 

Interfund receivable 14,343 14,343 
Inventories 48,632 48,632 

Total current assets 357,285 1,025,663 1,382,948 661,936 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, depreciable, net 653,482 173,824 827,306 

Total capital assets 653,482 173,824 827,306 

Total assets 1,010,767 1,199,487 2,210,254 661,936 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 141,687 141,687 60,100 
lnterfund payable 10,800 145,000 155,800 
Unearned revenue 20,247 22,806 43,053 

Total current liabilities 172,734 167,806 340,540 60,100 

Total liabilities 172,734 167,806 340,540 60,100 

Net position 
Investment in capital assets 653,482 173,824 827,306 
Unrestricted 184,551 857,857 1,042,408 601,836 
Total net position $ 838,033 $ 1,031,681 $ 1,869,714 $ 601,836 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 30 



Neptune Township School District 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Position 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Business Type Activities 
Major Enterprise Funds 

Operating revenues: 
Local sources: 

Insurance proceeds 
Daily food sales-reimbursable programs 
Daily food sales-non-reimbursable programs 
Daily swim revenue 
Swim membership revenue 
Swim rental revenue 
Swim seminar revenue 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries 
Employee benefits and taxes 
Supplies and materials 
Cost of sales - reimburseable programs 
Cost of sales • non-reimburseable programs 
Depreciation 
Management services 
Purchased services 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating expenses 

Operating (loss) income 

Nonoperating revenues: 
State sources: 

School lunch program 
Federal sources: 

School breakfast program 
School lunch program 
Healthy Hunger-Free Kids Act (HHFKA) 
Food donation program 

Interest revenue 
Total nonoperating revenues 

Change in net position 

Total net position, beginning 
Total net position, ending 

Food Aquatic 
Service Center Totals 

$ 379,337 

s 

320,872 

700,209 

690,163 
186,982 
409,642 
523,162 
94,825 
78,098 

165,036 
63,734 
35.635 

2.247.277 

(1,547,068) 

22,969 

258,525 
1,029,402 

25,709 
198,929 

l.535.534 

(11,534) 

849:567 
838,033 

$ 36,251 
28,328 

136,240 
99,857 
51024 

305,700 

187,487 

44,859 

3,456 

45,933 

281.735 

23,965 

71983 
7:983 

31,948 

9991733 
S 1,031,681 

$ 379,337 
320,872 
36,251 
28,328 

136,240 
99,857 
5.024 

1,005,909 

877,650 
186,982 
454,501 
523,162 
94,825 
81,554 

165,036 
109,667 
351635 

21529.012 

(1,523,103) 

22,969 

258,525 
1,029,402 

25,709 
198,929 

7.983 
115431517 

20,414 

118491300 
S 1,869,714 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

B-S 

Major 
Internal 
Service 
Fund 

$ 1,868,977 

1,868,977 

1,267,141 

112671141 

601,836 

601.~36 

$ 601,836 
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Neptune Township School District 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Business Type Activities Major 
Major Enterl!rise Funds Internal 

Food Aquatic Service 
Service Center Totals Fund 

Cash flows from operatin2 activities 
Receipts from services provided to other funds s 1,868,977 
Receipts from customers s 707,944 s 324,134 $ 1,032,078 
Payments to employees (690,163) (187,487) (877,650) 
Payments for employee benefits (186,982) (186,982) (1,207,041) 
Payments to consultants (14,184) (14,184) 
Payments to management company (165,036) (165,036) 
Payments to suppliers ( I ,304184 7) (1051135) (1:4091982) 
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (l,653:268) 31,S 12 (t621:756) 661z936 

Cash flows from investin2 activity 
Interest received 7:983 7 983 
Net cash provided by investing activity 7 983 7,983 

Cash flows from noncapital financin2 activities 
Payments to other funds (142,242) (142,242) 
Cash received from state and federal sources 1,534,528 1,534,528 
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1.392,286 1=)92,286 

Cash flows from capital and related financin2 activity 
Purchase of capital assets (29,614) (29,614) 
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activity (29,614) (29,614) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (290,596) 39,495 (251,101) 661,936 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 469.683 971:825 1,441,508 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 179,087 $ 1,011,320 $ 1,190,407 $ 661,936 

Reconciliation of operatin2 (loss) income to net cash 
(used in) provided by operatin2 activities 

Operating (loss) income S(l,547,068) s 23,965 s (1,523,103) $ 601,836 
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash (used 

in) provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 78,098 3,456 81,554 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 7,557 7,557 
(Increase) in interfund receivable (14,343) (14,343) 
Decrease in inventory 13,462 13,462 
(Decrease) in accounts payable (205,495) (205,495) 60,100 
Increase in unearned revenue 178 18,434 18,612 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities ${1,653,268) s 31,512 s {1,621,756) s 661,936 

Noncash noncapital financing activities 
The District received $190,253 of food commodities from the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

See accompanying notes lo basic financial statements. 32 
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Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interfund receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Neptune Township School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Trust 

$ 1,115,009 
21,261 

1,136,270 

Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Interfund payable 
Flexible spending payable 
Accounts payable 
Due to student groups 

Total liabilities 

Net position 

4,380 

4,380 

Held in trust for unemployment benefits $ 1,131,890 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Agency 
Funds 

B-7 

681,544 

681,544 

456,051 
41,710 
13,010 
21,261 

149,512 
681,544 
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Neptune Township School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Additions 
Interest received 
Contributions-employees 

Total additions 

Deductions 
Unemployment claims 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Net position-beginning of year 
Net position-end of year 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

B-8 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Trust 

$ 

$ 

12,480 
64,693 
77,173 

58,925 
58,925 

18,248 

1,113,642 
I, 131,890 

34 



Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Neptune Township School District ("District") have been prepared 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied 
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which the 
primary government is financially accountable, and c) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause 
the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete .. 

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. A 
primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It 
is also financially accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that 
organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to 
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be 
financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it. 

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight 
responsibility and control over all activities related to the Neptune Township School District in 
Neptune Township, New Jersey. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal 
government sources and must comply with the requirements of these funding source entities. 

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity, as 
set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the District. For the most part, 
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and the proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education requires that all funds be 
reported as major to promote consistency amongst the school districts in the State of New Jersey. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when . a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in 
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 
sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to compensated 
absences and the net pension liability are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to 
be susceptible to accrual and have been so recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year. 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account 
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional 
equipment, which are classified in the capital outlay subfund. 

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one special revenue fund, which includes the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified 
purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 

The District reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Enterprise Funds: The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for the District's ongoing activities 
that are similar to those often found in the private sector where the determination ofnet income is 
necessary or useful to sound financial administration. · 

Food Service and Aquatic Center Enterprise Funds: The food service fund accounts for all 
revenues and expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is utilized to 
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises. The Aquatic Center fund accounts for all revenues and expenses in the operation of 
the aquatic center similar to a private business enterprise. The stated intent is that the costs (i.e., 
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the 
students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

The District reports the following internal service fund: 

Self-Insurance Fund: The self-insurance fund is used to record the activity. of the District's 
prescription benefit expenses. 

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund types: 

Fiduciary Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a 
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units 
and/or other funds. 

Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund: This fund is used to account for employee 
contributions that are utilized to pay unemployment compensation insurance claims as they 
anse. 

Agency Funds (Payroll and Student Activity Funds): Agency funds are used to account for the 
assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in 
nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all truces. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the District's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales of food and usage fees 
from individuals to offset the cost of operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the 
cost of sales, usage fees, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues 
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Revenues and other governmental fund financial resources should be recognized in the accounting 
period in which they become both measurable and available. When an asset is recorded in 
governmental fund financial statements, but the revenue is not available the government should 
report a deferred inflow of resources until such time the revenue becomes available. 

Ad Valorem (property) truces are susceptible to accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute a 
municipality is required to remit to its School Board the entire balance of truces, in the amount voted 
upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved true 
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and 
available. The Board is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule, and the 
uncollected amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable." 

The County Board of Trucation is responsible for the assessment of properties, and the Township 
Tax Collector is responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and truces are levied 
on January I; truces are due February I, May I, August 1 and November I. Unpaid truces are 
considered delinquent the following January I and are then subject to lien. 

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted each year for the general and special revenue funds. 
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary 
control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the 
lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts 
referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23. All budget amendments must be approved by School Board 
resolution. Budget amendments during the year ended June 30, 2018 were made and properly 
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approved by School Board Resolution and were made in accordance with statutory guidelines. The 
amendments made by the District were not deemed significant and were part of the normal course 
of operations. The over-expenditure in the general fund is due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted 
on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as District expenditures. These amounts are 
offset by related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary over-expenditures. 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control 
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the 
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, 
with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for 
budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund. Encumbrance accounting is also employed 
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in governmental fund types. Open encumbrances at 
year-end are re-appropriated in the subsequent year's budget. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at 
fiscal year-end. 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting 
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant 
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained 
to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports. 

E. Deposits and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Investments are stated at fair value. 
The District classifies certificates of deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three 
months but less then twelve months from the date of purchase as investments and are stated at cost. 
All other investments are stated at fair value. 

F. Interfund Receivables/Payables 

Interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services 
rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year. 

G. Inventories 

Inventories which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund, are 
recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase. Enterprise fund inventories are valued at 
cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method and the District uses 
the consumption method for expensing inventory. At June 30, 2018, the unused Food Donation 
Program commodities of $7,383 are reported as unearned revenue. 
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H. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, building and building improvements, 
and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in 
the government-wide financial statements. The District defines capital assets as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such 
assets are recorded at historical cost or through estimation procedures performed by an independent 
appraisal company. 

Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date of acquisition. 

The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend the assets lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight line method, except for land and 
construction in progress, which are not depreciated. The following estimated useful lives are used 
to compute depreciation: 

Years 

Land improvements 10-20 
Machinery and equipment 2-20 
Buildings 50 
Building improvements 20-50 
Vehicles 5-10 

I. Accrued Salaries and Wages 

Employees, who provide services to the Board over the ten-month academic year do not have the 
option to have their salaries disbursed during the entire twelve-month year. Therefore, there is no 
accrual as of June 30, 2018 for such. 
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J. Compensated Absences 

The District records a liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already 
rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer 
and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. The District uses the ''vesting 
method" for estimating its accrued sick and vacation leave liability. 

Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the Board's 
personnel policies and according to negotiated contracts. In the event of retirement, according to 
contract, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick leave. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the District recorded in the government-wide financial 
statements amounted to $2,116,589 at June 30, 2018. A liability for these amounts is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements. 

K. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet 
earned. Unearned revenue in the food service enterprise fund represents the unused portion of Food 
Donation Program commodities and positive balances on students' prepaid meal cards. Unearned 
revenue in the Aquatic Center Enterprise Fund relates to funds received for summer swim team, 
swim lessons and pool memberships. 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund type in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-tetm obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of 
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported 
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as either capital 
projects fund or debt service fund expenditures. 
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M. Fund Balances 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions 
("GASB 54") established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on 
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the 
resources reported in governmental funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental 
funds financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting and classified 
into the following five categories. 

1) Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets 
included in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, long-term 
receivables, and corpus of any permanent funds. 

2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 

3) Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by a 
formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The 
District's highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the 
"Board") and formal action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings. 
Once committed, amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revises or 
changes the specified use by taking the same action (resolution) taken to originally commit 
these funds. 

4) Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not 
meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by either the 
Board or Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the authority to assign 
amounts to be used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds. 

5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in the 
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other 
funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within 
the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund 
balance amount. In the other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific 
purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be 
necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted fund 
balance, the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned 
funds. 
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Of the $13,095,350 of fund balance in the General Fund at June 30, 2018, encumbrances of $1,469,739 
are partially offset by an unrestricted deficit of $123,752, and a portion of the $2,106,287 assigned to 
designated for subsequent year expenditures $2,000,000 is restricted for current year excess surplus, and 
$7,314,815 is restricted in a capital reserve and $1,798,000 is restricted in a maintenance reserve. 

N. Net Position 

Net Position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows 
of resources, and liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. Net position invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of any long-term debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is 
reported as restricted in the government-wide financial statements when there are limitations imposed 
on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

0. Management Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses and deferred inflows and outflows of 
resources during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

P. On-Behalf Payments 

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New Jersey 
for social security and post-retirement pension and medical contributions for certified teacher and 
other members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. Additionally, revenues and 
expenses related to on-behalf pension contributions in the government-wide financial statements have 
been increased by $9,494,767 to adjust for the full accrual basis expense incurred by the State of New 
Jersey during the most recent measurement period. The amounts are not required to be included in the 
District's annual budget. 

Q. Calculation of Excess Surplus 

The designation for restricted fund balance - excess surplus is a required calculation pursuant to 
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund 
fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum 
amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. The District generated excess 
surplus of $2,000,000 during the 2017-2018 school year that will be utilized in the 2019-2020 fiscal 
year budget. 
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R. GASH Pronouncements 

GASBs Pronouncements Implemented in the 2018 Fiscal Year 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of 
Statement 45 and requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements 
for the OPEB that they provide. Statement No. 75 requires governments in all types of OPEB plans 
to present more extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSQ about 
their OPEB liabilities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has adopted GASB No. 75 during the 
year ended June 30, 2018, which resulted in an increase in full accrual revenues and expenses and 
additional disclosures in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

In March, 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This Statement establishes 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for blending component units, goodwill, fair value 
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment 
benefits). The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2017. The District has adopted GASB Statement No. 85 during the year ended June 30, 2018, 
which did not have a significant impact on the financial statements. 

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Principles 

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. This Statement 
establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 
Management has not yet detennined the impact of the statement on the financial statements. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. This Statement establishes standards of 
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Management has not yet 
determined the impact of the statement on the financial statements. 

S. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has one item that 
qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions. In addition to liabilities, 
the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
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This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) 
until that time. The District does have one item that qualifies for reporting in this category at June 30, 
2018, including deferred amounts related to pensions. 

T. Subsequent Events 

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 
2018 and February 6, 2019, the date that the financial statements were issued for possible disclosure and 
recognition in the financial statements, and no items have come to the attention of the District that 
would require disclosure. 

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities are 
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. The 
$2,116,589 difference is attributable to the compensated absences liability. 

3. Deposits and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts on deposit and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools and Statement 
No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The District classifies certificates of deposit, which 
have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of 
purchase, as investments and are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. New 
Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions 
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that 
may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. 

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public 
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit 
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Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Government Units from 
a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. 

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental 
units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public 
depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include 
savings and loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks, the deposits 
of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value 
at last equal to 5% of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of 
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of 
all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the 
Governmental Units. 

Deposits 

New Jersey statutes require that school boards deposit public funds in public depositories located in 
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and 
Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made 
in public depositories. School boards are also permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New 
Jersey Cash Management Fund and the New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund. 

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds 
that exceed depository insurance limits as follows: 

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of 
collected public funds on deposit. 

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of 
the capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market 
value at least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%. 

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking 
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less 
than $25,000,000. 

Operating cash accounts are held in the District's name by several commercial banking institutions. 
At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $9,710,695, and the bank 
balance was $12,192,156. Of the bank balance, $250,000 of the District's cash deposits on June 30, 
2018 was secured by federal depository insurance. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit 
Protection Act (GUDPA) covered the bank balance of $11,304,685. $637,471 held in the District 
agency accounts are not covered by GUDP A. 
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Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures" ("GASB 40"), the 
District's operating cash accounts are profiled in order to detennine exposure, if any, to Custodial Credit 
Risk (risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty the District would not be able to recover the 
value of its deposits and investments). Deposits are considered to be exposed to Custodial Credit Risk if 
they are: uncollateralized (securities not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with securities held by 
the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the financial institution's trust 
department or agent but not in the government's name. 

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than depositing all 
of its funds in banks covered by GUDPA. At least five percent of the District's deposits were fully 
collateralized by funds held by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District. Due to the 
nature of GUDPA, further information is not available regarding the full amount that is collateralized. 

Investments 

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities: 

a. Bonds and other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United 
States. 

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National 
Mortgage Agency or of any United States for Cooperatives, which have a maturity date not 
greater than twelve months from the date of purchase. 

c. New Jersey Cash Management Fund (NJCMF) and New Jersey Asset. and Rebate 
Management Fund (NJARM). 

In order to maximize liquidity, the District utilizes the New Jersey Cash Management Fund ("NJCMF') 
as its sole investment. The NJCMF is administered by the State of New Jersey, Department of the 
Treasury. It invests pooled monies from various State and non-State agencies in primarily short-term 
investments. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 
These investments include: U.S. Treasuries, short-term Commercial Paper, U.S. Agency Bonds, 
Corporate Bonds, and Certificates of Deposit. Agencies that participate in the NJCMF typically earn 
returns that mirror short-term investments rates. Monies can be freely added or withdrawn from the 
NJCMF on a daily basis without penalty. At June 30, 2018, the District's balance was $5,255,595 and is 
classified as cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 due to its short-term nature and is considered a Level 1 
investment under GASB No. 72. The debt instruments in the NJCMF are rated by three national rating 
agencies. 

All investments in the Fund are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which prescribes 
specific standards designed to ensure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks related to 
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investments. In all the years of the Division oflnvestment's existence, the Division has never suffered a 
default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to the bankruptcy of a securities 
issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a reserve is being accwnulated as 
additional protection for the "Other-than-State" participants. In addition to the Council regulations, the 
Division sets further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of all eligible securities 
issuers on a regular basis. 

Custodial Credit Risk Pursuant to GASS 40, the NJCMF, which is a pooled investment, is exempt from 
· custodial credit risk exposure. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 

Credit Risk: The District does not have an investment policy regarding the management of credit risk. 
GASS 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt security investments except 
for obligations of the U.S. government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. government. The District 
did not have any funds invested in debt securities. 

Interest Rate Risk The District does not have a policy to limit interest rate risk. The average maturity of 
the District's sole investment, the NJCMF, is less than one year. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any 
one issuer. At June 30, 2018, all of the District's investments were invested in NJCMF. 

All of the District's investments are classified as cash equivalents at June 30, 2018. 
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The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in.capital assets 
for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, not being 

depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Land improvements 

Buildings and building improvements 

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Land improvements 

Buildings and building improvements 

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 4,790,571 

9,923,766 

14,714,337 

9.261.871 

284.172.244 

10.619,721 

304,053.836 

6,071.484 

64.943,714 

7.278,916 

78,294,114 

225,759,722 

$240,474,059 

Increases 

$ 2,790,361 

2,790,361 

I 16,590 

246,286 

362.876 

555,138 

6,092,466 

715,170 

7,362,774 

(6,898,898) 

$ (4,209,537) 

Transfers 

$ (12,166,770). 

(12, I 66,770) 

863,101 

11,270,325 

33,344 

12,166,770 

12,166,770 

$ 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 4,790,571 

547,357 

5,337,928 

10,124,972 

295,559,159 

I0,899,351 

316,583,482 

6,626,622 

71,036,180 

7,994,086 

85,656,888 

230,926,594 

$236,264,522 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows: 

Instruction 
Undistributed instruction 
Attendance and social work 
Health services 
Guidance Services 
Other support services -related services 
Other support - regular 
Improvement of instruction 
School library 
General administration 
School administration 
Central Services 
Administrative information technology 
Required maintenance of plant 
Operation of plant and upkeep of grounds 
Care and Upkeep of Grounds 
Security 
Student transportation 
Total allocated depreciation expense 

$3,256,897 
816,739 
31,806 
74,717 

146,496 
152,378 
482,987 

77,832 
90,736 

138,685 
328,165 

82,907 
46,781 

638,994 
563,273 

78,170 
59,721 

295,580 
$7,362,774 

The following is a summary of business-type changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 
2018: 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Equipment 

Total business-type activities 
capital assets, net 

5. Long-Term Liabilities 

Bonds 

$ 

$ 

Beginning 
Balance 

1,346,464 

(612,218) 

734,246 

Ending 
Increases Balance 

$ 174,614 $ 1,521,078 

(81,554) (693,772) 

$ 93,060 $ 827,306 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through 
referenda. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. 
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There are no serial bonds outstanding or bonds or notes authorized not issued at June JO, 2018. 

Changes in long-term liabilities 

The following presents the change in long-term liabilities. 

Beginning Ending Due within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Net Pension Liability $ 30,663,059 $6,745,984 $ 23,917,075 
Compensated absences 2,006,828 $ 274,956 1651195 21116,589 $ 1251200 
Governmental activity 

long-term liabilities $ 32,8961513 $ 9,0071412 $ 619111179 $ 261033,664 $ 125,200 

Compensated absences and the net pension liability are liquidated by the general fund. 

6. Pension Plans 

Description of Systems 

Substantially all of the District's employees participate in one of the following contributory defined 
benefit public employee retirement systems, which have been established by State statute: the 
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). 
These systems are sponsored and administered by the State of New Jersey. The Teachers' Pension 
and Annuity Fund Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, with a 
special funding situation, as, under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State 
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers. 
The Public Employees' Retirement System is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 

The Teachers' Pension and.Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions of 
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all 
fulltime public school employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and 
vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for health care coverage. 
Age eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, 
P.L. 2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. Members are classified into one of five 
tiers dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier 1, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at 
age 60, 60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1155th of the 
average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each year of 
membership during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 
and 65, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1160th of the average annual 
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compensation for the highest five fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership during 
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier's retirement 
age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate 
in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier. 

Public Employee's Retirement System 

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions of 
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all 
fulltime employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency, 
provided the employee is not a member of another State- administered retirement system. Age 
eligibility and benefit provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L. 
2008, Chapter I, P .L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P .L. 2011. Members are classified into one of five tiers 
dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier I, 2 and 3 members are eligible to retire at age 60, 
60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of the average 
annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership 
during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65, 
respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1160th of the average annual 
compensation for the highest five fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership during 
years of credited service. Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier's retirement 
age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate 
in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon their tier. 

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issued 
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary 
information for TPAF and PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of 
New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P .0. Box 295, Trenton, 
New Jersey 08625-0295. 

Funding Policy 

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by active 
members and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by 
State of New Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employee contribution 
rates for TPAF and PERS increased from 5.5% to 6.5% of employees' annual compensation. An 
additional increase is to be phased in annually through July 2018 that will bring the total pension 
contribution rate to 7.5% of employees' annual compensation. Employers are required to contribute at 
an actuarially determined rate in both the TP AF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution 
includes funding for noncontributory death benefits and post-retirement medical premiums. Under 
current statute the District is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF. 
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the State of New Jersey contributed $7,221, 11 l to the TP AF 
for on-behalf medical benefits, long-term disability insurance, and pension contributions on behalf 
of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey reimbursed 
the District $2,273,656 during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer's share of social 
security contributions for TP AF members as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have 
been included in the Government-wide and fund financial statements. 

The District's actuarially determined contributions to PERS for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 
and 2016 were $969,379, $919,759, and $847,193, respectively, equal to the required contributions 
for each year. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For the purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Def erred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Public Employee 's Retirement System (PERS) 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $23,917,075 for its proportionate share of net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation July 1, 
2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The District's proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially 
determined. At June 30, 2017, the District's proportion was 0.1027436297 percent, ·which was a 
decrease of 0.000787863 7 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized full accrual pension expense of 
$2,060,140 in the government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2018, the District reported 
deferred outflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between district 

contributions and proportionate share contributions · 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of Resources 
$ 563,165 

4,818,466 

162,859 

1,086,444 

996,189 
$ 7,627,123 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Of Resources 

$ 4,800,801 

140,424 

$ 4,941,225 

$996,189 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school 
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2019 $ 890,367 
2020 1,158,950 
2021 765,860 
2022 (606,364) 
2023 ~519,104} 

$ 1,689,709 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation 
used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation rate 
Salary increase through 2026 

Thereafter 

Investment rate of return 

2.25% 
1.65 - 4.15% 
based on age 
2.65 - 5.15% 
based on age 

7.00% 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July I, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future 
experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience 
deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. 
The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements. 

Mortality Rates 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Preretirement Mortality Table for male 
and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males 
and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for 
females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 
2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. 
Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female 
Mortality Tables (set back 1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of 
former members and a one-year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In 
addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of formers members provide for future 
improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the 
plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value 
disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males 
and set forward 1 year for females). 
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Long-Term Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% 
at June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the 
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the 
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Return 
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51% 
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00% 
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87% 
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78% 
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82% 
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10% 
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60% 
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63% 
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61% 
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83% 
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23% 
U.S. Equity 30.00% 8.19% 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00% 
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64% 
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08% 

100.00% 

Discount rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017 and 
3.98% as of June 30, 2016. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 
30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt 
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/ Aa or higher. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
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be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be 
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed 
40% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers contributed 100% of their 
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members 
through 2040. Therefore, the long-term expected rated of return on plan investments was applied to 
projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected 
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 
2017 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the District's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is I-percentage-point lower (4.00 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (6.00 percent) than the 
current rate: 

District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability $ 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

At I °lc, 
Decrease 
(4.00%) 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

(5.00%) 

29,670,755 $ 23,917,075 $ 

Atl% 
Increase 
(6.00%) 

19,123,547 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued financial report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows ofresources 
Net pension liability 

District's Proportion 

$ 6,424,455,842 
$ 5,700,625,981 
$ 23,278,401,588 

0.1027436297% 
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Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 is 
$1,694,305,613. 

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension 
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2017, 2016, 2015 
and 2014 is 5.48, 5.57, 5.72, and 6.44 years, respectively. 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) -Special Funding Situation 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by 
the State in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are 
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASS Statement No. 68 and the State 
is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not 
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net 
pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local 
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local participating 
employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate 
share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. The State's 
proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District as of June 30, 
2017 was $200,188,670. The District's proportionate share was $0. 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016, which 
was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
associated with the District was based on a projection of the State's long-term contributions to the 
pension plan associated with the District relative to the projected contributions by the State 
associated with all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the 
State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District was 
0.2969118423 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0019517952 from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue in 
the government-wide financial statements of $13,868,057 for contributions incurred by the State. 

Actuarial assumptions 

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in 
the measurement: 
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Mortality Rates 

Inflation rate 
Salary increases: 

2012-2021 

Thereafter 

Investment rate of return 

2.25% 
Varies based 
on experience 

Varies based 
on experience 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TP AF 
members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of 
Social Security data from 1953 to 2013. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July l, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July l, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% 
at June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the 
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the 
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in TPAF' s target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 
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Target Long-Tenn Expected 
Asset Class 

Absolute return/risk mitigation 
Cash equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Investment grade credit 
Public high yield 
Global diversified credit 
Credit oriented hedge funds 
Debt related private equity 
Debt related real estate 
Private real asset 
Equity related real estate 
U.S. Equity 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 
Emerging markets equity 
Buyouts/venture capital 

Discount Rate 

Allocation Real Rate of Return 
5.00% 5.51% 
5.50% 1.00% 
3.00% 1.87% 
10.00% 3.78% 
2.50% 6.82% 
5.00% 7.10% 
1.00% 6.60% 
2.00% 10.63% 
1.00% 6.61% 
2.50% 11.83% 
6.25% 9.23% 

30.00% 8.19% 
11.50% 9.00% 
6.50% 11.64% 
8.25% 13.08% 

100.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25% as of June 30, 2017 and 
3.22% as of June 30, 2016. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term rate of 
return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 
2017 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt 
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be 
made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 40% of the 
actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members 
through 2036. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
projected benefit payments through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected 
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 
to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with 
the District as of June 30, 2017 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what 
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the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (3.25%) or I-percentage-point 
higher (5.25%) than the current rate: 

Decrease 
(3.25%) 

Discount Rate 
(4.25%) 

Increase 
(5.25%) 

State's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 
associated with the District $ 237,830,419 $ 200,188,670 $ 169,179,233 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued TP AF financial report. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 
Net pension liability 

State's proportionate share associated with 
the District 

$ 14,251,854,934 
$ 11,807,238,433 
$ 67,423,605,859 

0.2969118423% 

Collective pension expense-Local Group for the plan for the measurement period ende<:l June 30, 
2017 is $4,682,493,081. 

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension 
through the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2017, 2016, 2015 
and 2014 is 8.3, 8.3, 8.3, and 8.5 years, respectively. 

7. Post-Retirement Benefits 

Plan description and benefits provided 

The School District contributes to the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program (the "SHBP"), a 
multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the State of 
New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits. SHBP provide medical, prescription drug, mental 
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health/substance abuse and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered 
dependents. The State Health Benefits Program Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated, 
Title 52, Article 17 .25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are 
found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey 
Division of Pension and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for SHBP. That report may be obtained by 
writing to Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295. 

The State's contributions to the SHBP Fund for TPAF retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the 
District for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $2,831,664, $2,782,708 and $2,849,185 
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year. 

P.L. 1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the 
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical 
benefits for those state employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a 
disability retirement. P .L. 2007, c. l 03 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement 
medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans 
for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired state employees and 
retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the 
State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed 
from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. As the employer 
contributions for local government education employers are legally required to be funded by the 
State, this constitutes a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) 
and the State is treated as a non-employer contributing entity. 

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable P.L. 1992, c.126, which provides employer 
paid health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (APB) who retired 
from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service. 

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes 
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the 
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. 

The State provides OPEB benefits through a defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered 
through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75. No assets are accumulated in a 
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75. 

Total OPEB Liability 

The net OPEB liability from New Jersey's plan is $53,639,841,858. 
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Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability 

Below represents the changes in the District's total OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Total OPEB Liability 
Beginning Total OPEB Liability, Jme 30, 2016 $ 169,479,950 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest 
Changes in asswnptions or other inputs 
Member contributions 
Benefit payments 

Net changes 

Ending Total OPEB Liability, Jme 30, 2017 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Local Education 

Active Plan Members 

$ 

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits 
Total Plan Members 

7,424,322 
4,992,097 

(21,025,959) 
134,210 

(3,644, 788) 
(12,120,118) 

157,359,832 

June 30, 2017 

223,747 
142,331 

366,078 

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make 
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District's 
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS 
No. 75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective net 
OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position. The State's proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability associated with the District as of June 30, 2017 was $157,359,832. Additional information 
can be obtained from the State of New Jersey's comprehensive annual financial report. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation reported by the State in the State's 
most recently issued financial statements was determined using the following actuarial assumptions 
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 
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Inflation rate 
Salary increase through 2026 

Thereafter 

TPAF 
2.50% 

1.55 - 4.55% 
based on years of service 

2.00- 5.45% 
based on years of service 

PERS 
2.50% 

2.15-4.15% 
based on age 
3.15 - 5.15% 
based on age 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the 
actual experience studies for the periods July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2015 and July 1, 2011 - June 30, 
2014 for TPAF and PERS, respectively. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 3.58% and 2.85%, respectively. This represents 
the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-
Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with 
an average rating of AA/ Aa or higher. 

Mortality Rates 

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee 
Male/Female Mortality table for males or females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality 
improvements based on MP- 2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 
Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female mortality table with fully generational 
improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was 
based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully 
generational improvement projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. 

Health Care Trend Assumptions 

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 
5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO 
medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical 
benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine 
years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a 5.0% long-term 
trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The 
Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years. 
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The following represents sensitivity of the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
associated with the District to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rate. 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the 
District as of June 30, 2017 calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower or !­
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 

Net OPEB Liability (Allocable to the 
District and the responsibility of the 
State) 

At 1% 

decrease 
(2.58%) 

At current 
discount rate 

(3.58%) 

At 1% 

increase 
(4.58%) 

$ 186,797,474 $ 157,359,832 $ 134,009,615 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the 
District as of June 30, 2017 calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is I-percentage-point 
lower or I-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

Net OPEB Liability (Allocable to the 
District and the responsibility of the 
State) 

At 1% 

decrease 
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 

At 1% 

increase 

$ 129,413,250 $ 157,359,832 $ 194,472,564 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of resources and Deferred In.flows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized on-behalf OPEB expense and revenue in 
the government-wide financial statements of$10,247,099 for OPEB expenses incurred by the State. 
Collective balances of the Education Group at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources $ 

Deferred inflows ofresources $ 

Collective OPEB Expense $ 

District's Proportion 

99,843,255 
6,443,612,287 
3,348,490,523 

0.29% 
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Special Funding Situation 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by 
the State, therefore, the District records an expense and corresponding revenue for its respective 
share of total OPEB expense and revenue attributable to the State of New Jersey. 

8. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

The total interfund accounts receivable and payable balances for the District amounted to the 
following as of June 30, 2018: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 
Food Service Enterprise Fund 
Aquatic Center Enterprise Fund 
Unemployment Trust Fund 
Payroll Agency Fund 

Interfund 
Receivable 
$361,726 

14,343 
21,261 

$397,330 

Interfund 
Payable 

$178,559 
10,800 

145,000 

41 710 
$397,330 

The interfund payable in the general fund represents the balance due to refund the aquatic center 
enterprise fund for COBRA payments made. The interfund payable in the special revenue fund 
represents a cash loan from the general fund not returned at June 30, 2018. The interfund between the 
food service enterprise fund and the general fund represents funds not returned by the food service 
enterprise fund by June 30, 2018 for expenditures paid on behalf of the food service enterprise fund by 
the general fund. The interfund payable in the aquatic center enterprise fund represents the balance due 
to refund the general fund for capital expenditures for expenditures paid on behalf of the aquatic center 
by the general fund. The interfund payable between the payroll agency fund and unemployment fund 
represents quarterly unemployment expenses. All interfunds are expected to be repaid within one year. 

9. Economic Dependency 

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state governments. A 
significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect on the 
District's programs and activities. 

10. Deferred Compensation 

The District offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457(b ). The plans, which are administered by Equitable, Fidelity 
and the Seely Agency, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

10. Deferred Compensation (continued) 

Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, 
death or an unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all 
property and rights purchased with the amounts, and all income attributable to these amounts are 
held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees and their beneficiaries. 

11. Contingent Liabilities 

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various 
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied 
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and 
the collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2018 may be impaired. In the opinion of the 
District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provisions have been recorded in the 
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies. The District is also involved in 
several other claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of the administration 
and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect 
on the financial position of the District. 

12. Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

Property and Liability Insurance 

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident and 
surety bonds and does not retain risk of loss. A complete schedule of insurance can be found in the 
statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and no settlements have exceeded insurance 
coverage over the past three years. 

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance 

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the 
"Benefit Reimbursement Method." Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New 
Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its 
account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. There are 
sufficient funds maintained in the separate unemployment compensation trust fund account to pay 
current billings. The District is self-insured for prescription benefits and has established an internal 
service fund to account for its self-insurance activities. 
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13. Transfers 

Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

The following presents a reconciliation of transfers made during the 2018 fiscal year: 

Fund 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 

Transfers 
In 

$1,735,587 

$1,735,587 

Transfers 
Out 

$1,735,587 
$1,735,587 

The transfer into the General Fund represents the Special Revenue Fund contribution to school­
based budgets. 

14. Commitments-General Fund 

The District has contractual commitments of $1,469,739 at June 30, 2018 to various vendors, which 
are recorded in the general fund as a component of designated for subsequent year expenditures. 

15. Deficit Fund Balance 

The District has an unassigned deficit fund balance of $515,602 in the special revenue fund at June 
30, 2018 as reported in the fund financial statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 
provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made available until the following 
budget year, districts must record the last state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, 
in the current school budget year. The bill provides the legal authority for school districts to 
recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB 
Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in 
symmetry (i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability). 
Since the State is recording the last state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school 
district cannot recognize the last state aid payments on the GAAP financial statements until the year 
the State records the payable. The deficit amounts listed above in the special revenue fund represent a 
deficit that was incurred as a direct result of the State of New Jersey's deferral of the District's final two 
state aid payments. 

16. Capital Reserve Account 

A capital reserve account was established by the District in June 2008 and issued for the 
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital 
reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund 
annual budget. Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the 
District's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the 
Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

16. Capital Reserve Account (continued) 

annual general fund budget certified for truces or by transfer by board resolution at year end (June 1 
to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line - item appropriation amounts, or both. 
A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been 
obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four 
special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.l(g), the 
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects 
in its approved LRFP. 

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows: 

Beginning balance, July I, 2017 

Increased By: 

Deposit approved at the June 2018 
Board meeting 

Unspent capital outlay funds 

Interest 

Decreased By: Budget withdrawal 

Ending balance, June 30, 2018 

$ 

$ 

7,693,018 

1,616,923 

187,891 

16,983 

(2,200,000) 

7,314,815 

Of the balance in reserve at June 30, 2018, $3,500,000 is included to be utilized in the 2018-19 
approved budget. The withdrawal from the capital reserve was for use in DOE approved facilities 
projects, consistent with the District's LRFP. The June 30, 2018 LRFP balance of .local support 
costs of uncompleted projects exceeds the amount set aside in capital reserve. 

17. Maintenance Reserve Account 

A maintenance reserve account was established by the District in June 2010 to be used to 
accumulate funds for the required maintenance of facilities, and in accordance with N.J.S.A. 
18A:7G-9, as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S1701), passed a board resolution authorizing the 
establishment of a maintenance reserve account in the District's General Fund. As allowed by 
N.J.S.A. 18A:F-41 and N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.3 the District can pass a board resolution to deposit 
funds into a maintenance reserve account between June 1 and June 30 of each budget year. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

17. Maintenance Reserve Account (continued) 

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows: 

Beginning balance, June 30, 2017 

Increased by: 

Deposit approved at the June 2018 

Board meeting 

Interest 
Decreased by: 

Budget withdrawal 
Ending balance, June 30, 2018 

$ 1,600,000 

695,000 

3,000 

(500,000) 
$ 1,798,000 

Of the balance in reserve at June 30, 2018, $850,000 is included to be utilized in the 2018-19 
approved budget. 

18. Restricted Assets 

The funds set aside for capital reserve and maintenance reserve are classified as restricted assets 
(cash and cash equivalents) as they are restricted for future capital projects and maintenance 
requirements, respectively. 

19. Rental Agreements 

Effective July 1, 2017, the District entered into a new lease with Brookdale Community College to 
rent the second floor of the building, for the period from September 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020. 
Payments made from the College to the District during fiscal year 2018 totaled $107,500. As of 
June 30, 2018, the lease for the second floor was not renewed. 

Effective September 1, 2017, the District entered into a new lease with Brookdale Community 
College to rent the first floor of the building, for the period from September I, 2017 through June 
30, 2020. Payments made from the College to the District during fiscal year 2018 totaled $165,735. 
Under the contract the District is required to pay the remaining amounts of $144,891 and $147,789 
during fiscal year 2019 and 2020, respectively. 

20. GASB 77 Tax Abatements 

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an 
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to 
forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that 
contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

20. GASB 77 Tax Abatements (continued) 

However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into 
tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the 
county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly 
affect the school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require 
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the 
school district. 

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise 
their minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of 
revenue resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is 
indeterminate due to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the 
New Jersey Department of Education based upon district property value and wealth. 

The Township of Neptune provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New Jersey 
State Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-l et seq: sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property 
taxes can and are abated. The exemptions provided by the Township of Neptune are for affordable 
housing projects. Taxes abated include municipal, local school and county taxes. 

The Township of Neptune recognized revenue of $244,018 from the annual service charge in lieu 
of payment of taxes in 2017 and taxes in 2017 that otherwise would have been due on these long­
term tax exemptions amounted to $465, 128, based upon the assessed valuations of the long-term tax 
exemptions properties. A portion of the $221, 110 abatement would have been allocated to the 
District. 

21. Lease Commitments - Operating Lease 

The District leases copiers from Municipal Capital Lease (Lessor) under a fifteen-year lease. The 
initial five-year period commenced on July 1, 2016. The Lease expense, excluding additional 
operating expenses, amounted to $52,366 for fiscal year 2018. The future minimum lease payments 
under the lease agreement over the remaining life of the lease is $174,260. 
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Ncpiune Township Board of Educarion 
Schedule oflhc Slllle's Proponionaie Share of the Net Pension Liability Associalcd With the Dislrict 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
Reqiuud Supplemcnlllly lnfonnation 

Last Ten Fiscal Yems• 

Year Ended June 30, 
2018 2017 2016 

Stalc's PIOJ>Onion of the net pension 
f,ability (IISSCt) IISSOcilllcd with the Disuict • 
Local Cifoup 

Dislricrs proponionate share of the net 
pension liability (IISSCI) 

Slate's Jm1poniona1e share of the net 
pension liability (asset) associated 
with the Dutrict 

Total proponionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
associ41cd with the Disttict 

Plan fidueilllY net position as a 
pcrccnllljle of the tollll pension liabililY 

0.2969118423% 

s . s 

s 200.188,6 70 S 

s 200.188.670 S 

2S.41% 

• The amounts prcscnled for each fiscal year were dctcnnincd as of the previous fiscal year-end. 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show infonnation for ten years. However, 
until a full ten-year lm1d is compiled. governments should present infonnaiion for those years for 
which infomwion is awiloble. 

Covered payroll infonn:ttion is not presented since the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a special 
funding situation in which the District does not make a contribution 10 this plan. 

0.298863637S% 

• $ 

23S.IOS,166 S 

235.IOS,166 S 

22.33% 

See uccompcmymg nmc.• lo required .rupplemenlary inftmnalion. 

0.2942601365% 

• $ 

185,984,972 S 

185,984.972 $ 

28.71% 

L-3 

201S 

0.3018486894% 

161,328,300 

161,328.300 

33.64% 
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Neptune Township Board of Education 
Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability Associated with the District 

and Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
Public Employee's Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 

Reqiured Supplementary Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years• 

2018 

State's proportion of the net OPEB 

M-1 

2017 

liability (asset) associated with the District 0.29% 0.29% 

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
associated with the District 

Total proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) 
associated with the District 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Changes of assumptions 
Member contributions 
Gross benefit payments 
Net change in total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB liability· beginning 

Total OPEB liability· ending 

Covered-employee payroll 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

$ $ 

$ 157,359,832 $ 

$ 157,359,832 $ 

0.00% 

2018 

$ 7,424,322 
4,992,097 

(21,025,959) 
134,210 

p,644,788) 
(12,120,118) 

169,479,950 

$ 157,359,832 

$ 36,370,626 

432.66% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-end. 

• This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for IO years. However, 
until a full I 0-year trend is compiled, the District should present information for those years for which 
information is available. 

•• information not available 

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information. 

169,479,950 

169,479,950 

0.00% 

2011•• 
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Neptune Township Board of Education 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

PENSION - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 3.98% as of June 30, 2016 to 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. 

PENSION - TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 3.22% as of June 30, 2016 to 4.25% as of June 30, 2017. 

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
AND TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 2.85% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.58% as of June 30, 2017. 
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Required Supplementary Information 
Part III 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules provide a one-year comparison of original budget, 
budget transfers, final budget and actual information for the General Fund and Special 
Revenue Fund. 



ExhibitC•I 
Page I 

Neptune To,.nship Schoell District 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Dudi:etary Basis) 

Ytar Ended June 30, 2018 
Variance 

OrlginAI Budget Final Final lo 
.llwlu1 D:a!!m.u Dlllw1 Amal .M1IIBl 

REVENUES: 
Local Sources: 
Local Tax LC\'y s 37,491,489 s 37,491,489 s 37,491,489 
Tuilicn from olhcr LEAs within the State 4,SS0,000 s S,396 4,SSS,396 S,300,608 s 445,212 
Transponaticn fees from ether LEAs within the Stale 425,000 425,000 SS7,288 132.288 
lnlaCSI Earned en lnvcstmcnts IS,000 14,578 29,578 52,240 22.662 
MisccUaneous SO-l.2SS !IS0.040! 3S4,2IS 1,097,737 7431S22 

Tola! • Local SoUKeS 43,285,744 (130,066) 43,ISS,678 44,499,362 1,343,684 

Slate Sourc:cs: 
Equalization Aid 25,407,093 2$,407,093 25,407,093 
Special Educalion Aid 2,404,326 2,404,326 2,404,326 

Transponation Aid 1.363,716 1,363,716 1,363,716 
SecuriiyAid 1.222,886 1,222,886 1,222,886 
Adjusunent Aid 2,234,768 (654,934) 1,579,834 1,579,834 
PARCC Readiness Aid 113,930 (75,280) 38,650 38,6SO 
Per Pupil <ltowth Aid 38,650 38,650 38,6SO 
Professional Leaming Communily Aid 36,630 36,630 36,630 
Addilional Non-Public Transportation Aid 16,838 16,838 
Exaaordinuy Aid 27S,OOO 285,000 S60,000 SSS,130 25,130 
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf· Non•Buclse1cd) 4,384,204 4,384,204 

TPAF Pension Contribulions • Post•Rc1irement Medical (On-Behalf· 
Non-Budgeted) 2,831,664 2,831,664 

TPAF Pension Contribulicms • Long· Tenn Disabilily Insurance (On-Behalf· 
Non-Budgeted) S,243 S,243 

TPAF Social Securily (Reimbursed· Non-Dudgcled) 2273,6S6 2 273 6S6 
Tolal Sra1e Sources 33,021.719 (369,934) 32,6Sl,7BS 42,188,520 9,S36,73S 

Federal Sources: 
Medical Assistance Program 184.Sll 184,521 153,483 !Jl,038! 

Total • Federal Sources 184,521 184,521 ISJ,483 pl,038! 
Total Rcvaiues 76.491,984 (S00.000! 75,991,984 86.S.U136S 10,849,381 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current E1pcnse: 
Regular Programs· lastruclion 

Kindcrpncn • Solari es ofT eac:hers 1.039,469 (187,999) 851,470 SSl,470 
Gmdes 1-S. Solaries of Teachers S.873,007 93,196 S,966,203 S,818,176 148,027 
Grades 6·8 • Salaries of Teachers 4,135,496 (399,369) 3,736,127 3,648,775 87,352 
Gmdcs 9·12 • Salaries of Teachers S,410,179 (145,389) 5,264,790 5,191,376 73,414 

Regular Programs· Home Instruction 
Sallllies ofTcachers 200,000 410 200,410 200,410 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 85,000 (72S) 84,27S SS,601 28,674 

Rci:ular Programs· Undistributed Instruction 
Other Salaries for lllSUIIWon 475,022 (46,288) 428,734 390,380 38,354 
Purchased Profcssional·Educalional Sc:mces 220.113 (30,286) 189,827 179,204 10,623 
Purchased Technical Savices 280.SJJ 81,S24 362,057 345,402 16,655 
Other Pm-chased Services 398,000 57,117 455,117 445,802 9,315 
General Sup11lies S92,IS2 S0,758 642,910 608,334 34,$76 
Textbooks 111,183 40.866 152,049 ISl,236 813 
Other Objects 43,860 8,694 S2.S54 48.247 4,307 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION 18,864,014 (477,491) 18,386,523 17,934,413 4$2,110 

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION 
Leaming ancUor Language Dlsabllllies 

Sallllies of Teachers 71S,IS7 18,590 733,747 733,747 
Other Salaries for Instruction 274,945 61,601 336,546 336,545 
Purc:hased Professional-Educational Sc:iviccs 77.800 20,36S 98,165 98,165 
Other Purc:hascd Sa-ices l,4SO ns 2,228 2,228 
General Supplies S.300 23.196 28496 28.496 

Total Leaming and/or Language Disabilities 1,074,652 124,SJO 1,199,182 1,199,181 

Auditory lmpalnnaits 
Salaries of Teachers 7S6,0IO (22,810) 733.200 730,669 2.S31 
Other Solaries for lnsttucrion 435,880 (13,719) 422,161 417,246 4,91S 
Purchased Profcssionol-Educotional Senices 9,000 9,000 9,000 
Other Purchased Services 40,700 (17,000) 23,700 22,304 1,396 
General Supplies 12,000 {4,000} 8,000 6,962 1,038 

Total Auditory Impairments 1,253,590 (S7,S29) 1,196,061 l,186,l8l 9,880 
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ExhibitC•I 
Pagel 

Neptune TownsJtip Sthool Dlstrlcl 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Bud11wiry Basis) 

Vear Ended June JO, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budgel Final Final lo 
lhlm1 Iu.mfm l!!!w! Ml!!!I .L\s1lial 

Behavioral Dl1ablll1ln 
Salllfies orTeuhers $ 161,871 $ 4,603 $ 166,474 $ 166.474 
Oilier Salaries for lnsuuction 48,117 (2.431) 4S,686 45,574 s 112 
Purch~d ProreHional-Educational Services 800 800 800 
General Supplies 1,000 1,000 963 37 

Total Behavioral Disabilities 211,788 2,172 213,960 213,811 149 

l\fulllple Disabilities 
Salaries ofTcachers 410,461 (6,763) 403,698 403,138 560 
Oilier Salaries ror lnsuuction 254,433 5,464 2S9,897 211.143 48,7S4 
General Supplies 2,500 2.000 4,SOO 4,432 68 

Tutsi J\fulllple Dlsabl111lcs 667.394 701 668,09S 618,713 49,382 

Resource Room/Rcsourtt Center 
Salllfies ofT cachcn J,168,S22 114.IOS 3,282.627 3,241,045 41.582 
Other Salllfies for lnsuuction 218,096 10,202 228,298 227,792 506 
PIUdiascd Proressional-Educational Scrnces 
Ocncral Supplies 12.SOO 3500 16.000 15,957 43 

Toial Rcsourtt Room/Resource Cmter 3.399,118 127,807 3.S26,92S 3,484,794 42.131 

Preschool Dlsabilllles • Full-Time 
Salaries ofTC4Chm 378,S60 (6,906) 371,6S4 369,937 1.717 
Other Salaries for lnsuuction 120,940 (23,820) 97,120 88,030 9,090 
Purchmsed Proressional-Educational Scnices 5,000 (25) 4,975 1,286 3,689 
Other Pun:hmsed Services 300 1.428 1,728 1,728 
General Supplies 6,000 82S 6.825 6.772 53 

Tobi Preschool Disabilities• Full-Time SI0,800 {28.4982 482.302 467.7S3 14,549 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION 7,117,342 169.183 7,286,S2S 7,170,433 116,092 

Bilingual Education • Instruction 
Salaries or Teachers 303,872 (702) 303,170 303,170 
General Supplies I.SOO {82 1.492 1,490 2 

Total Bilingual Edutatlon • Instruction 305,372 p102 304,662 304,660 2 
Tobi Vocational Programs- Local l,utruction 

School-Span. Cocurrlcular AcMs, • J,uc. 
Salllfies 223,000 (4,819) 218,181 209,341 8,840 
Purchased Scl'\ices 20,000 (2,000) 18,000 I0,3SI 7,649 
Oilier Objects 2,000 !1,0002 1,000 98S IS 

TGbl School-Span. Cocurrlcular Advll. 0 lnsc. 24S,OOO (7.819) 237.181 220,677 16,S04 

School•Spon. Alhletlcs 
Salaries 1,028,200 49,009 1,077,209 972,811 104,398 
Pun:hascd Services 309,887 (60,900) 248,987 179,438 69,549 
Supplies and Morcrials 103,000 6,900 109,900 108.083 1.817 

Tobi School-Span. Alhletlcs 1,,141,087 (4,991) 1,436,096 1,260,332 17S.764 

Other SupplemenbrylAt•Rlsk Program• lnstruclion 
Salaries of Reading Specialists 948,927 p.7942 94S.133 944.271 862 

Total Other Supplcmentary/At•Rlsk Program- Instruction 948,927 (3,794) 94S,133 944.271 862 

CGmmunily Services ProgramslOperatlo,u 
Supplies and Marerials 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Other Objects s.soo s.soo ssoo 
Total Community Services ProgramslOper11tions 8,SOO s.soo 8,500 

TOTAL INSTRUCTION 28,930.242 p2s,6222 28.604.620 27,834,786 769,834 

Undistributed Expenditures· Instruction 
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the Stale • Regular 290,280 (174,000) 116.280 83,389 32,891 
Tuition to Oilier LEAs Within the Stale • Spccial S70,297 (74,459) 49S,838 430,210 6S,628 
Tuition to County Voe. School Dist • Regular 173,640 9,170 182,810 182,810 
Tuition to County Voe. School Dist • Special 242,000 (30,680) 211,320 191,12S 20.l9S 
Tuition IO CSSD & Regional Day Schools 6,447 6,447 6,447 
Tuition IO Priw1c Schools for the Diublcd. Within State 6,533,423 128,617 6,662,040 6,594,468 67,S72 
Tuition· Sl4te Facilities 149.808 149,808 149,808 

Total Undistributed E1pmdilures • lnstruttloo 7,959,,148 (134,905) 7,824,543 7,631.810 192,733 
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ExlubitC•I 
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Neptune Township School District 
Generol Fund 

Budget.ary Comp2rison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Vc..r Ended June 30, 1018 

Variance 
Original Budget Flnal Flnalto 

.!!wwl IwuCw 1!ww1 M1.lla.l .AwJal 

Undistributed E•pend. • Attend. & Social Work 
Salaries s 262.S70 s 1,161 s 263,731 s 2SS,244 s 8,487 
Salaries of Drop-Out Prevention Offica/Coordinator 42,86S 83 42,948 42,948 
Ocher Purchased Services 1.300 1,300 963 337 

Total Undistributed Espend. • Attend. & SociaJ Work 306,73S 1,244 307,979 299,ISS 8,824 

UndlsL E,pend. • Health Services 
Salaries 662,8S2 29,S89 692,441 668,203 24,238 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 2,SOO 2,SOO 720 1,780 
Ocher Purchmsed Sctvices 7,000 l,SOO s.soo 8,080 420 
Supplies and Materials 28,300 !l,9042 26,396 2S1767 629 

Total Undistributed E•pendilures • llc..llb Services 698,IS2 31,68S 729,837 702,770 27,067 

Undlst. E,pend. • Olher Supp. Serv. Students • Related Serv. 
Salaries 42S,027 (37,087) 387,940 387,39S S4S 
Pu:chased Professional - Educational Services 490,000 SS4,SS6 J,044,SS6 l,044,S47 9 
Supplies and Materials 1,300 1,300 1289 II 

Total UndlsL Expend.· Other Supp. Serv. Students • Related Serv. 916,327 S17,469 1,433,796 1,433,231 S6S 

UndisL Expend. • Guidance 
Salaries of Olher Professional Slaff' 1,066,281 17,067 1,083,348 l,061,S77 21,771 
Slllarics of Secmari.,1 and Clerical Assistants 137,132 (1,092) 136,040 136,040 
Purchased Professional • Educational Services 38,500 9,700 48,200 48,042 158 
Olher Purchased Sctviccs 116,400 (18,189) 98,211 98,198 13 
Supplies and Materials 4J,7SO !7.620! 34.130 34,049 81 

Total UndisL Expend.• Guldllnce 1,400,063 (134) 1,399,929 1,377,906 22,023 

UndlsL E•pend. • Child Study T c..m 
Salllries of Other Professional Staff 960,0SO 110.083 1,070,133 1,069,366 767 
Salllries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 202.220 (Sl,240) IS0,980 IS0,389 591 
Other Purchased Services 3,7SO 3,750 2,0IS l,73S 
Miscellaneous Purchased Services S,000 17,828 22,828 20,913 l,91S 
Supplies and Materials 6,8SO 7,747 14,S97 13,884 713 
Ocher Objects 1,000 1.000 S60 440 

Total Undl1L E•pcnd. • Child Study Tum 1,178,870 84,418 1,263,288 1,257,127 6,161 

UndlsL £spend. • Improvement of lnsL SHY. 
Salaries of Supcrviso,-s of lnsauction 273,648 192 273,840 273,840 
Salaries of Olher Professional Slaff' 306,000 (33,180) 272,820 267,706 S,114 
Salaries of Scctctarial and Clerical Assistants ,1.1,660 87 44,747 44,747 
Purchmscd Prof. • Educational Services IS8,S00 (21,802) 136,698 127,724 8,974 
Other Purchased Services 2,000 2,000 9S4 1,046 
Supplies mid Materials 10,000 (2,000) 8,000 1,232 6,768 
Ocher Objects 17,000 17,000 IS867 1.133 

Total Undlst. E•pend. - Improvement of Inst. Serv. 811,808 (56,703) 7SS,IOS 732,070 23,03S 

Undlsl, Expend. • Edu. llledia ServJSch, Library 
Salaries 923,103 (63,014) 860,089 816,671 43,418 
Supplies 1111d Materials 46,000 !7.9072 38,093 36,768 1,325 

Total Undlst. Expend. - Edu. llledia Serv./Sch. Library 969,103 (70,921) 898,182 853,439 44,743 

UndlsL £spend. • Supp. Serv. • General Admln. 
Salaries 622,214 33.728 6SS,942 649,341 6,601 
Legal Services 100,000 IOS,SOO 205.SOO 200,577 4,923 
Audit Fees 72,000 1,000 73,000 72,91S 8S 
AlchitccturaVEngincering Senices 2S,000 (20,000) S,000 S,000 
Purchased T cchnical Services 36.500 (l,SOO) 3.S,000 32,312 2,688 
Communications/T elcphcnc 178,500 (61,700) 116,800 109,091 7,709 
&Md of Ecliu:aticn Other Purchased Services 7,800 (l,.SOO) 6,300 4,687 1,613 
Ocher Purchased Sctvices 171,064 1,319 172,383 167,037 .S,346 
General Supplies 29.SOO 2,000 31.SOO 25,370 6,130 
Board of Education In-House Training/Meeting Supplies 7,000 (l,.SOO) S,500 3,129 2,371 
Miseel11111eous Expenditu:es 7,800 (2,000) S,800 4,489 1,311 
Board of Education Dues and Fees 46,000 1s,soo1 37,SOO 35,489 2,011 

Total Undlst. E1pend. - Supp. Serv. • Genm1l Admln, 1,303,378 46,847 l,3.S0,22S 1,304,437 4S,788 
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Nq,tune Township Scbool District 
(dneral Fund 

Budgrtary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgttary Buis) 

Yrar Ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budget Flnal Final to 
.Bwm.l Iwwm llllllW 4SI!!!! .&llla.l 

Undlsl. Expend.· Support Serv. • School Admin. 
Salaries of Principab/Assislant Principals $ l,732,47S $ 2 $ 1,732,477 $ 1,663,323 s 69,154 
Salaries • Other Profmional Staff 643,552 9,996 653,548 630,643 22,90S 
Salaries ofSecrclllrilll and Clerical Assistants 693,654 2,27S 695,929 691,243 4,686 
Other Purchased Smices 63,550 (2,513) 61,037 S4,227 6,810 
Supplies and Materials S0,632 128 S0,760 46,992 3,768 
Other Objccu 1,700 (292! 1,408 216 11192 

Total Uadisl. E1pend. • Support Serv. • School Admin. 3,185,563 9,596 3,195,159 3,086,644 108,515 

Undlsl. E1pend. • Central Services 
Salaries 791,381 (65,073) 726,308 726,307 
Purchased T cchnical Scnices 33,439 871 34,310 34,310 
Misc Purchased Scnices 46.500 (13,000) 33,500 IS,847 17,653 
Supplies and Materials 7.000 !871! 6,129 3.340 2.789 

Tctal Undlst. Expend.· Central Services 878,320 (78,073) 800,247 779,804 20,443 

Undisl. E1pend. • Technology Admin. 
Salaries 339,321 19,515 358,836 358,835 I 
Purchased Technical Services 100,000 SB 100,058 63,8.S.S 36,203 
Travel 8,000 (S,000) 3,000 1,584 1,416 
Supplies and Materials 35,000 35000 IS,736 19,264 

Total Undl1t,E1pend. • Technology Admin. 482,321 14,573 496,894 440,010 56,884 

Undlst. E1pcnd. • Required !\faint. for Sch. Facil, 
Salaries 438,832 3,484 442.316 438,100 4,216 
Cleaning. Rq,air and Maintenance Services 2,198,000 194,300 2,392,300 2,311,315 80,985 
Gcnfflll Supplirs 209,000 1,300 210,300 ISl,4S2 58,848 
Other Objects 27.000 3,000 30.000 29,.516 484 

Toi.II Undist. E1pend.. Required Mainl. for Sch. Facll. 2,872,832 202,084 3,074,916 2.930,383 144,533 

Undisl. E1pend. • Custodial Services 
Salaries 2,631,025 115,718 2.746,743 2.700,904 45,839 
aeaning. Rq,air and Maintenance Scnices 90,000 19,000 109,000 91,870 17,130 
Otha Purchased Property Services 123,600 (2,786) 120,814 117,397 3,417 
lnsurnru:e 362,274 (21,145) 341.129 341,128 I 
Genml Supplies 205,000 6,000 211,000 192,569 18,431 
Notu:111 Gas 314,000 (12,000) 302,000 269,414 32.S86 
Electricity 2.0S4,000 !211,000l 1,843,000 1,589,738 2.Sl,262 

Total Undist. Expend •• Custodial Services 5,779,899 (106,213) 5,673,686 5,303,020 370,666 

Undlst. Exprnd. • Care and Upkeep of Grounds 
Cleaning. Repair and Mointenance Services 814,000 (7,669) 806,331 710,605 9.S,726 
General Supplies 20,000 6,932 26932 24,642 2 290 

Total Undl11. E1prnd. -Care and Upkeep of Grounds 834,000 (737) 833,263 735,247 98,016 

Undisl. E1pend. • Securil)' 
Slllaries 465,451 16,188 481,639 479,337 2.302 
Purchased Professional & Technical Scr.;ccs 80,000 80,000 S9,9S3 20,047 
General Supplies 27.800 2,047 29,847 22,427 7,420 

Total Undlst. E1pcnd.. Security 573,251 18,235 591,486 561,717 29,769 

Uaclisl. E1pend. • Student Transportation Serv. 
Salaries fer Pupil Trans. (Bcrnun Home & School)· Regul11r 128.263 (398) 127.86.S 127,665 200 
Other Puichascd Professional and Technical Scnices .J.SOO 4,500 4,500 
Conlraetcd Services Aid In Lieu of Poymenc for Non-public School Students 44,000 (20,000) 24,000 19,899 4,101 
Conlraeted Scnices Aid In Lieu of Poyment for Chaner School Students 1,700 (1,700) 
Conlraeted Scnices (Bccwecn Home and School) - Vendors 1,327,425 (190,693) 1,136,732 1,012.oss 124,647 
Contractrd Services (Other than Between Home and School) - Vendors 262.900 (1,543) 261,357 246,983 14,374 
Contracted Services (Sp. Ed.)· Vendors 1,230.000 160,728 1,390,728 1,365,173 25,555 
Ocneral Supplies 5.300 I 02S 6,32.S 3,847 2478 

Totol llndlst, E1pend. • Student Transportation Serv. 3,004,088 (S2,S81) 2,9Sl,S07 2,780,152 171,355 

Unallocated Drnents 
Sociol Security Contribulions 1,039,591 .SS,39.S 1,094,986 1,090,494 4,492 
Other Retirement Contributions • PERS 894,046 80,000 974,046 971,736 2,310 
Workmen's Compensation 480,936 24.861 sos,m 505,784 13 
Health Benefits 12.671,000 (411,861) 12,259,139 10,982.152 1.276,987 
Tuition Reimbursement 20.000 20,000 .s.s.ss 14,445 
Olher Employee Benefits 760,000 !207,600! 552,400 477.S29 74,871 

Toi.II Uruallocated Brndics 15.865,S73 (459,205) 15,406,368 14,033,250 1,373,118 
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Neptune, Township School Districl 
Gc,neral fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budi:etory Buis) 

Year Ended June JO, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budget final Final to 
J!wm1 Imm.fm l!l!lkd AtW!1 .&1llal 

On-behalrConlributioas 
TPAF Pension (On-Behalf· Non-Budgeted) s 4,384,204 s (4,384,204) 
TPAF Pension Conaibutions • Post-Retirc,mc,nt McdiQI (On-Behalf· 

Non-Budgeted) 2,831,664 (2,831,664) 
TPAF Pension Conaiburions • Long•Term Disabilily Insurance (On-Behalf· 

Non·Dudgc1ed) S,243 (S,243) 
Reimbursed TPAF Social Securi1yContribu1ions (non-budgeted) ~273,656 !2,273,656! 

Total On-behalf Contributions 9,494,767 (9,494,767) 
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES s 49,019,731 s !33,321! $ 48,986,410 55,736,939 !6, 750,529! 
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE 77,949,973 (358,943) 77,591,030 83,571,725 (S,980,695) 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Equipment 
Recular Programs.Jnscruction: 

Gmdcs 1-S 78,444 78,444 78,444 
Grades6-8 34,493 34,493 34,493 

Undistributed Espndiluros: 
Undisuibutcd Exp . .Custodial Scmccs S0.246 50,246 50,246 

Tocal Equipmenl 163,183 163,183 163,183 

Fadlltia Acqulsllion and Conslrucclon Services 
Archilectural/Enginccring Semces 200,000 255,403 455,403 252,326 203,077 
Consttui:tion Services 2.000.000 2.164,123 4,164,123 2,709570 l,4S4,553 

Total Faclllcles Acquisition and Conslruction Sc,rvlces 2.200.000 2,419,526 4,619,526 2,961,896 1,657,630 
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2.200.000 2,582,709 4,782,709 3,125,079 1,657,630 

Contrlbullon lo Charter Schools i,007,011 418,588 1,425,599 1,382 965 42.634 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 81,156,984 2,642.354 83,799,338 88.079,769 !4,280,431! 

(Defldmey) Escas or Rcvmua (Under) Ovc,r Espmdituros (4.665.000! p.142.354! (7,807,3S4l !1.238.404! 1511291812 

Olher Flnandng Sourca (Uses): 
Transfer in· Conaibution to school based budgets- OF 44,985,000 (2.4S0,748) 42,534,252 41,876,329 (657,923) 
Transfer in· Conttiburion to school based budgc1s- SRF 1,815,000 (64,000) 1,751,000 l,73S,S87 (IS,413) 
Transfer oul • ConttibutiGn to school based budgecs !44,98S,000! 2,450,748 {42.534,252! !41.876,3292 657,923 

Total Other Financing Sourca (Uses) 1,815,000 !64,000! 1.751,000 1,735,587 !1"413! 

(Deficiency) E1ces1 of Revenues 
(Under) Over E1penditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,KS0,000) (3,206,354) (6,056,354) 497,183 15,114,399 

Fund BalAnce, July I 15,770,614 IS,770 614 IS,770 614 
Fund Bah1nce, June 30 $ 12,920.614 $ {3,206.354) s 9,714,260 s 16.267.797 s IS,114,399 

Reapilulallon or Fund Balance: 
Rnlrictcd Fund Balance: 

Excess Swpl11S-Cwrcnl )'CM $ 2,000,000 
Cmi,ical Reser.-c 7,314,815 
Mointenance Reserve 1,798,000 

Assisnedco: 
Designa1ed for Subsequenl Yeats Expenditures 2,106,287 
Year End Encumbrances 1,469,739 

Unassigned Fund Balance 1,578,956 
16,267,797 

Reconclllallon or Budgetary Fund Balance to GAAP Fund Balance: 
Final Stole Aid Payments Not Realized on OAAP Basis jl.172,44:!} 
fund balance per Governmental Funds (GMP) s 13,095,350 
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EmbilC.la ...,.. 
~Ta ... ~lp-Dlslrict 

c.a.niFan4 
B•d&nary Comparilo• khrdult 

(Budtmr,- Ba,b) 
Year EIMkd Ju• JO. 2011 

Orldaal -- Flul 

-II!! Trusrcn ~ --laz Bbd,d Toul Ooontlaz - Toul OwnlJq Blnukd Toul OwnlJq - Toul 
FudlMJ -- Ccocnl Fadll-lJ -- Ccocnl FudlMJ -- Ccocnl Faad ll-lJ -... -· [end l!I [Bild [amt.~ f.ntld Euml 1~ [l!U!!I fllnil~ t:IDd 

REVENUES; 
1-lSawccs: 

Lccal Tu La~ !7,491,489 17,491.,89 $ 37,,91,,19 l7.,9U89 s !7 •• 91.'89 !7,491,,89 
Tui1ion !mm other LEA1 "llhin 1hc Suk: Ul0,000 Ul0.000 l,)96 l,)96 U5',l96 US,,196 l.'I00.6< .. l,300.608 
Transporwion bs fn,m other LEAs uitbin I.be State' ,2,.000 Ul,000 ,u.ooo '25,000 S,7.211 '57,288 
lnlffCII Eam::d OD lo\fff_mcnll 15,000 ll.000 IU7ll IU7! 29,l7ll 29.J,S ium 5UW 
MJl&ldwxous lOU,S .!OU5l jllOIW>! iUOJ),Wl JSUll llUll 1.097.717 1.097.7'!7 

TGlal · i.a! Sourm 0,115.7 .. 0.lll,7U (ll0.0661 (ll0.0661 0.1'5,6711 0.15l.67ll ... 499.162 u.,99.l62 
SUlcSom=· 
~Aid 2l,'°7.09l 2,...07,09! 2l.'87.09) 2l.'87,09l 2,...07.09) Z,,W7.09l 
5pcaal Eduollion Aid 2.™.l:!6 2."'4.l26 2,"'4,126 2."'4,)16 2.'™.326 2.""J26 
Tnnsponation Aid 1,161,716 1,16).716 1,:161,716 1,)61,716 l,)63.71', 1.161.716 
Sccurit)' Aid 1.222.116 1.222.886 1,222.886 1,222.IIU l,:Zl2.81<~ 1.222.886 
l\dj""1Dml Aid Ul4,768 2.234,768 (6.5-1,93,1,) (65'.9)4) l,J79.8l4 l,l79,Bl4 1.579,U• l,l79,8l• 
PARCC Rcad1nou Aid lll.9)0 113,9)0 (7'-21Wll (7l.Wl) )8.6l0 )1.6'0 ll.6l0 )1,650 
!'ff Pupil G""'th Aid )l,6l0 )l.6l0 )1.6l<> )1.6l0 ll.6l0 )l,6l0 
Pniks.siomJ Leaming c~- Aid 16.6!0 )6.630 )6.6~) :16.6!0 16.630 )6.6)0 
~x: Tramponat10Q Aid 16.1)1 16.US 
E.i..traanbmJ}' Aid 27l.OOO 27S.OOO 11,.0IN) 21S,OOO '61).(l.lO l<,0,000 l8S.130 SIS.llO 
Tl'AF l'mslon(On-Bdisll • Non-&d£<,cdl •.lU.ZO, U&Uo• 
TPAf Pension Con1nbu:1Kln1. Post-Rdircmco! Mcd:al tOn-Rchalr a 

Non-Budgctc,ll 2.flJl,(Jf'J,I 2.8)1.(,6.1 
TPAF Pension Co:rnnbuuons • l.(m}t•Tcrm Dwbilit) lnsunu~ (On-Dcha!r. 

Noo,BudJ!ctc,l) l.l4) S,143 
TPAF' Social Sccurit\ CRcunburicd .. N'.on•Budi:e1td) 2.27J,M(1 l.27l.6S6 

Total S1aie Scwcn l),021.719 )1,0ll.719 ('.'MJ,9U) ()611.9)•1 ll.651,78' )2.6!1,71l U.IBS,5~> .a:u1s . .s20 
t'cdcr::t.l SoufCCI: 
Maltal As:snuncc Prop.at::1 IUSll IU.511 ISUU IU.lll "'·"" ISJ . .a.-u 

TGUl,Fcd,:t>ISo,uus IU.521 IU.Sll IU.lll IU.lll 153.11) IS\ . .a11 
Tctal ilc-llC'Gllff 76.,l'll.93,I 7G.'91.9U !~WIJNIOt !~-0:NJ} 7S.991.111U ,,.w1,9U B6Jl,ll.1M 86Ul.l6S 

EXPENDITURES: 
Currml E1pmK: 
Rl-aular P"°'"m• - lmt~dlon 

Preschool •Salancso!Tnch<" 
Kinck,pnm • Sal&rics of TGCh<rs I.Ol9,"69 1.0lll.'69 s (117.9991 (187,999) s Bll,'70 Ill .• ,., 151,,10 lll.>70 
Gt>dc1 l•l • Sal.ricsolTCKh<rs .SS,800 l.lU.207 l.17l.llll7 (7),00S, 166.201 93.196 ,15.79l l.ll0,"'8 l,966.20) 268,)18 5.5'9.711 l.111.176 
Grado:s 64 • Sal.rics of TCO<h<rs 21l.OOO ).920.•96 •. lll.496 (l.0001 (39'.:169) ()99.)69) 210.000 3,S:!6.127 ),7:16.127 127.US l.520.930 ).618.775 
Gl3dcs9-ll•Sawicso1Tracbcn 2&1,000 l.ll9.l'l9 l.410.1'19 l6.6ll (1&2.0111 (14l.l191 317.62? 047.168 l~.n.:i 312.lll U7U2l l.191.176 

lvoda•"-· H .... lmt-
SalaritsafTcacbcrs 200,000 200,000 ••• uo 200.410 200,410 200.,10 l00 . .$10 ------ U,000 IS,000 (725) (7ll) IU7l H,27l '5,601 ll,601 

Aot:ulu Propams• lladbtrlllulrd la1truc1kln 
Oilier Salaries rm 1...-ion 75,000 .J00.022 475.022 2.BlO (49.138) ('6,ll!) 77,llO )lO.BB, ,21.n, )9,99l ll0.J8l )90,380 
Pu,diascd Pn>rcsslcml-i!dllCAIU)nal Scniccs 220.IU 220.11) (l0.286) (30.286) 189.127 119,127 179.20,I 179.~ 
l'lln:hascd Tcchnlcal S....ica 2IO.ll3 280.lJJ 81.52' 11.,2, 162,057 l62,0l7 :U5,.J02 345,.JOl 
Olhcrl'ludia!cdS....- 1911.000 1911.000 '7,117 l7,117 ,ss,111 'll,117 U5,IOl Ul.802 
Gcmlal5-lics l92.ll2 l92.ll2 l,000 '5,7ll l0,7ll l,000 637,910 6'2.910 1911 608.1:16 60l.J:U 
TC>1hoob 111,111 111,18) .,,,.166 - U2.0l9 152.0,19 lll.2l6 151.2)6 
Olla Ol,jms .a).l60 u.u.o ··- S.694 l:!.55' lUS. .aa.2,1 .U.2'7 

TOTAL REGIJUR PROGRAMS• INSTRUcnON I.J .. ,IOO 17.ll9.21• 11."".0I• (J),MIJ (UJ,6'll 1•11.,911 l,JI0,9l2 17,075.571 IUl6,l2l l,OOl,211 16,929,125 17,91,.,11 

SPECIAL E.DIJCATION • INSTRIJcnON 
lc1ralq and/or Le,:u1&e DlubilJtln 

Sawics orTcachm 715.157 715.ll7 11.590 11.590 7JJ,7'7 7ll,7'7 7JJ.7'7 7)),7~7 
Olhcr Salaries !or lmuuaion 27'.9'l 27•.9'5 61,601 61,601 3)6,J'6 )l6,l'6 ):16,S.l l)6.J'5 
Pwdmcd Profcssica.Jl-fd,re,ional Scnitcs 77,IOO 77,IIOO 20,)65 20,165 9&,165 911.16' 9&,16' 91,165 
Olhcrl'uldmcdScmca 1.•io l.'lO 771 771 U2I uza 2.22! 2.221 
Gcmlal5-llc:s 5,lOO 5,300 21.196 n,196 lU96 21,,96 2U96 2!,•96 

Torallaniqad'GrLu-llballllllln l,07t,6'Z 1,07',6'2 12',JlO u,.510 1,199.182 1.199,182 1.199.111 1,199,111 _..,.~ 
SalaJlcsafTcacbcrs 756.0JO 7l6,0IO (22.110) (22,110) m.200 71).200 730.669 7'l0,669 

Olhcr Salarits r.x - Ol.AO o,.uo (IJ,719) (IJ,719) '22,161 ,22,161 ,11,2.0 ,11.m 
l'lln:hascdl'nllcuional·EdoallonalS....u,cs 9.000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 
Olhcr Purdwal Scnica ,0,,00 "'·700 (17,000) (17,000) 2),700 21,700 22,:IOI 22.lOol 
GcnmlSu;,pllcs 12.000 12.000 1,,0001 1aoo2 !,000 1,000 6,962 !,962 

Tot•I Audlttary lmpaiRIM'ld1 l,2l).J90 l,2').590 (S7,J29) (l7.J29) 1,196,061 1,196,061 1.186,111 1,116,181 
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Exhibi!C•II 
Pqo2 

"'-T.....i,ip-l>blrid 
c.....ifad -.....,~-,. 

(lladzcta'l Buhl 
Ynr Eaded Jane JO, 2011 

Oripall Budl"I Pia.al 
Bod~ Traasfrn Dudl!! Actual 

Oacntln1 Blended Tolal Oacnllac Blended Total Opcntia'I Bltodcd Total Oixradn1 Dlcndcd Total 
Food IMJ ·-... Ctntral Foad II-IJ 11nw ... Cta,ral Food ll·IJ -... GC"nrrat flmd IMJ -... c.. .... 1 

find I~ [End Elnd I~ bm2 film! 1!11 t:aod tJu:ui I~ find 

Bcta..ionl Dbahir-
SalaricsofT- $ 161,1171 161.171 $ •.wl •.wi 166,0• 16M7' 166.'7• $ 166,0• 
011acrs.i.n..ro,1"""""°" U.117 •a.117 (2.'31) (2.'31) .,.- .S.6U .,.,,. .,.,,. ----- goo .... IIOO IOO IOO SOIi 
Oer>cnl&ll'lllics 1.000 1.000 1000 1,000 96) 96) 

Total Bcta..ionl Db.i.ililln 211.na 211.na l.172 2.17l 21),%0 21l.960 21!.111 21l.111 

MoltlploDbaliilidcs 
SaJm,oofTcachas •10.'61 ..... ,a (6,76!1 16,7611 •oJ,69" .. l.698 .. l.ll8 .OJ.Ill 
O,hct Salaries rot lnsuuc:uon 2S. •• ll 2S..'31 ,.~ HM JS9,197 259.897 211.1'3 211.1'3 
Oea<r.11 Supplies 2,500 2,50(1 2000 2.0110 •.soo uon Ul2 Ul2 

Total M111hiplr Di1abiHtict 667,39. (il,7.'.19-1 701 701 Ml,09! 6611.<19! 618.?ll 61S.71l 

Rnouitt Room/RcSJoUrtt Ctnln' 
Salaries ofT...,hcrs 3.168.522 l.1"8,522 11..ins IU,IO! l,282,(,27 l,212.627 l,2U.CM! U•l,CMS 
Ol.hcr Salaries fol InsUur:::tiofl 218,096 21!.0'16 I0,202 10,202 221.291 22S.298 227.7Y2 227,7Y2 
Gcn<n15-lics 12.500 12.500 uoo l,!00 16.000 16,CXlJ IS.957 IS.95,7 

Total Rt..urtt ~rtt Cnkr H99.118 1.lW.1111 127,1(17 127,"'17 ).:Sl(,,91' ,.,16,925 J.a,.,,.. 3,lU,m 

,__ DbabUidn• F.U-Timo 
5.i..riaol'Tcxhcn 111_~) J1a,$ln (fi.906) (t,.90f,) )71.65' Jn.6..q 169.91' ;69.9;7 

O.hct s.Jmcsr011""""""" 120.9"1 120.9'1) m.s201 12•.•201 97.1211 'il7.Un ISJt~ u.o;o ----=--- ,.nrw, ,.1u1 (?$) (211 U7! .a.975 1.216 1.216 

°'"" ...... ......, -- )!'NI }(I) 1 . .a:1 1.Ua l.7ZS 1.721 Ul• l.1lS 
Gc:nml Suppl;a (,,000 6tUt 82! IIH 6.B2l 61113 677? 6.772 

Tot•I Ptt1<hool ObabUilin .. FDII-Timr SIO.KOO suumo '28 . .193! 52111 . .&'IS! •s2.1'>2 Ul.301 '67.751 '67,751 
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION • INSTRVC"TION ,10.1mo (~.606.S.a2 1.117.:Ul (lU981 l97.t.KI ltW.lll •sl.l02 6.KO-,l.ll1 7,ll6,S2l .a.61.1'1 l,.702,6SO 7,170,Ul 

Bl1ia£UaJ Ed:ucalion • lndnicdoa 
SabriH ofTcad>crs llll.872 .:un.nz {7021 {7021 101.110 10'U'70 )()J,170 303,170 
Gc:nml Sopplies 1.500 1.sno !B! ~g! U92 l,'92 1,,90 1.,90 

Total BHinpal Educaak)G .. lnilrvcdoo JOS.!72 lOS.\72 (710) (710) :m.&,"62 )Ot.<.to2 J.IM.660 30.a.«,o 

Sc1Md-Spoa. Cot11.rriadar Amit. .. l•IL 
Saw,cs ID,000 22l.<Ol (0191 (0191 211.111 21, .••• 209~1 209.J•I 
l'urdaaaScn- 20.000 lO.ln> (2,0001 12.0001 IS.ODO IS.000 10.l!I ID.l!I 
Odacr Ol,jcas 2.000 2.000 51.000, II OOOl 1000 um 911 ffl 

Tocal5c~CwofflC11luAffilL•I""- 2,s.000 2•s.mo (7.119) (7,8191 217,111 2)7,181 220.677 220.677 

~Mblctla - 1.oza.200 1.02a.2m ···- 49.009 1,077.209 1,077.109 972.811 972,111 
Pun:bascdScn- J09.U7 l09,U7 (60.9001 (60.9001 Hl,9117 2,u87 179.,11 17Mll 
5"pplicsandl\lmrials 103000 10)000 6,900 6900 109900 109.900 1111.08) 10808) 

Tolll School.Spon. Alhldlc, 1.Ul,087 I.Ul,017 1•.9911 <•.11911 1.•16.096 l,'36,096 1.260.)32 l,260,ll2 

Olh1r SappSrmnitarJ/At•Rilk Pro&nm. lnllnictloa 
S.latlcsof Radu,g Spcdllisu IM8.927 IMl1927 !l,71MI jl.71M! IMS11l! IMS.Ill 9"1271 9'4 271 

Total Olbcr Scipp ........ Ury/Al•llilk Pl'Oltl'IID• lollnKlicll, IMB,927 IMl,927 (l,71MI (l.71MI IMS.Ill IMS.Ill IIU.271 9'4,271 

Commalt)- Semen p._.-o,.n-
Soippl,csad Mmrials 1.000 l,000 l.000 l.000 

Ollia O>jocu S.500 HOO S.!00 ssoo 
Tocal~Scnka~ 1.500 a.,oo UIO a.soo 

TOTAL ~UCTION I SM 100 27.066.1•2 2&,9JD,2U 162.~ jl6U76! 1m6221 1.IDl.75' J61D21M lllW.620 I •n.0.1 26,161.7•5 21,m,'116 

UodlslrllNll<d~·IOII-
Twllon ID Odacr LEAs W;,Juo Ille Stale • Rqular 290,280 2!0,2811 (17'.0001 <m.0001 116.21D 116.280 n.JS9 11,)19 
Tulllon ID Olhcr LEAs Wilhin lhc 5lak • Spcct.tl 570,2<17 570,2</7 (7 •• 459) (7M591 •95,Sll •9S,lll •J0.210 ,10.210 
Tuldon ID C"""'Y V0<. Scbool Pill.• Rqular 173,6.o 173,6.o 9.170 9,170 1'2,810 112.110 Ill.BIO 112,110 
Tuldon ID Cowuy V0<. Scbool Pill. • Sp,dal 242.000 242,000 (30,680) (l0,6801 211)20 211,llO 191.125 191,125 
Tulllon ID CSSD &. Rcp,aal Day School, 6.07 6,,47 6,U1 6,U7 
Twllon o, Pm'ato Sc:boob ror Ille Dlllltlod. W111llo Sulc 6,513,421 6,Sll,Ul 121.617 121.617 6.662.0.0 6.662.0.0 6.SIM.'68 6.SIM,'68 
Twllon• SulcFKilitics 1491109 .. 91D! 149.IOI ••• aos 149llllll .. 91D! 

Toul Uodillrillalcd ~-bllnle11oe 7,959,UI 7.959,UI (1)0051 (ll',9051 7,SN_,.l 7.S24,5'l 7,611.110 7,631,lUO 
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Exblbi!C•II 
Pqo) 

N-T....a.lpSc-Dhulc1 
c.-.i,-

~c_.--
{Boclllftlll Bub) 

Y-Eadc,lhMJQ,JCIII 

Oridul -... flul 

lledl!! Tnadu. lledl!! Anul 
Oocnlia~ Binded Total Opna1ia: Binded T .. al 01)C:ra1iq Bkadcd T.W Oocnlla• ·- Total 
Fond 11-ll -- Gtacnl Fond 11-ll ......... Ccernl Fond 11-ll ......... Gcarnl Fond 11-ll ......... Gtacnl 

Eud I~ tilnd bid·~ bad t:lndJ,; bmi &m!I~ Ellnd 

Uodidrll>otrd E1prod. • Allmd. & S..lal Wark 
Salaries 2.000 2"'1.570 262.570 $ 700 $ 461 I.IM 2.700 $ 261,0}1 $ 26!,m 2.616 252.558 255.2.U 
Sala:rKI of Drop.Out PR,.-cntion OfflQCl'/('oordmaior 42.865 U.1165 8l SJ 42,948 U,948 42.948 U,941 
Olhcr Puo:hucd Scnicos 500 ""'' 1,lOO !lOOI 200 lOO 1.000 1,100 96) 96) 

Tolal Uadillribulrd E'IJICDd. • AIUad. & S..lal Wark 2.500 )CIU)5 106.715 500 7.U 1.24• ),000 )Ol,979 )07,979 2.616 296.469 299."5 

Uodlsl. E1"'°d. • Hnllb Scnkn 
Salaries •9.SOO 61!.)52 662.852 16.197 13.192 :19.589 65.897 626,5'' 092,.UI 62,251 605.952 668.lO) 
l'llrclwcd Piofcssiooal and Tcduucal Scnioel 2.500 2.500 2.500 2,500 720 720 
OIIICfl'llrclwcdSa\u,cs 7,000 7,000 1.500 1.500 8.500 l.500 I.OllO I.OllO 
s...,IJCS and Malmals 5.000 21.IOO 21.lOO 500 12.=1 !'·~! 5.500 2<1.896 26.196 5.121 20.5'6 lS.767 

T.-al Uodislrillol<d Eq,ni,lilllffl · H .. hli S.nkn 61.500 6)6.6S2 6'l11.152 18.397 ll.211$ )l.685 79.m 6'9.9W 729.8!7 75.$52 627.211 702.770 

t:nditl. E ........ · OdorrSoq,p. Srn-.5'ednm• RdalrdScn. - '25.0?7 •25.027 (37.0l7J (17.ll07J 317.9'0 117.9'0 Jl7.395 )&7.)95 
Pwchncd Pref~ .. £.ducat~ ScnKa .190.000 ,190.000 55'-556 55'.$56 1.6'".S!lei l,0U.S$l, l.o.M.$-.17 1.nu.s., 
~ICOandMac,iah 1.300 1.300 1.300 uoo US9 1.219 

T .. al 1/odl•L t:,prnd. • 0th..- S.,pp. Sen·. S-b · Hd.ard Sm-. 916.317 916.ll7 517,'69 517.'69 1,133.796 I.Hl.796 1.HJ.131 l.'11,lll 

U.ant E,l)l'Dd. • Cuidantt 
S&lirics ofOtb:r Prof:uioml Staff IJl{i6.l111 l,(l(;,6,2111 17.067 17.rw,7 1.0Sl.l~B 1.nu,1.aa 1,061,577 I.061,S77 
SaWIC'I or S«rclarul and Ckrial Assastan:is 1!7.lll 117.lll (I.IWlJ (1.11921 136.CUO 136.t»O 136,0IO l)MM4l 
Pu,dwcd Profcuion:d • EducatioDal Sen i«s 18.SllO 18,"10 "l,7t10 9,700 .18.lUO ,s.200 '8,0ll ,IA.OU 
Olhct Pun:hascd Scnicn 116,ftK• 11,, . .iiK• (18.1891 418.1891 98,211 98.211 ... 1•s 98,l9S 
Suppl ks and M•neori.a1s ,ll,750 U.750 i1,til0) l'J,20! 1,.uo u.no 3UM9 ].t,04'Jl 

Tu4•1 Undh,t. E,prnd. • Caidaacr 1 .. auo.0,11 l..&OIJ,4)6) (IHI (IHI l.l99.92V 1,,119.'Jl'I 1.377,90(1 l.l'7,901'J 

lllldl.t. F.1.1)fad. • C'bUd S1ud,-· THm 
Salaries o! Olhcr Profcuional sua 9(Al050 w.o.oso 110,083 110,0Bl 1,070.133 l,0711.131 l,069,JG6 1,(1(;9.~t.t. 
Salatin of Scnctuu! .and Clmcil AwllaN$ 202.220 l02.2lO (51.2'8) (,u,u. 1'41.980 150 ..... , 150,)89 ISOJSY 
Olhcr Pwmmcd Scnias J.750 1,750 ,.,so uio 2.0IS vu, 
M11Ullaacom. Pwdmtd Sc:nKCS 5.000 S.000 17,828 11.BlS ll.018 ll.128 20.9H J0,91\ 
SoioPl>«and~ ......... 6.8!0 6.8!0 1.1-11 ,., .. , J,1,.597 "·'" 13.W l),SU 

Olhcr(llojocts 1.000 l.lOJ 1.000 l,000 560 560 
T ... 11/ndbl. E,pn,d. • CbUd SlndJ y..,. 1.178.810 1.171.870 M.418 M.41& 1.161.lfl 1.261.lU 1.2S7.U7 1.157,127 

1/nditl. E1prnd. 0 l~cllasl.Scn. 
SalariUofSopcnitonofl- 271.6'8 271.6'8 192 192 271.UO 21!.UO 271.MO 27!.UU 
Sawics o!Olhcr ProC<S>ianal swr !06,000 !06.000 (l).IIOl ()l.llOI 272.820 m.&20 267,706 267.706 
SaluiaofSccmarial...SCkricllAuisUob '"·°"" .U.«,o 87 17 "'·"' U.7'7 .U.7'7 .U.7'7 ---.--Sen- Ul.500 Ul.500 (ll.lOl) (21,IIOlJ 116.698 116.691 127.72. 121.12, 

Olhcr - Scnica 2.000 l.000 2.000 2.000 95' 95' 
Soppli<s and Maiaw• 10.000 10.000 (l.000) (l.000) 1.000 1.000 I.Ill l.lll 
Olhorot,j<dl 17000 17000 17000 17000 U167 U.167 

ToC•I IJadiat. E:1pmd. • lmpl"Offmfflt r1 luL Sen. 1'7.101 '°'·"Ill Ill.IOI (1.721) (54.912) (56.70)) 1'5.517 '89.518 7'5.IOS )16.6'0 395.,10 712.070 

Uodbt. £1.,...L • Edu. Mrdi• Sr"'.ISdl. Ubrar,-
Sabrics 921.llll 92!,IOl (6l.OUJ (6),01,1) 860.089 860.089 816.671 116.671 
Sa;,plicsand Malcrills 46000 ~6000 j7 9<171 17 907! 3809) !809] )6768 l6 76& 

r ... 1 Uodlsl. E1pa,d.. EdL ~trdla Srn-./Scb. Uhnr,- 969.l<ll 969.10) (70.921) (70.921) 898,182 191.112 SSJ.'39 851.09 

1/ndllt. E1pa,d. • Sapp. Sm',. Ccernl Auala. - 62UI~ 62UU ll.721 )).721 6SS.9'2 6,S.9'2 6'9.l~I 6'9.)41 

l-1Scnica 100.000 100.000 105.500 IOS.500 205.,00 20,.soo 200.577 200.577 
Aaddl'ca 72.000 72.000 1.000 1.000 71.000 7),000 72.91' 72.9U 
~Sa\ica li.000 25.000 llO.OOCll (20.000) ,.ooo ,.ooo 
-TcclmicalSa\ica l6.500 36.500 (l.500) (IJOOJ 1,.000 JS.000 ll.112 Jl.lU 
C iom/Tdeploonr l'IS.500 171.500 (61,7001 (61,700) 116.IOO 116.IOO 109.091 109.091 
llcmd afEduowao OIIICf-Scnica 7.IOO 7,IOO 11.5001 11.soo, 6.300 6.)00 ,1,687 .a.611 
--Sa\ica 171.1)6' 171.1)6' 1.319 1.)19 172.ISJ 172.ISJ 167,0)7 167.017 
Oaia.lSl:i,plla 29.500 29.500 2.000 2.000 ll.500 Jl.500 25.)70 lS,)10 
llcmdof--~~ics 7.000 7,000 11.5001 (1.5001 5.500 5.500 J.129 l.129 --~ ,.aoo 1.aoo 12.0001 (2,000) 5.SOO 5.aoo .a • .al9 ~.m 
llcmdof-DucsamF«s ,16.000 ,16000 jl.500! 11,soo1 11,soo l7500 n 1.aa9 i,m 

T.-al Uodlsl. !sprad. • S.,pp. Sr", • Gcarnl Admlo. I.JOl.371 1.JOJ.371 ,16.1,17 ,16.8'7 1.350.llS I.JS0.22S 1.io.a.,137 l.l<M,'17 
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E>hibi1C0 la 
Pap• 

~T....i.lp-Dblrid 
Cc,wnJ l'a,I .... _.,c ___ 

(llod-r, Bm) 
Yat Eadtlt Jaat JO. ZOii 

Orlpnal U..da<t Flul 
Budl!! Tnnd'c-n 8udl!! A< .. al 

Oprra1lns Bkod<d Tol1I 0D1'ralin1 Bltndrd Total OpcntiD• Bltoolrd Tol1I Oprntin1 Blended Tol1I 
Fund Jl•IJ RclOUrtc Gfntnl FondlMJ ......... Gcn:rnl Foad llolJ -... Gtacn! Fundll•U Rttoarce Gfacnl 

£11~1~ Eaad Enndllli [nn~ [ll!t:11 I~ Er!nd Eund llli find 

lladl'1. E1pea4. • S..ppon S.n-. • School Admln. 
SaJaricl o(Prinap.h/AuilWll Principal, 1,712.0S 1.73U7S s s s l.71U77 1.7lU77 1.663.323 1.66),)2) 
Sa1mcs. O.hcr Pror.......i s..ir 6U.SS2 643.SS2 9,9W, 9,996 6S3.S'S 6S3.SU 6:I0.60 6)0,64) 
SaJariclo(SccrCUNJ andClcrical Aslubnts s ll,000 672.6S4 693.6S-I s 2.015 2ro U7S 2J.OIS 672.914 69S,929 s 19.IOS 672.0lll 691,IU 
O.hcr fuldwcd Sen,"" 61.SlCl 63.SSO (1.$11) (1.Sll) 61.017 61,0J7 SU27 S-1.227 

s.i.,l,a and ~- S0.6ll S0,631 Ill Ill S0.7ro S0.700 '6,992 .U..992 
O,hcrOl>tc<tJ l.7tll 1,100 j292t 1m1 I .... 1 . ..is 216 216 

Tolll lladbL E>pn,d. • 5eppolr Sen-.• Sdlool Admlo. 21.000 ).IM.'<o) l.lSS.56) l.OIS 7.'31 9,S96 2l.OU J.17l.l.U l,19S.IS9 l9.20S l.06Ul9 J.OM.6U 

1/ndhi. E>pn,d. • Cntnl Sonka - 791.lSI 791.lSI (65.073) (65,073) 726.l<Ja n6.30S 726.!07 726.!07 
Pmdwcd T«hnk:al Scniccs ll.439 ll.'39 871 171 H.310 JUIO H,llU 14,110 
Mis,; Pwch,:iscd Sm,ccs 46."IO 46.lCll (11.t .. l) (13,000) l),lCll )).lCll 15,8'7 IS,1'7 
Suppbc1 and Malm;a;l1 7.000 7.000 1•111 {!71) 6.12~ 6.129 l,l.irt 1.l.10 

Total UndJt.1. Eitwnd. • Central 5£nitcs 171.310 •78.llO ,, •. 071) (78,073) l!00.2'7 800.2'7 779,l!IJ.I 779.Btll 

Undid. E1pr11d, • TtthDOlo2)' Adml11. 
S.l.a1ks 119.lll l39.lll ·"·'" 19.SIS lSS.•l• lSS.836 )58,K)l l.511,Kl~ 
Purdui.cd T«hnlal Scnit1CS 100.000 IOOJIOO ,. ss 100,0SH IOOJJSS bl,RlS 61,11SS 
Tnntl 8.000 11.0CIO ,,.ono) (S.000) ),000 3.000 l.~B,& 1.18' 
~1n.md Ma1mal-s JS.mo )S.000 l!l.0011 ll.000 U,7\t, l!.1ll, 

Tc;cat IJadisi.E,pm,4. - Ttdl~ Admla. .as2.121 -182311 1.a.'-n U.513 496.19.& .a%.S9-I uo.nto uo.010 

L'adkt. E,,-..4. • lwqaim:I Maid. for Sch. Facil 
S.brin .&)S.Zll '1012 l.a.a HU .Ul.)16 .Ul.)16 ,,x.uu .a;x.1111 
Cb.amt. Rep.air ~t.d ~14:sll".cm.u Scl'l-ia:s 2.19S.lil•• l'.191.0llO 19.l.~•j 19'.)00 2.)92.~lJ l.;9JJOO !.lll,lU 2.111 ''" 
Gcncr•I s.,,pla<> 209.lllO 109.000 l,l4ll uoo 110.l<a) 210.l<lll u,.,,: ISUll 

O,hcr °"""' l?.tn, l7J•.:t l(J>ll ),DOD 'JO(l(l) 10.0lll l9 ~1,. 29.51(, 

Total l'ndiat. t:,pn:id. • RnpimS M&Ult. tor SdL F«i1 U7Hl2 2.872.0)l 1u2.ou 201.llU l,07.&.916 ).074.916 2.1,J}OJlll 2.910,lal 

Uadi,L E,pnd. • Cudadlal S.nkfl 
S..l.attn l.6)1.Dl5 2.611,025 IIS.71K IIS.718 2.7'6,74' 2.7'6,7'3 2.1m.90-.& 2,700.•,0,l 

Ck11ning, ktp.:ur jlJld M.a~n:1,e,11,;;u~ Stn ~ ~.uoo 90.000 l"l,lklO 19.000 109,000 109,000 91.Xi~l 91.11170 

Qh« PurdWQd hope~· Sen i~ 123.600 123,600 (2.7116) (2.786) 1211.•u 120,814 11'7.]97 117.1'7 
bauuncc 362.27' l6l,l74 (21.14l) (21,IU) 341,129 1'1.129 !41.llK 1'1.ll• 
Gtnenal Suppli:CS 205,000 20S.OOO 6Jl00 6,000 211,0llO 211,000 l9J.5')'il 192.S69 
N11ural0.1s 314.000 114,000 (12,000) (12,000) 302,000 302.000 269.414 269.41l 
£lec:t:nd1) 2.os,.000 2.0S4.ooo p11.0001 jlll.000! l.Ul,000 I.IU.000 1,589.71" l.!19.718 

Toc1l l/adl11. £1pn,d.. Oldoollll Senlm S,779,899 S,779,199 (106.213) (106.213) S,673,686 S.671,61!6 S,!D).020 S,)OJ.OlO 

Vndhi. Elpn,d. •Caruad 1/pi.«pofG-
Cl<aoll>&. ltqmr and MaimmaDa, Sen-ices 114,000 111.000 17.6691 (7.669} I06.Jll I06.lll 110.ros 110.ros 
Gcnml s.i.,l,a 20.000 20.000 6.931 6.9ll 26.9!2 26.9)1 2'642 21642 

Tolll lladbl. Eq,nd.•C1n,aad l/""-GfGrooa4> na.ooo S34.000 (737) m1J lll.263 Sll.263 7JS.2'7 7ls.217 

1/adbl. Elpn,d.. s...rtt, - l,000 '6Mll '65,ISI 16.111 16.111 2,000 479,619 '81,619 m 179,112 479,!)7 
Pllr<lwcd l'rof<utonal & Tcdmrc:a) Sc:mcn ro.ooo l0,000 80,000 ro.ooo 20.000 I0.000 l9,9Sl 20,000 S9,9Sl 
OcrlmlSu;,piles 20.000 7,800 27.800 2.6'7 2.047 20000 9U7 l9.U7 ll 72) 9,704 2H27 

Total lJ•dbt. £1pnd. • Scnrit:7 SJ.000 191,251 S7l.2SI II.US 18.l!S 82,000 m ... 86 S91,"6 Sl.901 503,816 S61.717 

UadJsL E1pcnd. • SWdtat Truspartalion Sen. 
SalariOI r« l'lq,il Tram. (Ball ... Home: & S<bool) • Rqular 128.261 128.26) ()98) ()98) 117.865 ll7,86S 127,66S 127,66S 
Olhcr furchascd l'rafouloul and Tecbnical Scniccs 1,soo l.lCll '·""' a.soo ··""' '·""' Coll1ncl<d Scnm Aid In Uca oCl'a)"""' for Non-,ul>llc School Sludcllll '4,000 11.000 (20,000) (20,000) 24,000 21.000 19.199 19,199 
CGnuaaed Scnm Aid lo u..orl'a) ....... for Chana Sdlool Sllldmu 1,700 1.700 (1,100) (1,700) 
CGnuaaed Scnm (1lcn,un Home and Sdlool) • Vcndon 1.127,IU 1.)27,US (190,69)) (190.693) 1.136.7!2 l.ll6.7l2 1.012.oas I.Oll,OIS 
C--.IIScnm(Olhcrllwl llcnl-HomcaadScllool)• Vcndon I.SOO 261.aoo 262,900 372 (1.915) (l.5'J) 1,872 2S9.IIS 261,357 1.172 20.111 2.U.,913 
eom-cd Scn-(Sp. E.d.J. Vmdon l.2JO.OOO 1.130.000 160.721 160.728 1.)90.ffl 1.)90.728 l,36S.173 l,!6S.17) 
-5";,t,IICS S,!!!! S.300 1,025 l.02S 6.)25 6.3U 1,117 l.117 

Tolll l/odis1. Eq,nd. --y._......Scn-. l.712.611 261,IOO 3.oo&Jl8S (S0.666) (UIS) (Sl.581) l.692.0ll 259.'85 l.951.S07 UIS.NI US,111 l.7IO.IS2 
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E>liibi!C•II 
Pai:< 5 

~T..-..lllp--
CcmnlfaN 

~c-p.,um-~-, 
YnrEedcdJ-Jo.ZOII 

Orillul lladzd fiul 

IIDdl!! Trud'rn Bad!!! Adal 
ODCfttln:t Binded T'"al Ooicn:tlati Blalded Toul 0..,..1 .. Blcoded Toe&! Oacn1ma Bkaded Total 
Fuod 11-13 -- ~Mnl fud fl.lJ -- GcNnl Fuodll-lJ -- Gtctral Fuod ll-lJ -- Ccacnl 

find J!II ba;d (end I~ Eu:a!il f!an:IIJ!li b!ld Elad J!II fllml 

Ua.hocatrd Bmtnt1 
Social s«urit) Contnbutions $ 697.!00 $ JU,1191 $ 1,11)9,591 50.000 5.)95 55,)95 $ 7J7.500 $ JJHS6 l,119J,986 7U,lH )J7,106 l,O'lCl,J9J 

Other Rdlremcn1 Coouil•nlcms • PERS 894.IIJ6 894,IIJ6 80.(IOIJ l!0,000 97J,IIJ6 97J,II#> 971,7!6 971,7)6 
Workr:nen'1 Compcma2ion 41!0.9l6 4l!0,9l6 2U61 2U61 505.797 5115,797 505,7U 505,7U 
Health Bcndils 971.000 11.700,000 12.671,l•JO I.B69.ll9 (2,181, 700) (411.1161) 2.U0.839 9.Jls.JOO 12,259,1!9 l,!6).852 9.418,300 I0.982,152 
Tui.ooa Rcamb.~n1 l0,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 5.555 5.m 
O,hct Emi>lo,<ClkadilS 700000 700000 1201.0001 fl07,600t Sl2,JOO 552 . .&00 J77.S29 07,529 

Tfillal Uutlotalcctl Bmdirs l.lll,Jal 12.IIJl,091 l5,B6l.S7l I.Bl7.IOO (2,276.305) (J59,?05) 5.M0.512 9,765,716 15,,106,)611 U67.M4 9.765,.uJ6 l'.Oll.250 

0.-Coctrikllau 
TPAFl'<mloo(o..-Bcbalf·~l uu.:zm J,)U,ll)J 

TPAF-C-.oos---...-Mcdo<:lltOr,.llch,ll• 
Noo-Budictcdl 2.IJI.Mi 2.131.~ 

TPAF Pcruioo Cootnlluuoos. Looi:•Tcnn Disabilo, 1.,.,._., 10n-lleh,lf. 
Noo-lludpt,dl 5.lU 5,2U 

llc,m,ncdTPAFSocul ScmntyC---.(~<dl 2.27).6!6 2.273,656 

ToulOo-bdlalfC°"t-lam U9J.767 9,J94,767 

TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTI:D EXPENDITURES 29.2A5.R7l 19.1lJ.B58 '4Y.Ol9,7JI J.)H.OB!i'I tl.31...a .. ,091 pl.Jll! Jl,r.16,961 17.169.JJ9 .48.VRI, '410 11.599.'705 17.137.234 SS.716,919 

TOTAL Cl:NERAL CURRENT EXPENSE ;1.1,0.,n .J6.S1l0.t:NIO 7'7.Y-19,9'n U6!1.7'2 (2.627.685) <JS•.9J1) Jl.U•.715 Rl7Ul5 71.$91.nJn .a.o,07J.7,16 U,J9B.979 ll,571.715 

('APIT Al, OUTI.A Y 
Equll)fflfAI 
Rt~br Pruuam,.lnstn:idfon: 

Grodc>M 78.JJJ 7K.JJ4 78..&,U 1u,, 7UJJ 71",4,U. 
Gr:Mtnt.-8 J.& . .19) \.J . .&9J '.\4..&9) H.t9l lU9l H,4',1\ 

Undblribukd E1pn:idUuR"11: 
Und,S111bu!cd E-.:p .("usaodial Scnttn ~0.2"6 SO,l.U, ~12,1,, SIU.U> ~>.HG '41.2.&t, 

To1alEqulpmn1t !41.2'6 112.•37 lt.l,11Ll !,rt,l'"6 lll.917 l<,l.lSl !>(J,lU. lll.937 IM.lll~ 

FacHUin AcqohJdU11 •D4 C~ndKIII xnlt'n 
A~tua«l1;1J'al.'En,anecnn1, Scnicn 200.010 l'00.000 2,s .. ,u> 1s,.,01 ,ss.w; '"·"'' 2$1.1?6 l'Sl.\26 
Cor:uaNcuon kn"'" 2.000000 JOCIOCH) 2.IM,12.1 J,lt,-1 Ul .a 16'.IU 4.161.121 1.·1u9_,10 2.'7'09 "'° 

Tue8' F•dHtin ~lilb:I •ad CC!Dllnct:ioa Sc-nkn, 2.200.000 J.lCIOOIJO Hl9.526 UI..Sl<, ,1619.S26 U.19.526 2.961.1% l.W.1.196 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2.200.000 2.200.000 2,469.nl 112.917 2.SA2.'IIW U69.n2 lll.937 ,.112,,.,. l.012.IU 112.917 l.125,019 c---.. Claa-St- 1.007.011 1007011 '1l.58S Jll!U Ul!,599 Ul!.599 IJll.965 1 l&l,905 
Total Gnwnl FDDd E1Ptadjt11m 1.007.011 1,001,011 '11.SAI ,11.,11 I.U5,599 1,425.599 1.112.965 l.llll,905 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES )'-156.984 .16.BOO.noo 11,156,984 5.151.102 1u1,.1,81 2.6J2,lS4 l9
0
5UOA6 .U.285.252 ai,1w 11a JJ,467.l!l U.611.916 Al,079,769 

(Dtfk'mtJ) E1eru of Ac,'tn:ita (Undtr) o,·tr E11>tndhun1 ,i,m.ooo jJ6 800000) jH.650001 j!,657, 102! 2.51"748 !l,1Jl,l'41 l6,J77,193 jJJ,211,252) 17,I07.l541 J2.l7Hl2 jJl&ll.9161 11,21a,,ID11 

Oabrr FlauclniSoumt (U,a): 
Tramfa In. Contribu1ion 10 school based budiicu· OF .U.985.000 ••• 985,000 J2.,lJ,252 Jl,53J,2Sl '1,876,329 Jl.876,)29 
Tnrufe1 In • Contribution 10 school based budiiru- SRF 1,815.000 I.BIMOO (64,000) (6J,OCNI) 1,751.000 1,751,000 1,735,587 1,735,587 
Trllllfa CUI • Contn'llulioa IO M:hool based~ (44.9115.000) (.U.985,IJOO) 2.4511.748 2.,so.,a (JUlU52) (42.5lU521 (41.176,129) (Jl,876,)29) 

Tnnsfcr ct cncwnbiana:s UH76 UU76 
Total OIiier Floaoda• Sar11u1 (U .. ) (JJ.985,000) 46,I00,000 1.115,000 2.316.7'8 2.lll6.7JI (42.5;U52) .U.285.252 1.751.00CI ('1,0ll,15)) 42.769,.UO 1,7)5,517 

(DcflclcocJ)E1-afllnnaa 
(U.....,0.fl'Espmdh,unad O.-r.....;az-(U,a) (2,l!0,000) (2,150,000) (U70.l'4l 2.51'.7Ja (755,006) (6.056.lSII (6,056.lSI) 1.ll9,659 (Ul.476) J97,IIJ 

....... ,.-.J.i,1 U.92Ull U!,476 15 770,6IJ 1'9ll.131 MU76 15 77061' 14921131 U!,'76 15,770.61' -·----JO 12.078.lll s UU76 12,920.61' 1),210.3~} s 2.51'.Ul s g,s!t.06! s l.1'1111&1 s Ul.'76 s 9.71Ul,O s 16.267.797 s s 16,2£7,797 
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Neptune Township School District 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and 
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures 

General 
Fund 

Sources/inflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 86,841,365 

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP: 

State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, 
not recognized for GAAP statements. 

Prior year 3,240,782 
Current year (3 1172,44 7) 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental 
funds (B-2) $ 86,909,700 

Uses/outflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 88,079,769 

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP: 

Transfers to other funds are presented as outflows of 
budgetary resources but are not expenditures 
for financial reporting purposes. 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental 
funds (B-2) $ 88,079,769 

C-3 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ 7,818,944 

534,576 
(515,602) 

$ 7,837,918 

$ 7,818,944 

(1,735,587) 

$ 6,083,357 
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Other Supplementary Information 



School Based Budget Schedules 



Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interfund receivable 

Neptune Township School District 
General Fund 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2018 

Operating 
Fund 

Fund 11-13 

$ 2,171,880 
376,069 

Intergovernmental accounts receivable-federal 3,737 
Intergovernmental accounts receivable-state 3,882,969 
Other accounts receivable 1,206,990 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 9,112,815 
Total assets $ 1627542460 

Liabilities and fund balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 472,320 
Interfund Payable 14,343 

Total liabilities 486,663 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for: 

Excess surplus current year 2,000,000 
Maintenance reserve 1,798,000 
Capital reserve 7,314,815 

Assigned to: 
Designated 2,106,287 
Year-end Encumbrances 1,469,739 

Unassigned 1,578,956 
Total fund balances 16,267,797 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1627542460 

D-1 

Blended Total 
Resource General 
Fund 15 Fund 

$ 32,699 $ 2,204,579 
376,069 

3,737 
3,882,969 
1,206,990 

9,112,815 
$ 322699 $ 1627872159 

$ 32,699 $ 505,019 
14,343 

32,699 519,362 

2,000,000 
1,798,000 
7,314,815 

2,106,287 
1,469,739 
1,578,956 

16,267,797 
$ 322699 $ 1627872159 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

District-wide 

Resource 
Resources Amount 

General Fund Contribution $ 41,373,224 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances al June 30, 2017 1,161.028 

General Fund Contribution 42.534.252 

Restricled Federal Resources: 
Title I, Pan A: NCLB 680,000 

Title II, Part A: NCLB 111,000 

IDEIA, Part B 960,000 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 1,751.000 

Total $ 44,285,252 

Blended% 
of Total 

Resources 

96.36% 

1.27 

0.35 

2.02 
3.64 

I00.00% 

Total 
Expenditures 
Allocated as a 

$ 

% of Total 
Resources 

40,715,301 
1,161,028 

41,876,329 

673,503 

t I0,348 

951,736 
1,735,587 

$ 43,611,916 

$ 

0-2 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

657,923 

657,923 

6,497 

652 

8,264 
15,413 

S 673,336 
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D-2a 

Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Midtown Communitt Elementao: School 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended% Allocated as a Total 

Resource of Total % of Total Surplus/ 
Resources Amount Resources Resources Carryover 

General Fund Contribution $ 4,206,870 $ 4,199,782 $ 7,088 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 171,933 171,933 

General Fund Contribution 4.378.803 93.05% 4,371,715 7.088 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A: NCLB 171,723 3.66 171,445 278 

Title II, Part A: NCLB 18.436 0.39 18,406 30 

IDEIA, Part B 137.088 2.90 136,866 222 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 327.247 6.95 326,717 530 

Total s 4.706.050 I00.00% $ 4,698,432 $ 7,618 
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D-2b 

Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Gables Elementao: School 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended% Allocated as a Total 

Resource ofTotal % of Total Surplus/ 
Resources Amount Resources Resources Carryover 

General Fund Contribution $ 2,870,368 $ 2,866,724 $ 3,644 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 52.736 52,736 

General Fund Contribution 2.923.!04 92.34% 2,919,460 3,644 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A: NCLB 87.091 2.75 86,982 I09 

Title II, Part A: NCLB 18,436 0.58 18,413 23 

IDEIA, Part B 137,088 4.33 136,917 171 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 242.615 7.66 242,312 303 

Total $ 3,165.719 100.00% $ 3,161,772 $ 3,947 
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D-2c 

Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Green Grove Elementao: Schgol 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended% Allocated as a Total 

Resource of Total °/oofTotal Surplus/ 
Resources Amount Resources Resources Carryover 

General Fund Contribution $ 3,215,423 $ 3,209,908 $ 5,515 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 124.243 124,243 

General Fund Contribution 3.339.666 92.83% 3,334,151 5,515 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A: NCLB 102,554 2.84 102,385 169 

Title II, Part A: NCLB 18,436 0.51 18,406 30 

IDEIA, Part B 137,088 3.82 136,862 226 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 258,078 7.17 257,653 425 

Total s 3.597.744 100.00% s 3,591,804 $ 5,940 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Shark River Hills Elementary School 

Resources 

General Fund Contribution $ 

General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 

General Fund Contribution 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title II, Part A: NCLB 

lDEIA, Part B 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 

Total $ 

Resource 
Amount 

2.859,401 
70.980 

2,930.381 

18,436 

137,088 
155,524 

3.085.905 

Blended% 
of Total 

Resources 

94.96% 

0.60 

4.44 
5.04 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures 
Allocated as a 

% of Total 
Resources 

$ 2,855,479 
70,980 

2,926,459 

18,411 

136,904 
155,315 

$ 3,081,774 

$ 

$ 

D-2d 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

3,922 

3,922 

25 

184 
209 

4,131 
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D-2e 

Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type -Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Summerfield Elementao: School 
Total 

Expenditures 
Blended% Allocated as a Total 

Resource ofTotal % of Total Surplus/ 
Resources Amount Resources Resources Carryover 

General Fund Contribution $ 4.472.558 $ 4.458,351 $ 14,207 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 !03,590 !03,590 

General Fund Contribution 4.576,148 94.69% 4,561,941 14,207 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A: NCLB IOl,332 2.09 101,017 315 

Title II, Part A: NCLB 18,436 0.38 18,379 57 

IDEIA, Part B 137,088 2.84 136,662 426 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 256,856 5.31 256,058 798 

Total s 4.833,004 I00.00% s 4,817,999 $ 15,005 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type -Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Neptune Middle ~chool 

Resource 
Resources Amount 

General Fund Contribution $ 9,558,556 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 236,112 

General Fund Contribution 9.794.668 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
Title I, Part A: NCLB 217,300 

Title II, Part A: NCLB 18,820 

IDEIA, Part B 137,088 
Restricted Federal Resources Total 373,208 

Total s 10.167,876 

Blended% 
of Total 

Resources 

96.33% 

2.13 

0.19 

1.35 
3.67 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures 
Allocated as a 

% of Total 
Resources 

$ 9,304,981 
236,112 

9,541,093 

211,674 

18,333 

133,539 
363,546 

s 9,904,639 

D-2f 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 253,575 

253,575 

5,626 

487 

3,549 
9,662 

$ 263,237 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Expenditures Allocated by Resource Type - Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Neptune High School 

Resource 
Resources Amount 

General Fund Contribution $ 14,190,048 
General Fund Reserve for Encumbrances at June 30, 2017 401,434 

General Fund Contribution 14.591.482 

Restricted Federal Resources: 
IDEIA, Part B 137,472 

Restricted Federal Resources Total 137,472 

Total $ 14,728,954 

Blended o/o 
of Total 

Resources 

99.07% 

0.93 
0.93 

100.00% 

Total 
Expenditures 
Allocated as a 

o/o of Total 
Resources 

$ 13,820,076 
401,434 

14,221,510 

133,986 
133,986 

$ 14,355,496 

D-2g 

Total 
Surplus/ 

Carryover 

$ 369,972 

369,972 

3,486 
3.486 

$ 373,458 
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1).3 
p. I 

Ncplunc Tol\nship School District 
Blended Resource Fund IS 

Schedule of Blended Expcndimres 
Budgel and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
District-Wide BudGd Transrers Budget Esl!endltum Variance 
Espendltures 
Current: 

Ins1n1Ction • rtgular programs· 
Salaries ofTeachcn: 

Kindergonm s 1,039,4(,9 s (187,999) S 851,470 s 851,470 
Gncks •• 5 S,384,207 166.201 S,SS0,408 S,S49,788 s 620 
Gncks6°S 3,920,496 (394,369) 3,526.127 3,520,930 S,197 
Gncks9-12 S,129,179 (182.011) 4,947,168 4,878,S2S 68,643 

Unclistnbutocl 1-..caon 
Odicr Salaries oflnsuuaion 400,022 (49,138) 3S0,884 3S0,38S 499 
l'uJdwcd Professional & Educ:alional Services 220,113 (30,286) 189,827 179,204 10,623 
l'uJdwcd Tcdmical Seniccs 280,533 81,S24 362,0S7 34S,402 16,6SS 
Odicr l'uJdwcd Services 398,000 57,117 4SS,117 44S,802 9,31S 
Oenetal Supplies S92.IS2 4S,7S8 637,910 608,136 29,774 
Tcxlboob 111,183 40,866 IS2,049 ISl,236 813 
Olhct Objoas 43.860 8,694 S2,SS4 48.247 4 307 

TOlal Regular Programs 17,S19,214 (443,643) 17,07S,S71 16,929,125 146,446 

J.cami,,g wllor Lanauas• Disahilitles: 
Salaries ofTeadters 71 S,I S7 18,590 733,747 733,747 
Other S&latios of lnslnletion 274.945 61,601 336,546 336,S4S 
Purchased Professional & Educational Sorviccs 77,800 20.l6S 98,16S 98,16S 
Other Pwcha.sed Services 1,4SO 778 2,228 2,228 
Gmoral Supplies S.JOO 23,196 28496 28496 

TOlal Laming and/o, Longuage Dis&bilitles 1,074,652 124,530 1,199,182 1,199,181 

Audito,y lffljWffllffll$: 
Salaries ofTtodlcrs 756,010 (22,810) 733,200 730,669 2,S31 
Odicr Salaries of lns1nlcuon 435,880 (13,719) 422,161 417,246 4,91S 
l'lilchascd l'lofossioml I: EdU<alion&I Services 9,000 9,000 9,000 
Olhcr PwdllScd Sernca 40,700 (17,000) 23,700 22,304 1,396 
Gcnenl Supplia 12.000 !4,000! 8.000 6,962 1,038 

Taul Audito,y lmpairmaus l.2S3,S90 (S7,S29) 1,196,061 1,186,181 9,880 

Bd,a\'icnl Diulrilulcs· 

Sal&ries of Ttodlcrs 161.871 4,603 166.474 166,474 
Odicr Salaries of lnslnlC1ion 48,117 (2,431) 45,686 4S,S74 112 
Pwcha.sed Professional & Edualional Servias 800 800 800 
Gmoral Supplies 1,000 I 000 963 37 

Toll! Behavioral Disobilitles 211,788 2.172 213,960 213,811 149 

Multiple Disaholitlos· 
SllllriesofTeuhm 410,461 (6,763) 403,698 403,138 S60 
Olher S&luies oflnslnlclion 2S4,433 5,464 259,897 211,143 48,7S4 
Gcnorol Supplies 2,500 2,000 4,500 4432 6S 

Taul Multiple Disabilities 667,394 701 668,09S 618,713 49,382 

Resowcc Roomlllesoutcc Cenm: 
Saluics of Teadters 3.l<,H.S22 114,105 3,282.627 3,241,045 41,582 
Odicr Salaries of lnsUuaton 218,0% 10,202 228.298 227,792 S06 
General Supplies 12.500 J,SOO 16.000 IS 9S7 43 

Total Raowce Room'RCSOIIJ<c Center 3.399.118 127.807 3,526.925 3.484 794 42131 
Taul Spocw EdUCa!IOn 6,606,S42 197.681 6,804.223 6,702,680 JOl,S43 

Bihngual Ed-
Salaries ofTachers 303,872 (702) 303,170 303,170 
Oenetal Supplies I.SOO !8! 1,492 1,490 2 

Taul Bilingual Educalicn 305,372 (710) 304,662 304,660 2 
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D-3 
p.2 

Neptune T01mship School Dislrict 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Sd1edule of Blended Expenditures 
Budg~'I and Actual 

Yw ended June 30. 2018 

Orlglnal Final 
District• Wide Budget Transrcn Budget Esj!!ndltum Variance 

School Sponscred Co-cwricular Activities 
Salaries s 223,000 s (4,819) s 218,181 s 209,341 s 8,840 

l'lllchased Suvices 20,000 (2,000) 18,000 10,351 7,649 

Olhu Objects 2.000 jl.000! 1,000 98S IS 
Tel11 School Sponsored Co-curricular Activities 24S.OOO (7,819) 237,181 220,677 16,504 

School Sponscred Adtldics: 
Salaries 1,028,200 49,009 1,077,209 972,811 104,398 
Pl!rdmed Senica (JOO-jOC) series) 309,887 (60,900) 248,987 179,438 · 69,549 
Supplies and llla!erials 103.000 6,900 109.900 108,083 1817 

Total School Sponscred Adtldics 1,441,087 (4,991) 1,436,096 1,260,332 175,764 

Other Supplemenw/At•Risk Progroms • lnstniction: 
Saluiesof~Specialists 948,927 (3,794l 945,133 944,271 862 

Total Olhu S•pplomcnlal/At•Risk Progroms, lnstruclion 948,927 (3,794l 945.133 944il71 862 
Total Instruction 27,066,142 (263,276) 26,802,866 26,361,745 441,121 

Attcnd&nce and Social Work Services: 
Salaries 260,570 461 261,031 252,558 8,473 

Salaries or Drop Ou! PrC\'fflllon Officcr Coonlinalo< 42,865 83 42,948 42,948 
Othu Purdwed Senices 800 200 1.000 963 37 

Total Allcndancc 111d Social Work Services 304,235 744 304,979 296,469 8,510 

Heal1h Services: 
Sal:uios 613,352 13,192 626,544 605,952 20,592 
l'llrclwed Professional ond T cdu,iul Services 2,500 2,SOO 720 1,780 

S11PPlics ond Materials 23.300 (2.404l 20,896 20,546 350 
Tolll Heal1h Suvices 636,652 13,288 649,940 627,218 22,722 

Gllidance: 
Salaries m01her Professional Sl&lf 1,066.281 17.067 1,083,348 1,061,577 21,771 
Salaries orSecrewia1 and Cltrical AsR>unts 137.132 (1.092) 136,040 136,040 
Pwdmecl Protessional • Educalional Senices 38.SOO 9,700 48,200 48,042 158 
Othu Purdwed Services I 16,400 (18,189) 98,211 98,198 13 
Sll!'l'lies and Mllfflals 41.7SO (7.620! 34,130 34,049 81 

Total Cl,,id,nce 1,400,063 (134) 1,399,929 1,377,906 22,023 

Improvement of lnstniction Services" 
Salaries ofOlhcr Professional Stoff 306,000 (33,180) 272,820 267,706 5,114 
Pwclwed Professional -Edoce1ion Services 158,500 (21,802) 136 698 127,724 8974 

Totalffllf'IO''efflffltOflnsuuctionSe,vices 464,500 (54,982) 409,518 395,430 14,088 

EducsJicnal llledia/1..d,ruy Services 
Salaries 923.103 (63,014) 860,089 816,671 43,418 
S"l'Pfies znd t,'-ia]s 46,000 (7.907! 38.093 36,768 IJ2S 

Total Educational Media/1..ibruy Services 969,103 (70,921) 898,182 853,439 44,743 

Soppon Smices - School AdmWstration" 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Direciors 1,732,475 2 1,732,477 1,663,323 69,154 
Salaries of Olhff Professional StalT 643,552 9.996 653,548 630,643 22,905 
Salaries of Sccrewial and Clerical Assistants 672,654 260 672,914 672,038 876 
Other PIITdmcd Services (400-500 series) 63.550 (2,513) 61,037 54,227 6,810 
SIIIJJllies ond M&laials 50.632 128 S0,760 46,992 3,768 
Othcr Objects 1.700 (292! 1,408 216 1,192 

Total Soppon Seniccs - School Administnlion 3,164.563 7,581 3,172,144 3,067,439 104,705 
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p. 3 

Ncplunc Townshi11 School Dis1ric1 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule ofBlcnded Expenditures 
Budget and AClual 

Year ended June30, 2018 

Ori1:in11l Final 
Dlslrict-Wlde Budget Tnmsfcn Bud1e1 E11!endlturcs Variance 

Seauity. 
Salaries $ 463,451 s 16,188 $ 479,639 $ 479,112 $ 527 
Purdwed Professicnal ond Technical Services 20,000 20,000 20,000 
General Supplies 7.800 2 047 9 847 9704 143 

Total Security 491.2Sl 18,235 509,486 508,816 670 

SIUdml Trm,sponalian Seruces: 
C...-.ed S<l'ut:0 -Tnnq,o,wion (Olhcr INn --Heme and Sdiool)- Vendors 261.400 11.915) 259485 24S Ill 14.374 

Tctal Slud<,u Transpo,wion S<l''ica 261.400 (1.915) 2S9,48S 24S.III 14,374 

Unallocated Benefits: 

Social Security Conlributions 342,091 S,395 347,486 347,106 380 
Health Benefits 11,700,000 !2,281.700! 9,418,300 91418,300 

Total Unallocated Benefits 12,042,091 (2.276,305! 9,765,786 9,765,406 380 
To1al Undistributed E•penditures 19,733,858 (2.364,409! 17,369,449 171137,234 232,21S 

Total E,cpcnditures • Cwrent 46,800,000 (2,627,685) 44,172,315 43,498,979 673,336 

Capital Outlay 

l:quipm,,,L 
llcgulM Ptogqms- lnsmidion 

<irides 1-5 78,444 78.444 78,444 
<irides 6-8 34.493 34.493 34.493 

Tctal Equipment 112.937 112 937 112.937 
Total Cll)ital Outlay 112,937 112 937 112937 

Total E>cpcndinlrcs • Scllool Based 46,800,000 !2,5 14, 748! 44128S12S2 43,611.916 673,336 

Other financing Sources: 
Transf ... ln 46,800,000 (2,514, 748! 44,2BS,2S2 431611.916 673,336 

Total 0th« Filllll<ing Sources 46,800,000 (2,514.7481 44,28S,2S2 43,611,916 673,336 

EKccss (Dclicia,;y) o!Othcr Financing Sources 
o- (Unda) Expa,dinlrcs and Other fan&na113 (Uses) 

Fimd Babnces, July I 

Fimd Dabnces. Jvno 30 s . s . $ . s . s 
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D-3a 
p. I 

Nepnme Township School Districl 
Blended Resource Fund i, 

Schedule of Blended E~11cnditures 
Budgel and ,\c1ual 

Year ended June 30. 2018 

Original Final 
School: l\lldlown Communll)' £1emauary School Budget Trandcn Budget Esi!!!!dllurcs Variantt 

Espendirura 
Cumlll: 

lnsuudioa • rcg,,lat prcgnms: 

Salari<S ofT=bcn-
Kindcrsa,tcn s 227,298 s (S4,408) s 172,890 s 172,890 
Oradi:s 1·5 l.277.04S 61,20S 1,338,250 1,338,249 $ 

Undislributcd lnstnaclion: 
0111,:r Solarios of lnsttuclion IIS,780 (24,063) 91,717 91,717 
Purdwod PN>fcuiooal & EducaWln>I Sm i""5 IS.HIS (2,211) 13,604 13,604 
Purdwod Tcdmioal Scnioos 39,S76 7,987 47,563 47,563 
Othc:r Pwdmccl Scni<:cs S6,000 4,144 60,144 60,143 I 
Gcncnl Supplies 69,700 (S.267) 64,433 60,650 3,783 
TCldboob 7.400 367 7,767 7,767 
Othc:r Ob)Cds 3.000 jl.09S! l.90S 1190S 

TOia! ltcgular Pn,snms 1.811.61.J (13,3.JI) 1,798,273 1,794,488 3,78S 

lnsln>C1ion • Spc<oal Educa,ion· 

Lcannna and/or Language Disabilities· 
SalaricsofTc:achon 220,49S 33,320 2S3,8IS 253,815 
Odk:r Solaria of lnslnlctioo 68.465 49,860 118,32S I 18,32S 
Purchased ProfeS1ionol & Educational ScrviC<S 600 (16) 584 S84 
Olher Purchased Scni<>es 300 30-1 604 604 
(lcnmJSupplics 1.300 S016 6316 6316 

TOlal Lwnins and/or ~• Disabihoct 291,160 88,484 379,644 379,644 

Multipk: Disabilities: 
Sabncs otTcacbm 200,462 (40,78S) 159,677 159,677 
Othc:r Salarics of ln,IIUction IIS.941 (20.S20) 9S,421 95,421 
Gcncnl Supplies 900 900 900 

Toe.I Muhif,k: DmWili<s 317,303 (61.30SJ 2SS,998 2SS,998 

Raoum, R<JOl\\"Raoum, Ccnt<r: 
S.Larics ofTc:achon 209,820 (33,621) 176,199 176,199 
Other Salari<S of lnslnlctioo 13,%7 13,967 13,967 
Ocnml Supplies 1100 3 000 3800 3800 

Total Rcsoura: Roomlkcsourcc Ccntl:r 210,620 (1616S4! 193,966 193,966 
Total Special Education 819.083 IO.S2S 829,608 829,608 

Btlmgual Educalion: 
Salaries ofToadicn 1'11,672 (3.8%) 187,776 187,776 
Gcncnl Supplies I.SOO (8! 1,492 1,490 2 

TOla!Btwlj!loalE.iucation 193.172 (3,904) 189.268 189,266 2 

Odlcr Supplcmcntal! Al·Risk Pn,gnms • lnsllUC!lOn 
Salaries otR.:admg Spocialists 1118.')27 !1.987) 186.940 186,940 

Toe.I Other Suppkmcntal/At•Risk Prosn,ns, Instruct.., 188.927 (1.987! 186.940 186,940 
T Olal lnslnlelicn 3,012.7"6 (8.707! 3,004,089 3,000,302 3,787 

Allcndance ond Socio! Wo,k Smiccs 

Salaries 12.7S8 !6,564) 6,194 6,194 
Total Allendancc and Social Work Sm-iccs 12.758 (6.564) 6,194 6,194 
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D-Jm 
p. 2 

NeplUne Township Schuol l>is1ric1 
Blended Resource fund IS 

5':hedule of Blended Expcndi1urcs 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30. 2018 

Original Final 
School: Midtown Communlly Elementary School Budget Tr1111sfers Bndget Exeenditures Variance 

Health Sa\ices: 

Salarics $ 82.441 s I0.77S s 93,216 s 93,215 $ I 
Suppics and ~brcn.11 4.800 31S SI IS S 040 75 

Total lkalth Sa\ices 87.241 11.090 98,331 98,2SS 76 

Guidance: 
Salaries of 01hcr Professional Slaff 86.072 (79S) 85,277 85,277 
01hcr Purclwod s.n-, .... 14.700 (3.482) 11.218 11,217 I 
Supp!i:s and M•tcn:UI 3.2SO !737! 2.SIJ 2,s12 I 

Total Guidance 104,022 (5,014) 99,008 99,006 2 

lmpnwcm<,,I of lnslnl<1IOC1 Sm ices: 
SaJarics of 01hcr Profcslioaal Slaff 21.000 577 21,S77 21,S76 I 
l'utdmalPror.......i-~s.n;... 23.SOU 1.%8 2S,468 21.728 3 740 

Total lmjm,,"CfflClllotlm1Ndion Scnices 44,SOO 2,S4S 47,045 43,304 3,741 

Educ:alicml Malia/1.d>nzy Smices: 

Salaries 132,949 (26,492) 106,457 106,4S6 I 
Suppli<s and Mai.rials 4.700 !40S! 4,29S 4,285 10 

Tolal Eduoalional Mcdin/1.ibr.uy Scn-ic.:1 137,649 (26,897) 110,752 110,741 II 

Support Servi"" - Sdiool Admini1uotion: 
Sol.vies of PrincipoWAui,wil Principols/Ptogram Din:cion 163,256 163,257 163,257 
SaJarics ofOlhcr Profcslioaal Slaff 611.00-I (l.72S) 66,279 66,279 
Salams ot Sc:crdan>I and Clcrioal Assistin1S 52.525 (882) Sl,643 Sl,643 
01hcr Purdlascd s.nm 1.roo.soo series) 3,500 (1,316) 2,184 2,184 
Supplicsand l\htmals 4,500 (237) 4,263 4,263 
Other Obj<cll IOO !42! S8 S8 

Total Sappon Scm"" - School Adm1nistral!OO 291,885 (4,201) 287,684 287,684 

Soairity: 
Salaries 36,IOJ (6118) 35,41S 35,415 
Gener.,] Supplies 800 C4! 796 795 

Total Soairity J(,.90:l (692) 36,211 36.210 

Slmlml T_....,.. Sen""' 
Coatnctcd Smices -Tramponalicla (O!hcr !Ian 

---and Sdlool) - Vcndm 
8.000 !892! 7.108 7,108 

Total S!\1Cb1 Tr.wponalioa Sen-ices 8,000 (892) 7,108 7,108 

Unalloc:atz:d llcn<fiu: 
Social Security Contributions 34.246 S.528 39,774 39,774 
I loalth Bcncfiu 1.200,000 !239,0S2) 960,948 960,948 

Total UrullocatA:d llcndiU 1.234.24(, (233.S24} 1.000,122 1,000,722 
TOia! llndisu,buu:d Expcn,1,111rcs 1,957.204 (264,149} 1,693.055 1,689,224 3,831 

Total~ -Cwn:111 4,970,000 (272.8S6) 4,697,144 4,689,526 7,618 

Capila!O.day 

Equipmau: 
Rqular Prognms O lns1111<tion 

Orades 1,5 8,906 8906 8906 
Total Equipmcnl 8.906 !!,906 8

1
906 

Tow Capilal Oulia>· ll,906 8,906 8906 

TOia! Expa,dilun:S • School Ducd 4.970.000 (263,950) 4,706,050 4,698,432 7,618 

Olhcr Fimnoing So.roes 
Tnnsfmlll 4,970,000 !263.9SO! 4,706,050 4,698.432 7,618 

Tow Olhcr Fimncil!g Soarm 4,970,000 1263.9SO! 4,706,050 4,698.432 7,618 

Excess (Ddicicncy) o(Oth:r fiMn<ing Soar«> 
0><1 (Und<r) E,pendirurcs ond Oth<r Financi1111 (UJCS) 

Fund llalanocs, July I 
fw,d Ba1ar,ca. )w,:: 30 s s s s - $ 
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D-3b 
p. I 

Neptune To,,nship School District 
Blended Resource Fund IS 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Y car ended June 30. 2018 

Ori=inal Final 
School: Gables Elementary School Bud~et Transfers Budget E11!enditures Variance 

E1penditures 
Currmt: 

liutruction • regular programs: 

Salaries of Teachers: 
Kindergarten s 147,651 s (172) $ 147,479 s 147,479 
Grades I• S 858,501 (37,530) 820,971 820,970 $ 

Undistributed Instruction: 

Other Slllaries of Instruction 47,388 (67) 47,321 47,321 
Pwchascd Professional & Educational Services 15,806 {2,062) 13,744 13,744 
Pwchased Technical Services 39,576 9,886 49,462 49,462 
Other Purchased Services 56,000 4,427 60,427 60,427 
Clfflcral Supplies 65,800 ( I 5,536) 50,264 50,067 197 
Textbooks 7,400 210 7,610 7,609 I 
Other ObjcclS 3.000 166 3 166 3166 

Total'Regulllr Progt3lllS 1,241,122 (40,678) 1,200,444 1,200,245 199 

Instruction • Special Education: 
Learning and'or Langllllge Disabilitic1· 

Salaries of Teachers 146,667 (389) 146,278 146.278 
Other Salaries of Instruction 47,938 22,096 70,034 70,034 
Pwclwcd ProfcssiClllal & Educational Servicrs 400 400 400 
Other Purchased Services 300 16 316 316 
Cicneral Supplies 1,000 3,000 4000 4,000 

Total Leaming and/or Language Disabilities 196,305 24,723 221,028 221,028 

Resource Room/Resource Center: 

Salaries of Teachers 218,806 3,795 222,601 222,600 
General Supplies 700 700 700 

Tolal Resource Room/Resource Center 219.506 3,795 223JOI 223,300 
Total Special Education 415,811 28,518 444,329 444,328 

Other Suwlcmcntal/At·Risk Programs - Instruction: 

Salaries of Reading Specialists 228,826 {?,SOil 2211325 221.325 
Total Other Suwtcmmtal/At·Risk Programs· Instruction 2281826 {?.SOil 2211325 221:325 
Total liuttuction 1,885.759 {19,661! 118661098 11865,898 200 

Attmdancc and Social Work Services 
Salaries 12.758 !6,564! 61194 6,194 

Total Aucndancc and Social Work Services 12,758 (6,564) 6,194 6,194 

Health Services: 
Salaries 74,911 972 75,883 75,882 
Supplies and Matefials 2.500 {131! 2,369 2,369 

Total Health Scnices 77.411 841 78.2S2 78.2SI 

Guidance: 
Salaries of Other Profes.ional Stall' 73,963 (186) 73,777 73,777 
Other Purchased Services 12,500 {11) 12,489 12,489 
Supplies and l\.la1crials 3.250 {823} 21427 2,427 

Total Guidance !19,713 (1,020) 88,693 88,693 
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p.2 

Neptune To\\nship School District 

Blended Resource Fund I 5 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Originnl Final 
School: Gables Elementary School Budget Transfers Budget Expenditures Variance 

Improvement of Instruction Services: 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff $ 21.000 $ (7,671) $ 13,329 $ 13,328 $ I 
Purchased Professional -Education Services 23,500 31SSS 27105S 23,315 31740 

Tollll Improvement of Instruction St:tvices 44,500 (4,116) 40,384 36,643 3,741 

Educational Media/Library St:tvices: 

Salaries 127,178 (26,621) 100,557 100,556 I 
Supplies and M111enals 4,700 !518! 4,182 41181 1 

Total Eduallional Media/Librmy Services 131,878 (27,139) 104,739 104,737 2 

Suppon Services - School Administtlltion 
Salanes of Principals/Assistant Principals/Prognun Directors 154.764 154,764 154,764 
SIILvtes of Other Professional St.Jfi' 68.004 (3,225) 64,779 64,ns 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assislllnts 58,689 (13,669) 45,020 45,020 
Other Purchased Services (400-SOO series) 3.650 20 3,670 3,668 2 
Supplies and Materials 4.500 S.467 9967 9,967 

T nllll Suppon Services - School Administration 289.607 (11,407) 278,200 278,197 3 

Securiiy: 
Gcnenll Supplies 500 2.42S 2925 292S 

Total Security 500 2,42S 2,925 2,92S 

Student Transponation Services: 
Contracted Services -Transportation (Other than 

Between llome and School)- Vendors 6,850 !IOl 61840 61840 
Total Student Transportation Services 6,850 (10) 6,840 6,840 

Unallocated Benefits: 
Social Security Contributions 11.024 2,937 13,961 13,961 
Health Benefits 800.000 !124.767! 675.233 67SJ33 

Tollll Unallocated Benefits 811.024 !121.830! 689,194 689,194 
Tollll Undistributed Expendi1urcs 1,464.241 !168.820! 1J9S,421 1,291,674 3,747 

Tow Expenditures. Current 3,350,000 (188,481) 3,161,Sl9 3,157,572 3,947 

Capital Ouday 

Equipmen1 

Regu1or Propams • Instruction· 

Grades 1-S 41200 4JOO 4,200 
fotal Equipment 4,200 4.200 4.200 
Tntal Capital Ouday 4.200 4200 4200 

Total Expenditures· School Based 3.350.000 (184J81l 3116S,719 3,161.m 3,947 

Other Financing Sources 

Transfers In 3,350,000 !184.281) 3,165.719 31161,772 3,947 
Tola! Other Financins Sources 3.350.000 ! 1841281 l 3116S1719 3,161,772 31947 

Excess (Deficiency) ofOdier Financing Sources 

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 
Fund Balances. June JO s . $ . $ . s - $ 
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p. I 

Neptune To\,nship School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule ofl3lendcd Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
School: Green Grove Elementary School Budget Transren Budget E11!!nditures Variance 

E1pendltures 
Cwrcnt 

lnsuuction • regular programs. 
Salaries of Teachers: 

Kindersarten $ 218,572 $ (52,383) $ 166,189 $ 166,189 

Grades 1· S 1.065,718 (40,052) 1,025,666 1,025,0SI $ 615 
Uru!isttihutcd Instruction 

Other S3laries oflnsttw:lion 68,109 1,808 69,917 69,917 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services IS,81S (1,512) 14,303 14,303 
Purchased Technic:il Services 41,077 5,209 46,286 46,286 
Other Purchased Services S6,000 12,809 68,809 68.809 
General Supplies 68,700 (2.162) 66,538 63,059 3,479 
Textbooks 7,400 370 7,770 7,770 

Other Objects 3.500 {1,900) 1,600 I.SIB 82 
Tolal Regular Programs 1.544.891 (77.813) 1,467,078 1,462,902 4,176 

Instruction· Special Educittion· 
Leaming and/or Language Di,abili1ies: 

Salaries of Teachers 113.381 (4,288) 109,093 109,093 
Other Salaries of Instruction 67,069 (7,018) 60,051 60,051 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 75,000 20,381 95,381 95,381 
Other Purchased Services 250 182 432 432 
General Supplies 1,000 5,180 6,180 6.180 

Toral Leaming and/or Language Disabilities 256.700 14.437 271.137 271.137 

Resource Room/Resource Center·. 
Salaries ofTcachcrs 153,831 43,943 197,774 197,774 
Other Salanes of lnsttw:lion 89,058 (21,434) 67,624 67,624 
General Supplies 800 800 800 

Toral Resource Room/Resource Cenler 243.689 22,509 266,198 266,198 
Total Special Education 500,389 36,946 537,335 537,335 

Other Supplemental/ Al-Risk Programs • lnsuuc1ion: 

Salaries of Reeding Specilllists 185.678 2,662 188 340 188,340 

Total Other SupplementaVAt•Risk Programs· Instruction 185,678 2.662 188 340 188,340 
Total lnslruction 2.230,958 pB.205) 2,192,753 2,188,577 41176 

Attendance and Socilll Work Services: 
Salaries 21.635 (15,441} 6,)94 6,194 

Tola! Attendance and Socio! Work Services 21,635 (15,441) 6,194 6,194 

Health Services· 
Salaries 78,621 262 78,883 78,882 I 
Supplies and Materials 2,500 46 2,546 2,545 I 

Total Health Services 81,121 308 81,429 81,427 2 

Guidance 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 70,144 248 70,392 70,392 
Other Purchased Services 12,000 12,000 11,989 II 
Supplies and Mitterials 3.250 3,250 3.237 13 

Tola! Guidance 85.394 248 85,642 85,618 24 
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p.2 

Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund IS 

SchL'<lulc of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
School: Green Gro\le Elemcnl11ry School Dud!el Transfers Budget Exl!endltures Variance 

lm!?fOvement of lnslnlction Se.vices: 
Salaries of Other Ptofessional Staff s 21.000 $ (S9) S 20,941 s 20,519 s 422 
Purchased Ptofcss1onal -&hKation Se.vices 23.500 (2,861! 20.639 20.639 

Total lm!?fO•=ent of lnstn11:11on Services 44,500 (2.920) 41,580 41,158 422 

Educational Media/Library Services: 

Salaries 134,684 (3,757) 130,927 130,630 297 
Supplies and Materials 4,700 il45) 4,SSS 4,071 484 

Total Educational Media/Library Services 139,384 (3,902) 135,482 134,701 781 

Suppon Se.vices- School Administration: 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals/Program Dirce1on 143,717 143,717 143.717 
Salaries of Other Ptofcssional Staff 68,003 (2,924) 6S.079 65,078 
Salaries of Sceretarial and Clerical Assistants 44,775 245 45,020 45,020 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 3.550 (1,406) 2,144 2.144 
Supplies and Materials 4.500 (200) 4,300 4.300 
Olher Objccu 150 ISO 150 

Total Suppon Services - School Administrntion 264.695 (4,285) 260,410 260,409 

Security: 
General Supplies 500 4,091 4,591 4,591 

Total Security 500 4,091 4,591 4,591 

Sludent T rnnspon31ion Services 
Conuactcd Services -Transponation (Other than 

Odwccn Home and School) - Vendors 7,850 1,984 9,834 9,300 534 
Total Student Transponation Services 7,850 1,984 9,834 9,300 534 

Unallocated Benefits· 
Social Securily Contributions 18,963 1,686 20,649 20,649 
Health Benefits 900,000 (178,238) 721.762 721.762 

Tow Unallocated Benefits 918,963 il76,552) 742.411 742.411 
Total Undistributed Expenditures 1,S64,042 (196,469) 1.367.573 1.36S,809 1.764 

Total Expenditures· Cuncnt 3,795.000 (234,674) 3,560.326 3,554.386 5,940 

Capital Outlay 
Equipment: 

Regular Prognuns • lnsiruction: 
Grndcs 1-5 37,418 37.418 37.418 

Total Equipment 37.418 37.418 37.418 
Total Capital Outlay 37.418 37.418 37.418 

Total Expcndttures • School Based 3,795.000 !197.256) 3,597.744 3,591,804 5.940 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfers In 3,795,000 {197,256) 3,597,744 3,591,804 5,940 

Total Other Financing Sources 3,795,000 !197,256) 3,597,744 3,591,804 S,940 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures 11nd Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 
Fund Balances, June 30 $ . $ - s - s . s 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund IS 

Schedule or Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Ori~inal Fln11l 
School: Shark River Hills Elementary School Budgel "l'r11nsfers Budset Ex~ndltures Variance 

Expenditures 
Cunmt: 

lnsttuction • regular PJ'DSlllllU 

Salaries of Teachers: 
Kinderganen $ 200,626 s (7,553) S 193,073 s 193,073 
Grades I· S 846.527 20,627 867,154 867,153 s 

Undistributed Instruction: 
Olhcr Salaries of Instruction 69,388 (798) 68,590 68,589 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 15,806 (1,062) 14,744 14,744 
Purchased Technical Services 39,576 7,058 46,634 46,634 
Other Purch3scd Services 56,000 14.000 70,000 68,894 1,106 
Gcneml S1111plies 66,700 (5,288) 61,412 59,947 1,465 
Textbooks 7,-'00 5,178 12,578 12,578 
Other Objects 2,760 !1,950} 810 750 60 

Total Regular Programs 1,304,783 30,212 1,334,995 1,332,362 2,633 

Instruction • Special Education: 
Resource Room/Resource Center 

Salaries of Teachers l(,5,JK9 3,501 168,690 168,690 
Other Salaries of lnsuuc:lion -16,735 (23,222) 23,513 23,513 
General Supplies 700 700 700 

Total Resource Room/Resource Center 212.624 !19.721) 192.903 192,903 
Total Special Education 212,624 (19.721) 192,903 192,903 

Olher Supplemental/At-Risk Programs. Instruction: 
Salaries of Reading Spcciolists 170,513 1,425 171.938 171,076 862 

Total Other SuppicmentaVAt-Risk Programs· Instruction 170,513 1,425 171,938 171,076 862 
Total Instruction 1.687,920 11,916 1,699.836 1.696.341 3,495 

Attendance and Soc1t1I Werk Services: 
Salaries 6!1,024 15.102 83 126 83.126 

Total Attendance and Social Werk Services 68,024 15,102 83.126 83,126 

Health Services: 
Salaries 71.310 1,872 73.182 72,869 313 
Supplies ond lllatcnals 2.000 !422} 1.578 1,533 45 

Tetal Heollh Services 73.310 1,450 74.760 74,402 358 

Guidance: 
Salaries of Other Profess,onaJ Slalf 57,372 (I,730) 55,642 SS,642 
Other Purchased Services 12,000 (91) 11,909 11,909 
Supplies and Materials 3.250 !1,248} 2.002 2,001 

Total Guidance 72,622 (3,069) 69,553 69,552 

Improvement of Instruction Services: 
Salaries of Olhcr Professional Staff 21,000 (4.231) 16,769 16,769 
Purchased Professional -Education Services 23.500 !1.779} 21.721 21.721 

Total Improvement oflnstrucllon Services 44,500 (6.010) 38.490 38,490 

Educational Media/Library Services· 
Salaries 153.027 (2,714) 150,313 150,215 98 
Supplies and Materials 4,700 !1.024} 3,676 3,6SI 2S 

Total Educational Mcdio/Library Services 157,727 (3,738) 153,989 153,866 123 
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Neptune To\\nship School District 
Blcndcd Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of mended Expenditures 
Budge! and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
School: Shark River Hills Elementary School Budl!ct Transfers Budget E:11!!:!!dilures Variance 

Suppon Services - School Ad111111istra1ion: 
Salaries of Principals/ A"1stant Principals/Program Directors s 130,730 s 130,730 s 130,730 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 68,003 $ (3,524) 64,479 64,478 $ I 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 42,496 (4,223) 38,273 38,272 I 
Olher Purchased Services (400.SOO series) 3,350 3,350 3,326 24 
Sul'Plies mid Materials 4.500 648 5,148 5,148 
Olher Objects 100 (SO) so so 

Total Suppon Services - School Administration 249,179 (7,149) 242,030 241,954 76 

Security: 
General Supplies 500 !183} 317 317 

Tot.al Security 500 (183) 317 317 

SlUdent Transportation Services: 
Contracted Services -Transponation (Other than 

Between Home and School)- Vendors 6.850 6,850 6,772 78 
Total SlUdent Transponation Services 6,850 6,850 6,772 78 

Unallocated Benefits: 
Social Security Contributions 14.368 (2,592) 11,776 11,776 
Health Benefits 900,000 (207,505) 692,495 692,495 

Toial Unallocated Benefits 914,368 (210,097) 704,271 704,271 
Tollll Undistnbuted Expenditures 1.587.080 (213.694) 1.373,386 1,372.750 636 

Tot.al Expenditures - Cwrent 3.275.000 (201,778) 3,073.222 3,069,091 4,131 

Capillll Outlay 
Equipment: 

Regullll" Prol!l'ams • Instruction: 
Grades 1-S 12,683 12,683 12,683 

Tow Equipment 12.683 12,683 12,683 
Tow Capillll Outlay 12,683 12,683 12,683 

Total Expenditures· School Based 3.:?75.000 !189,095} 3,085,905 3,081,774 4,131 

Olher Financing Sources: 
Transfers In 3,275.000 !189,095) 3,085,905 3,081,774 4,131 

Tot.al 01her Financing Somces 3.275.000 !189,095! 3,085,905 3,081,774 4,131 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) E,penditures and Olher Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 
Fund Balances, June 30 s . $ . s . s . s 
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Neptune Township School Dis1ric1 
13k-ndcd Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Ex1,c11di111re• 
Budget and 1\c1ual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
School: Summerfield Elemenlary School Dudaec Tron•fers Budget Exl!endllures Variance 

Exp~ndllures 
Current 

lnstruclion • ttgular p,ograms 
Salaria GIT_,_ 

Kinderguun s 245.322 s (73,483) s 171,839 s 171,839 
Cin,!,s I• S 1,336,416 161,951 1,498.367 1,498,365 s 2 

Undis1ribulcd lnslnl<ti<,n 
Other Salaries of lnslnl<li<Jn 99,357 (2(,,018) 73,339 72,841 498 
Purchased Professional & Educorional Services 15,815 (1,808) 14,007 14,006 I 
Purchased Technicol Services 41,576 6,384 47,960 41,959 
Other PuJdmcd Services 56,000 8,209 64,209 64,209 
General Supplies 69,700 (1,642) 68,058 61,570 6,488 
Texlbocb 7,400 370 7,770 7,770 
OtherObjms 3.500 700 4,200 4 154 46 

Total Rqul&r Prognms 1,875.086 74,663 1,949.749 1,942,713 7,036 

lnsln><1i<Jn • Special Edu<auon 
Leoming and'or Languoae O.sllbilities 

Salaries ofTeuher• 130,842 (1,863) 128,979 128,979 
Olhor Salaries oflnstrw:lion 91.473 (J,337) 88,136 88,135 
Purch&scd Professional & Educlllional Services 800 800 800 
Odter Purd>ascd Smiccs 300 276 S76 576 
General Supplies 1,200 5.000 6,200 6200 

Total J..eomint and'or Llngu,ge Dmbililies 224,615 76 224,691 224,690 

Auditory Jmiwrmcms. 
Salaries G!Teoche,s 437,474 (SS,200) 382,274 379,744 2,S30 
Olher Salaries of lnstrucllon 182.291 (49,972) 132,319 131,728 591 
Purchased Profwional & Educmtional Services 7,000 7,000 7,000 
Odte, Purchased Services 25,700 (17,000) 8,700 7,404 1,296 
General Supplies 8.000 (4,000} 4,000 3,266 734 

Total Auditory lmpoirmenu 660,465 ( 12(,,172) 534,293 529,142 S,ISI 

Rcsow<e Room.1lesowce Cauer: 

Salaries G!Teadicts 188,071 370 188,441 188,441 
Other Salaries of lnmudsan 47,899 (1,928) 45,971 4S,971 
Genenl Supplies 800 800 800 

Tct>I Rescwcc Room/Rcsowcc Center 236.770 11 1sss1 235,212 23S,212 
Total Spmal Educmlion 1,121,850 (127,654) 994,196 989,044 S,I.S2 

Oilier Supplcmcnlal/A1-Risk Progroms O lns1ruction· 

Salarios of Reading Specialisu 174,983 1,607 176.590 176 S90 
Tolal Olher S"Pi'lcmattal/Al•Risk Programs - lnsuuetion 174.983 1.607 176,590 176 S90 
Tow Instruction 3.171.919 jSl,384! 3.120,535 3,108,347 12,188 

Attcndan<e and Soaal Work SCMCa 
Salarios ss.s;9 !S2.66S! 6.194 6,194 

Total AllaldM<c and Social Work Scr11iccs 58,859 (S2,66S) 6,194 6,194 

llcallh Services: 

Salaries 98,803 (1,035) 97,768 97,767 I 
Supplies and Moterials 3,000 !200! 2,800 216SO ISO 

Tct>l lleallh Services 101.803 (1,235) 100,568 100,417 ISi 
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Neplune Township School Disnict 
Blended Rcsum·cc Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expendilures 
Budget :md Aclual 

Year c11ded June 30. 2018 

Original Final 
School: Summerfield Elementary School Budllel Tr-.111srers Budget Exl!enditures Variance 

Gwdance: 
Salaries of 01her Professional Slaff' $ 59,335 $ (744) $ S8,S91 $ S8,S91 
Odi:r Pun:hased SCMccs 12,000 12,000 12,000 
Su;,plies and Malcmls 3.550 785 4,335 4J8S s 50 

Toul GuidaN:e 74,885 41 74,926 74,876 so 

Improvement cf lnsullcliCJn Sffl'ica· 
Salaries c!Odttr Pn,lessiorw Sl&ff 21.000 (1.984) 19,016 18,968 48 
PIIKh>sed Professiorw -Education Sem<es 23.500 (1.970! 21,530 21,030 soo 

Tolll lmprovcmen1<,flnstruchon Services 44,500 (3,954) 40,546 39,998 S48 

Educalional Medio/1..ibrary Sernces: 

Salaries 143.069 (240) 142,829 142,731 98 
Suppli .. and M.ierials 4.700 (2.921) 1,779 I 779 

Toul Edu<:ali<lnal Media/Library Senices 147,769 (3,161) 144,608 144,SIO 98 

Support Sffl'ica - School AdmiNsullion 
Salaries c!Principals/Asslmm Prin<ipalslProg Dittaors 146.323 146,323 146,323 

Salaries ofO!hor Prnfessional SwT 68,000 (3,221) 64,779 64,778 

Salaries or Sccmuial ond Clffi<al Assislan!S 46.750 (415) 46,335 46,33S 
Odter l'llrdmed Sffl'ices (400.SOO series) 3,750 3,7SO 2,354 1,396 
Supplies and Malerials 4.500 (1.300) 3,200 3,191 9 
Olher Obj<CIS IOO (50) 50 so 

Toll! Suppon Services - Sdiool AdminiJtration 26'>.423 (4,986) 264,437 262,981 1,4S6 

Sccurily. 

Ocnenl Supplies 500 j17Sl 32S 32S 
TOia! Sccuriiy 500 (175) 32S 32S 

Sl\ldau Transportation Services 
COlllrll:kd Sen-ices -Transponation (<llhff than 

Bcl,.-.cn Home and School) - Vcndon 6.8SO 6 8SO 6,336 514 
Toul Student Tronsponation Sffl'iccs ,,.850 6,850 6,336 Sl4 

Unal!ocoted Btttft1S 

Social Security Conlnbulion• 38,4'>2 (S,382) 33,110 33,IIO 
Heald, Benefiis 1.200.000 (174.332) l,02S,668 1,02S,668 

Toul Unalloca1cd Benefits 1,238.492 (179,714) I OS8 778 I OS8 778 
Taul Undistributed ExpmdilllrCS 1,943.081 (245,849) 1,697.232 l,694,41S 2,817 

Taul Expmditur<S-CIIITffll S,I IS.000 (297,233) 4,817,767 4,802,762 IS,OOS 

Coptlal Oullay 

Equipment 
Regula, Programs • lnslrllCtion: 

Ondcs l•S IS,237 IS 237 IS 237 
Toll! Equipmcnl IS 237 IS 237 IS 237 
Tola! Capilal Ouday IS,237 IS 237 IS 237 

TOia! E,q,end1111rCS • School Based S,I IS.000 (281.996! 4,833,004 4,817,999 IS,OOS 

01her fllllrlCUIS Sources: 
Tnnsfersln S.I IS.000 j281.996! 4,833,004 4,817,999 IS,OOS 

TOia! 01hor FinanciJ,g Soun:a s 111s.ooo (281,996) 4,833,004 4,817.999 1s,oos 

Eiu:css (Deficiency) ofO!hor Financmg Soutc:es 
Over (Under) E,cpendilllrCS and OtJ,c, Fi=mg (Uses) 

Fund Dolances. Joly I 
Fund Dolances, June 30 s s s - s - $ 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blcnd.:d Resource fund IS 

Schedule of Bkmkd Expenditures 
Budget and Ac1ual 

Year ended June 30. 2018 

Originul Final 
School: Neptune Middle School Budget Transfers Budget Ex!!nditures Variance 

Expenditures 
Cuncnt: 

lnsuuction • resular programs· 

Salaries of Teachers 

Gndes6-8 s 3,920,496 s (394,369) S 3,526,127 s 3,520,930 s S,197 
Undmtibu1cd lns1ruaion· 

Pllrdwcd Profcssioml & Educational Sm.ia:s 33.256 (8.000) 2S,2S6 16,27S 8,981 
Purdwcd Tedinical Scmoes 39,576 20.000 S9,S76 Sl,937 7,639 
Olhct Purdwcd Scmca 58,000 11.697 69,697 61,489 8,208 
General Supplia 9U,0()0 (23.235) 66,76S 61,7S2 S,013 
Tex1boob S.850 (5.000) 8SO 7S 77S 
Other Objects 3.000 1.099 4,099 4,099 

Tow Regular Prognrns 4,150,178 (397,808) 3,752,370 3,716,557 35,813 

lns1ruc1ion • Special Educalion· 

Learning llndlor Llngu•s• Di .. bilitics: 
Salaries ofTeachen 1()3,772 (8,190) 95,582 9S,S82 
Purchased Profe11ional & Educational Servicea 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Other Purchucd SetvicH JOO 300 300 
General Supplies 800 s.ooo 5,800 S800 

Total Leaming and/or Longuasc Disabilities IOS,K72 (3,190) 102,682 102,682 

Auditory lmpainncn11 

Saluics ofT<&ehers 153,926 (3 I.S23) 122,403 122,402 I 
Other Salaries of lnsttucticn 103,598 (581) 103,017 100,148 2,869 
Purchased Profcssioml & Educatioml Scma:s 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Otltcr Purchased Scma:s 7,500 7,500 7,450 so 
General Supplia 2.000 2,000 2,000 

Tow Auditory Impairments 268,024 (32,104) 235,920 233,000 2,920 

Multiple Disabili1ies 

Salaries ofTw:hors 57,882 29,860 87,742 87,182 S60 
Other Salaries oflnsuuction 66,226 26,781 93,007 44,253 48,754 
General Supplies 800 2 000 2,800 2800 

Total Multiple Disabililics 124.908 58,641 183,S49 134,235 49,314 

Resource Room/Reaoun:c Center: 

Salaries ofTcachcro 1,191.950 (37,396) 1,154,554 1,112,974 41,580 
Other Salaries of lnsuuction s.ouo 42,610 47,610 47,524 86 
General Supplies 5.000 soo S,500 S.484 16 

Tolal Resoun:c Room/Resource Center 1,201,950 S.714 1,207.664 1,165.982 41682 
Total SpcciDI Edueation 1,700.754 29.061 1,729,815 1,635,899 93,916 

Bilingual F.ducalion 

Salarin of T cachcn S2.122 l.42S S3,S47 S3.S47 
Tow Bilingual Educslion 52,122 1,425 S3,S47 53,547 

~ Sponsored Co-auricuur Activities 

Saluics 4S.OOO 538 4S,S38 45,538 
Olhct Objects 2.000 ( 1.000} 1.000 98S IS 

Tow ScMol SpoMOted Co-curricular Acli,i1ics 47,000 (462) 46,S38 46,S23 JS 
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Neptune To"nship School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget und Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
School: Neptune Middle School Budget Transfers Budget Ex~endilures V~rlance 

Sdiool Sponsored Athldics: 

Salaries s 126.000 s 13,711 s 139,711 s 121,267 s 18,444 
Purchucd Scniccs (300-SOO series) 48.500 (18,000) 30.SOO 18,938 ll,S62 
Supplies and Ma1erials 8,000 (5,000} 3,000 21S86 414 

Total School Sponsored Athletics 182,500 (9,289! 173.211 142,791 30,420 
Total lnstruclion 6,132,554 (377,073} S,7SS.481 S1S95,3l7 160,164 

Attendance and Soci&I Work Services 

Salaries 80,102 (226) 79876 71.403 8,473 
Total Allcndancc: and Social Work Scrw:es 80,102 (226) 79,876 71.403 8,473 

Heal1h Senoices: 

Salaries IOS,277 2,054 107,331 107,331 
Purchased Professional and Tcchnieal Services 500 500 25 47S 
Supplies and Materials 4,000 (420) 3.580 3,577 3 

Total Health Scniecs 109,277 2,134 111.411 110,933 478 

Ouid111«: 

Salarie1 of Other Prof ... ional St•IT 260,257 28,778 289,035 286,626 2,409 
Salaric1 ofSccrctorial and Clerical Assistanls 44,81!4 136 45,020 45,020 
Other Purchasod Sm.ices 23.200 (5.207) 17,993 17,993 
Supplies and ~b1erials 9,1100 (2.198) 6,802 6797 s 

Total Guidance 337,341 21.509 358,850 356,436 2,414 

l"'l"o•cmcnt orlnstruction Services: 

Salaric1 of Other Professional S1a1T 110,000 (18,060) 61.940 57,SSO 4,390 
Purcha1ed Professional -Education Services 23,500 (7,500! 16,000 15,006 994 

Total lmprovcrncnl oflnstruction Services 103,500 (25,560) 77,940 72.SS6 S,384 

EducaticnaJ Medi&•l.ibrmy Semen 

Salaries 132,850 (3,070) 129,780 86,858 42,922 
Supplies and ~b1erials 12.0UO (l.550) 10.450 9658 792 

Total Educ.alional Mcdia/Libr:uy Services 144,850 (4,620) 140,230 96,516 43,714 

Suppon Services - School Administraiion: 

Salarin of Principals/Assistant Principals/Prognm Direclon 402.557 402,558 402,558 
Salaries of Olhcr Professional SIJJT 151,7(,'I ISl,769 128,869 22,900 
Salaries or SccM.vw and Ckrical Assistants 182,985 (4.234) 178,751 177,876 875 
Olhcr Purchased Services ( 400-SOO scrin) 20,750 189 20.939 16,831 4,108 
Supplin and Materials '1,000 9,000 8.283 717 
01her Objecl> 2SO psoi 100 100 

Tolal Suppon Services - School Administration 767,311 (4,194) 763.117 734,417 28,700 

Security 

Sal&rics 11!4.765 20,586 205.351 204,824 S27 
Purchased Professional and T cchnic&l Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Gcncrol Supplies 2.500 (2,000) soo 3S8 142 

Tolal Soeurity 197,2(,5 18,586 215,851 21S,182 669 

Sludcnt Transponation Services: 
Contracted Senica -Tm,spo,ution (OIiier than 

Between Home and Scltooll- \'cndon 33,(J{JO 5.500 38,500 25,259 13J41 
Toll! Studcn1 Transpcmtion Services 33,000 s.soo 38,500 25,259 13,241 
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Neptune Tm\nsh1p School District 

Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule ofBknckd Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Original Final 
School: Neptune Middle School Budget Transfers Budget Ex~ndilun:s Variance 

Unalloca1ed Beitd,u: 
Social Security Contributions s 64,800 s 3,218 s 68.018 s 68,018 
Health Benefits 2,900,000 (37S,89l! 2.S24.109 2:.5241109 

To1al Unallocated Benefits 2,964,800 (372,673! 2,592.127 2:.5921127 
Tola.I UndiJ1ribu1ed Experutilures 4,737,446 (359,S44! 4.377.902 4J741829 s 103,073 

Total Expendilures • Curren! I0,870,000 (736,617) 10,133,383 9,870,146 263,237 

Capital Oullay 
Equipment 

Rqp,Jar Pros,zms • Instruction: 
Gndes6-8 34 493 34,493 34493 

Tolal Equipment 34493 34.493 34493 
Tolal Capilal Outlay 34.493 34.493 34493 

Total Expenditures· Schoel Based 10.870.000 (702.124! 10,167,876 9.904,639 263.237 

Ollter Financing Sources: 
Trwfcrsln 10,870,000 (702,124) 10,167,876 9,904,639 263.237 

To11I OIiier Financing Sources 10,870,000 (702.124) 10,167,876 91904,639 263,237 

Exce11 (Dcflciency) of Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

Fund Balances, July I 
Fund Balances. June 30 s s . s . s . s 
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Blended Resource Fund IS 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 

Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

OriJlinnl Final 
School: Neptune High School Budsct Transfen Budget E11!!ndilures Variance 

E1pendllures 
Cllfffflt: 

)~ion• rcgwar pn>gr11111S 

Salaries ofTeachets 
Gr.Ides 9-12 s 5,129,179 s (182,011) S 4,947,168 s 4,878,525 s 68,643 

Undistributed lnsuuction 

Purclwcd Professional & Educo1tonal Seti/ices 107.800 (13,631) 94,169 92,528 1,641 
Purchased Technical Services 39,576 25,000 64,576 55,561 9,015 
Other Purclwcd Services 60,000 1,831 61,831 61,831 
General Supplies 161,552 98,888 260,440 251,091 9,349 
Textbooks 68,333 39,371 107,704 107,667 37 
Other Objects 25.100 11,674 36,774 32,6S5 4,119 

Total Regular Programs 5,591,540 (18,878) 5,572,662 5,479,858 92,804 

Instruction • Special Education: 
Auditory lmpainnents: 

Salaries of T cachcrs 164,610 63,913 228,523 228,523 
Other Salaries of Instruction 149,991 36,834 186,825 185,370 l,4SS 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 1,000 1,000 1,000 
Other Purchased Services 7.500 7,500 7,450 so 
General Supplies 2.000 2,000 1,696 304 

Total Auditory lmpainnents 325.101 100,747 425,848 424,039 1,809 

Behavioral Disabilities: 

Salaries of Teachers 161,871 4,603 166,474 166,474 
Other Salaries of lnsuuction 48,117 (2,431) 45,686 45,514 112 
Purchased Professional & Educational Services 8()0 800 800 
General Supplies 1,000 1,000 963 37 

Tolal Behavioral Disabilities 211,788 2,172 213,960 213,811 149 

Multiple Disabdmes. 

Salaries of Teachers 152.117 4,162 156,279 156,279 
Other Salaries of lns1rue11on 7:?.266 (797) 71,469 71,469 

Oeneral Supplies 800 800 732 68 
TOlal Multil)lc D1sab1hties 225.183 3,365 228,548 228.480 68 

Resource Room/Resource Center 
Salaries of Teachers 1.(140,855 133,513 1,174,368 1,174,367 I 
Other Salaries of lnsuuction 29,.104 209 29,613 29,193 420 
General Supplies 3,700 3,700 3,673 27 

Tollll Resource Room/Resource Centor 1,073.959 133,722 1,207,681 1,207.233 448 
Tola! Special Edu.:at1on 1.836,031 240,006 2,076,037 2,073,563 2,474 

Bilingual Educauon· 

Salaries ofTcachets 60.078 1,769 61,847 61,847 
Tolal Bilingual Education 60,078 1,769 61,847 61,847 

School Sponsored Co-curricular Activities: 

Salaries 17!1,000 (5,357) 172,643 163,803 8,840 
Purchased Services 20.000 !2.0002 18,000 10,351 7,649 

Tolal School Sponsored Co-cunicul'1r Activities 198,000 (7,357) 190,643 174,154 16,489 
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Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund I 5 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Y car ended June 30. 2018 

OriJlinnl Final 
School: Neptune High School Budgcl Trnnsfen Budget Ell!!!:Ddltures Variance 

School Sponsored Athletics: 
Salaries s 902.:wo s 35,298 s 937.498 s 851,544 s 85,954 
Purcbascd Saviecs (300.SOO series) 261.387 (42,900) 218,487 160.SOO 57,987 
SIIIJl)lies 111\d Materials 95.000 11.900 106,900 105.497 1.403 

Total School Sponsored Athletics l.25K.5K7 4,298 1,262.885 1,117,541 145,344 

Total lnsliuction 8.9-14.236 219.838 9,164.074 8.906.963 257,111 

Aucndancc and Social Wotk Services 
Sal3ries 6,434 66,819 73,253 73,253 
Sal3ries of Drop Out Prc.-cntion Officer Coordinator -12,86S 83 42,948 42,948 
Other Purchased Services 800 200 1.000 963 37 

Tolal Ancndanec and Social Work Services 50.(199 67,102 117,201 117,164 37 

Health Services: 
Salaries IOl.989 (1,708) 100,281 80,006 20,275 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 2,000 2,000 695 1.305 
Supplies and Malcrials -1.500 {1.592! 2.908 2,832 76 

Total Health Services 106.489 (1,300) 105,189 83,533 21,656 

Guidance· 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff -159.138 (8,504) 450,634 431,272 19,362 
Salaries of Secretarial 111\d Clerical AssistanlS 92.248 (1,228) 91,020 91,020 
Purchased Professional • Educational Services 38,500 9,700 48,200 48.042 158 
Other Purchased Services 30,000 (9,398) 20,602 20,601 I 
Supplies and Materials 1<,.200 (3,399! 12.801 12,790 II 

Total Guidance 636.086 (12,829) 623,257 603,725 19,532 

Improvement of Instruction Services· 
Salaries ofOlhcr Professional Staff 121,000 (1,752) 119,248 118,996 252 
Purchased Profeuional -Education Services 17,500 !13,215! 4,285 4,285 

Total Improvement oflnstruction Services 138,500 (14,967) 123,533 123,281 252 

Educational Media/Library Services: 
Salaries 99,346 (120) 99,226 99,225 I 
Supplies and Materials I0,500 {1,344} 91156 91143 13 

Total Educational Media/Library Services I09,846 (1,464) 108,382 108,368 14 

Suppon Services- School Administration: 
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Prmcipals/Progra1n Directors 591.1211 591,128 521,974 69,154 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 151.769 24,615 176,384 176,383 I 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 244.434 23,438 267,872 267,872 
Other Purcha.icd Services (400-500 series) 25,000 25,000 23,720 1,280 
Supplies and Matenals l<J,132 (4,250) 14,882 11,840 3,042 
Other ObJeclS 1.000 1,000 8 992 

Total Suppon Services - School Administmtion l.03:?,463 43,803 1,076,266 1,001,797 74,469 

Sccunty: 

Salaries 242.5!!3 (3,710) 238,873 238,873 
Purchased Professional and Technical Servtc4's 10,000 10,000 10,000 
General Suppli4'S :?.500 (2.107! 393 393 

Total Security 255.083 (5,817) 249,266 249,266 
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School: Neptune High School 

Student Transportation Services: 

Contracted Services -Transponation (Other than 

Between Home and School)-Vendors 

Total Student Transportation Services 

Unallocated Bfflefits: 

Social Securiiy Contributions 

Health Benefits 

Total Unallocated Benefits 

Total Undistributed Expenditures 

Total Expenditures- Current 

Total Expenditures - School Based 

Other Finaru:ing Source.t· 

Transfasln 

T otaJ Other Finaru:ing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Other Financing Sources 
0.-.r (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing (Uses) 

fw,d Balances, July I 

Fwid Balances, June 30 

Neptune Township School District 
Blended Resource Fund 15 

Schedule of Blended Expenditures 
Budget and Actual 

Year ended June 30. 2018 

Originul 
Budgel 'l'mnsfers 

$ 192.000 s 18,497} S 
192.000 (8.497) 

160.198 
3.800.000 1981,915) 
3.960.198 (981,915) 
6.480.764 (915,884) 

15.425.000 (696,046) 

1s.42;.ooo (696,046) 

15.425.000 (696.046) 
15.425.000 (696.046} 

$ - s - $ 

D-3g 

p.3 

Fln11I 
Budgel Expenditures Variance 

183.503 $ 183,496 $ 7 
183,503 183,496 7 

160,198 159,818 380 
2,818,085 2.818,08S 
2,978,283 2.977.903 380 
5.564.880 5,448.533 1161347 

14.728.954 14.355,496 373,458 

14,728.954 14z355,496 373,458 

14,728,954 14.355.496 3731458 
14,728.954 14.355.496 373.458 

• $ - $ 
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Special Revenue Fund 



Revenues: 
State sources s 
Fedel'lll sources 

Total revenues s 
Expenditures: 

Cu1TC111 expenditures: 
Instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 
Other ularics for insttuction 
Other purchased services 
Oencl'lll supplies 
Textbooks 
Other objects 

Tollll insttuction 

Suppon services: 
Salllries of supervisors of inS1ruction 
Salllries of prosnun directors 
Salllries of other professional staff 
Salaries of secrctari31 ood clerical assistools 
Salaries of muter teachers 
Other salaries 
Persoul serviccs-cmploycc benefits 
Other purch3SCd professional • technical scr.ices 
Other pun:h35Cd professional scn'iccs 
Contr Ser.• • Tmns (bet home & school) 
Other purchased scr.'iccs 
Supplies and materials 
Miscellaneous s 

Tollll suppon services 

Contribution to school based budscts 
Total expenditures s 

Neptune Township School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budgetary Basis 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Non ublic 
Tcxl T ochnoloo Ausiliary Scniccs 

Nursin& boob Security Aid Initiative Chaeier 192 

12,855 $ 7,266 s 9.'J75 s 4,921 s 69,556 

12,BSS s 7,266 $ 9,975 s 4,921 s 69,556 

$ 69,SS6 

$ 7,266 

7,266 69.S56 

12.SSS s 9,975 s 4,921 
12,SSS 9,975 4,921 

12,SSS S 7,266 s 9,975 s 4,921 $ 69,SS6 

£um 
and Class 

$ 18,746 s 

s 18,746 $ 

s 

s 18,746 

18,746 

s 18.746 s 

Speech 

15,982 

15,982 

IS,982 

IS,982 

IS,982 

E-1 
p. 1 

Supplcmmlal 
Jasiruclion 

s 17,445 

s 17,445 

s 17,445 

17,445 

s 17,445 
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Neptune Township School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budgetary Basis 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Tille- II· A I.D.E.A. 
Rrgular Replar Preschool 
Proiram PrDRnm Pro1ram 

Rc\'CflUCS: 

Sllllesowa:s 
Fedendsoun:e, s 145.9.JS $ 1,211.361 $ 38.378 

Total revenues s 14S,94S $ 1.211.361 $ 38.378 

Expenditures: 
Cum:nl expendilllreS: 

Instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 
Other s3laries for instruction 
Olher purchased services s 38,378 

General supplies 
Textbooks 
Olher objecls 

Total insuuction 38,378 

Support 5er\1CCS: 

Salaries of supervisors of inS1ruCtion 
Salaries of program directors 
Slllarics of olhc:.- professional slllff 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assiS1an1S 
Salaries of mas1er 1eachcrs 
Other salaries 
Personal services-emvlO)-ee benefits 
Olher pW"Chased professional • technical services s 25.256 s 259,625 
Olhcr vurchased professional services 
Contr Scrv • Trans (bet home & school) 
Olher pun:hased services 9,641 

Supplies and materials 700 
Miscellaneous 

Tolal suppon services 35,597 259,625 

Contribution 10 school based budgets 110.348 951,736 
Total expenditW"Cs s 145.945 s 1,211.361 $ 38,378 

$ 
$ 

s 

$ 

E-1 
p.2 

( continued) 

Titlel 
Rqalar 
Program 

939.733 
939,733 

197.959 

197,959 

41,074 

348 
26,849 

68,271 

673,503 
939,733 
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E-1 
p.3 

Neptune Township School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budgetary Basis 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

rr. .. dmol 
t:,hu·Htiun 

Aicl Tille Ill 
R~ulur Regular 

1•roa:;r11m Proiram Title IV PEl\lA · Totals 
Re\'Cllues: 

S1a1e sources s 5.2Sl,Ol6 s 5,407.762 
Federal sources $ 28,6SS s 11,339 s 35,771 2,411.182 

Total l'C\'cnucs s S.2S 1.016 s 28.6SS s 11,339 s 35,771 s 7,818.944 

Expenditures: 
Current expenditures: 

lns1ruc1ion: 
Salaries of teachers s i.,n1-1-1 s 1,765,171 
Olhcr salaries for insUUClion 6~1),00-1 728,560 
Olhcr purchased services 38,378 

General supplies 2S.0-13 $ 21,116 s 11,339 255,457 

Textbooks 7,266 

Olhcr objects USO 438 2,788 

To1al instruclion 2,-118,141 21,SS4 11,339 2,797,620 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 108,058 108,058 

Salaries of prosrnm di=tors 133.230 133,230 
Salaries of oilier professional staff 102,354 102,354 
Salaries of sccrclarial :md clerical assisiants -12,075 42,075 
Salories ofmas1er1cachers I S<,.'>79 156,979 
Olhcr salaries 3,027 21,773 

Personal scrviccs-cmploycc benefits l.'>78.S72 1,978,572 
Other purchased professional • technical scnices 325,955 
Olher purchased professional scniccs 255 2SS 
Conlr Sen·· Trans (bcl home & school) .104.021 304,021 
Olhcr purchased scniccs 4,601 s 35,771 S0,.361 
Supplies .1lld materials 2.soo 30.049 
Miscell:1ncous 4.304 32,0SS 

Total suppon services 2.832.875 7,101 35.771 3,285,737 

Contribution 10 school based budgels 1,735,587 
Total expenditures s 5.251.016 s 28,6SS $ 11,339 s 35,771 s 7,818,944 
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E-2 

Neptune Township School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Preschool Education Aid Expenditures 
Budgetary Basis 

Expenditures: 
Current expenditures: 

Instruction: 
Salaries of teachers 
Other salaries for instruction 
General supplies 
Other objects 

Support services: 
Salaries of supervisors of instruction 
Salaries of program directors 
Salaries of other professional staff 
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 
Salaries of master teachers 
Other salaries 
Personal services-employee benefits 
Other purchased professional services 
Contr Serv -Trans (bet home & school) 
Miscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

$ 

Original 
Budget 

1,745,546 
652,301 

14,500 
4,000 

2,416,347 

108,058 
130,730 
118,579 
46,649 
67,934 

124,119 
1,929,760 

303,340 
5.500 

2,834,669 
S 5.251.016 

$ 

$ 

Budget 
Transfers 

Final 
Budget 

(13,802) $ 1,731,744 
6,703 659,004 

10,543 25,043 
(1,650) 2,350 
1,794 2,418,141 

108,058 
2,500 133,230 

(16,225) 102,354 
(4,574) 42,075 
89,045 156,979 

(121,092) 3,027 
48,812 1,978,572 

255 255 
681 304,021 

(I, 196) 4304 
(1,794) 2,832,875 

- $ 5,251,016 

Actual 

$ 1,731,744 
659,004 
25,043 
2,350 

2,418,141 

108,058 
133,230 
102,354 
42,075 

156,979 
3,027 

1,978,572 
255 

304,021 
4304 

2,832,875 
$ 5,251,016 

Calculation of Budget and C!!!!):'.over 

Variance 

$ 

Total 2017-18 Preschool Education Aid allocation $ 5,156,016 
Add: Actual carryover (June 30, 2017) 2681903 

Total Preschool Education Aid funds available for 2017-18 Budget 5,424,919 

Less: 2017-18 budgeted Preschool Education Aid (including prior year budgeted carryover) 
Available and unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid funds as of June 30, 2018 

(5,251,016) 
173,903 

Add: June 30, 2018 unexpended Preschool Education Aid -----1017-2018 actual carryover - Preschool Education Aid $ 173,903 :::=::::::::::::::i=:=i::: 

2017-2018 Preschool Education Aid carryover budgeted in 2018-19 =$====1=73='=90=3= 
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Neptune Township School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Trust A;ency 
Unemployment Student 
Compensation Activity Payroll 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,115,009 $ 149,512 $ 532,032 
Accounts receivable 21,261 
Total assets I, 136,270 $ 149,512 $ 532,032 

Liabilities 
Payroll deductions and 

withholdings payable $ 456,051 
Interfund payable 41,710 
Flexible spending payable 13,010 
Accounts payable 4,380 21,261 
Due to student groups $ 149,512 
Total liabilities 4,380 $ 149,512 $ 532,032 

Net position-held in trust for 
unemployment benefits $ 1,131,890 

H-1 

Totals 

$ 681,544 

$ 681,544 

$ 456,051 
41,710 
13,010 
21,261 

149,512 
$ 681,544 
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Neptune Township School District 
Student Activity Agency Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Balance Cash Cash 
July 1, 2017 Receipts Disbursements 

Middle school accounts 
Neptune Middle School $ 25,438 $ 75,599 $ 80,704 

High school accounts 
Neptune High School 76,226 233,536 200,850 
Athletic Fund 18,950 67,559 66,242 

95,176 301,095 267,092 

Total all schools $ 1202614 $ 3762694 $ 3471796 

H-3 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 20,333 

108,912 
20,267 

129,179 

$ 1492512 
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Neptune Township School District 
Payroll Agency Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Balance 
July Cash Cash 

1,2017 ReceiJ!tS Disbursements 
Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 397,617 $ 59,418,609 $ 59,284,194 

Total assets $ 397,617 $ 59.418,609 $ 59,284,194 

Liabilities 
Payroll deductions and withholdings 

payable $371,409 $ 59,275,923 $ 59,191,281 
Flexible spending payable 6,386 79,715 73,091 
Accounts payable 19,822 21,261 19,822 
lnterfunds payable 41,710 

Total liabilities $397:617 $ 59.4182609 $ 59,284,194 

H-4 

Balance 
June 

30,2018 

$532,032 
$532,032 

$456,051 
13,010 
21,261 
41,710 

$5322032 
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Statistical Section 
Unaudited 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the district's financial performance and well being 
have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
district's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and 
the district's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to 
help the reader understand the environment within which the 
district's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how the information in the district's financial 
report relates to the services the district provides and the activities 
it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is 
derived from the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
relevant year. 



Neptune To"'11Ship Scliool District J-1 
Net Position by Component 

UlSl Ten Fiscal YCMS 
(accrual ba•I• of accounting) 

Unaudited 

June 30, 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 

Governmental activities 
Net invcsuncnt in capital IISSCIS s 24S,407.223 s 2S0,38S,213 s 246,690,25S s 246,697,421 s 246,620,314 s 244,561,949 s 243,130,740 s 238,639,534 S 240,474,0S9 s 236,264,S22 
Restricted 4,197,619 3,341,S27 6,437,867 6,036,648 S,230,939 8,872,036 IS,14S,020 14,7S4,667 9,293,018 11,112,81S 
Unrestricted (dcfic11) 11,780,880) jl ,668,099) (1,884,320) 11,470,7621 j744,9681 j788,319) 121,68S1461) (19,0SS,019) (20143S18S8) 122,27S,186) 

Total governmental activities net position s 247,823,962 s 2S2.0S8,64 I s 2S1J43,802 s 2S 1,263,307 s 2Sl 1I06128S s 2S2
1
64S

1
666 s 2361S90i299 s 234.336.182 S 229,331.219 s 22s110211s1 

Business-type octi"1tics 
ln,·cstmcnt in C4P1tol assets s 74,090 s 117.021 s 106,847 s 100,336 s 77,0SO s SS,871 s 13S,IS7 s 266,897 s 734,246 s 827.306 
Unrestricted 123 737 6S0.930 889478 I ISO 766 I 039799 I 210181 I 221817 I 406837 I IISOS4 I 042408 

Total business·l)'PC oct1vtllcs ncl pos111on s 197 827 s 767 9S1 s 99632S s 1,2S1,102 s I 116 849 s 11266,0S2 s 113S6i'n4 s I 673 734 s I 849300 s I 869714 

Government-wide 
Net invcsuncn1 in c01Jitol assets s 24S,481,JIJ s 2SO.S02.234 s 246,797,102 s 246,797.757 s 246,697.364 s 244,617,820 s 243,26S,897 s 238,906,431 S 241.208,JOS $ 237.091,828 
Rcsuicted 4,197,619 3.J41,S27 6,437,867 6,036,648 S,230,939 8,872,036 IS,14S,020 14,7S4,667 9.293,018 ll.112,81S 
Unrcsu,ctcd (deficill j 1,6S7, 143 ! jl.017.1691 1994,842! !)19.996! 294,831 421 862 (20,463,644) jl7,6Sl.182! (19,320.8041 121,232,778) 

To1al govcmmcnl•\\1dc net position s 248 021.789 $ 2S2.826.S92 $ 2S2.240,127 s 2S2.S 14,409 s 252,223,134 $ 2Sl 911 718 s 237,947.273 s 236009916 S 231,l80
1
Sl9 s 226,971.86S 

Sou,cc C AFR Schedule A·I and D1stnct records 

G·\Sh b} \U'- ,mplcmcnt.:d 1n &ht 2011 fi"c.al ~c:11. "hu.:h ,tqu1rtd ~ rtclassdicanon ofbafa,"'ICd prn1ous.f)· r,epottcd as nrtasscts to Rd pos1t&00 

GASU bS \\o.U unpltnlC'Rttd d.unng the 201 ~ fi~.11 yc-.lJ. "-h'"'h r\"qUlrC'd thc r~tatffl'fflt of~gm.un,,J n:e1 pos1tt0n m lh~amoun1of 517,7~6.21S This amounl 1s noi rc-fl«ttd 1n tht June JO, 2014 Set Pos11:ion, at>o,rc 
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Nq>tune Township School Disttie1 J.2 
Changes in Nei Position, Lui Ten Fiscal Ycus I of2 

(a«n1t1/ ba,i, o/accounlln/1) 
Unaudited 

Y cor md<d June JO. 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 

E•-
Gcmmmenlal ll<livilia 

lmlnle:lion s 47.747.170 s 49.086.Sl7 s 47.980.683 s 49.6S9.S74 s Sl.432.2S8 s SO.SO.Oil s S6.819.97J s 61.SSS.098 s 68.016.717 s 69.4f>J.S99 

S-Sffiiccs. 
~ Md soaal -i. 776.IS8 860.4'"' S7J.664 S93.874 4SS.71S JB4.14S 49J.S66 SJ7.6S6 629.712 649.173 
Heald, services 840.461 879.442 818.143 9S9.041 l.019.3S2 1.022.406 1.096.410 1.168.649 1.)97.622 1.494.220 
Od,cr ,_, scniccs B.241.4S2 80878.JJI 8.742.64) 9.703.100 9.312.SBS 8.789.298 I0.070.S9S 10.770.176 10.47).878 ll.112.96S 
tm;,,ovcmauof~ 84S.81J 8S6,l7S 7S4.990 74S.S9S 888,067 947,S07 l.124.S71 l.134.0S3 1.S06.670 l.Ol.87S 
Od,cr ,_, ""1nlCtioNl sl&lf 1.888.374 1.896.216 1.732.379 1.696.484 l,704,J9S 1,481.037 1.626.JOS 1,787,309 1.871,JSI l.81:U37 
Gcnenl~ 2.617.SS9 UU.414 2.321.299 2.161,427 1,914.28) l,84J.2SS 2.041,007 l.498.249 2.)42.088 2.IJJ.802 
School odnunisualion J,844.218 3,963.288 J.681.649 4,017.927 4,469,822 4.JJI.JOO S.037.316 s.01.013 6,4SS.30J 6.S90.06J 
Req,,j...S mainunance of plant S,209.266 4.9S4.414 4.71).4)1 7,120,Sl6 4,122.997 4.490.042 J.84f>.J69 3.S16.J61 4,660,454 4.012.216 
()pamion of plam 7.2S7.068 8.SOUIJ B.OO:Z.675 7,187.294 7.J94.S82 7.666.84S 8,189.819 8.400.432 9.lll.4SI 9.S47.SS4 
Secumv 4f>l .211 4S4.22S S2l.732 765,779 881.204 1.088.176 l.lll.291 
Sl\ldcnl- J.762.466 J.677.636 J.JIJ.121 l.64).718 l.792.366 l.811.022 l.967.966 2.976.104 3.13S.470 l.211.S24 
Businas Md o,hff ,_, sen'ices Ind benefits 1.703.072 1.697.916 1,516.929 1.727.678 1,792.316 l.169.00 2.047.0SJ 2.16S.971 l.4S8.913 l.SOJ.726 

Clw1# Schools 431.631 384.188 4S9.982 696.069 SJS.083 603,907 626.222 SJ:Z.l« S20.780 I.J82.96S 
lnrcrcst on lona•tum debt 310084 290 377 267736 2)7837 14) 704 600 

TOW "'°rcmmcnW KJl\lua cqicnsa 85474792 88 21S 673 84879324 89611 34S 884317SO 87 611 S38 96 7S29SI IOHS7479 113 768 S8S IIU77810 

Busmcu•IVPC O<U•1tia 
Foodscrnce 1.926.104 1.942.047 l.849.157 l.997.J6S 2.140.193 2.080.336 2.20S.46S 2.076.«9 l.223.JS6 2.247.277 
AQmtic center 42.190 143100 327 778 lll 730 269941 314 312 241 7SJ 242 624 281 735 

TOW bus1nns•t\"Pt ac-r1uun nl)CN.,r 1.926104 1984.237 1.992 257 2,J2S,l4J t47192J 2 3SO 277 2 S19 777 2 JIB 202 2 465 980 2529012 
Toul dJstt1<1 opcnscs s 87 400 896 90 199.910 s 86.S71.5SI s 919)6.488 s 90903 673 s 89961 SIS s 99.272 728 s IOS 775 681 s 116 234 S6S s 119 006.822 

Pro1ram Rtttnut1 
UJ,·cmmcntal ~tl\1t1n 

fh:ar~ts f« 1Cf\1Cts 

lmt.ru'1t0n (lulflt'll'I) s J.172.S28 s J.02S.8J9 s J.748.IIS s S.104.323 s 4,792.109 s S.S22.9'JO s o.S3U94 s S.S20.92J 5.741.618 S.300.60S 
S1udan tr.vu.portauon 4o.t.9S4 441.037 311.736 338.18S ))4,182 Sl2.S31 640.06S S66.422 S77.S00 SS7.2BS 

Oi,,trat.1nJ: ~rants and contnbullOl't'I 7,344,441 7.921.340 7.820.320 9.B4.S60 8,506,678 7.994.917 8.179.JJ7 8,606.S6J 7.900.664 7.837.918 
CAPilal )I.Janis and conmbuuon-s 14 7JS 769 BSJI 82S ISi OS4 S80077 127 

Total Jto,-cmmtnl.ilt ai;ti,1t1es proJ,1,ram rn·cnucs 2S 6S7 692 19'120044 12.0J 1.2lS IS 357 145 136330% 14 JJO 438 IS J52 696 14 69J 908 14 220082 13 69S 814 

124 



Neptune Township School Disuict J-2 
Chanacs in Nct Position, IAs1 Ten Fisal Years 2of'2 

(accn,a/ /.a,u of tlt'<Ounri"R) 
Unaudited 

Yea, ended Jw,c JO, 
2009 2010 2011 2012 201) 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 

Busmc.tn,e Kthities 
Clwiles for $CMCCS 

Foocl-..cc $ 723,167 $ 7S4,688 $ 596,762 s 577,907 $ SSl,906 $ S9S,77B s 629.380 $ S95,414 $ 647,091 $ 700,209 
Aqualic centtt 18.931 241.231 253,049 238,420 311,144 339,SS2 32S,980 337,573 JOS,700 

Oi,entirut ,u1111S one! a,ntnbulians I 199999 I 349774 I 379601 I 493 S76 I 546 914 11S92 217 1641382 1662 103 I 6SJ S4S I S3S S34 
To:al bumxss type acti,1ries PIO!tflln ttWfflUOS I 923 166 2123 ]93 pl7S94 2,324,532 2 337 240 24991]9 2610 314 2 S83 497 2 638,209 iS4144J 
To:al district pros,am rcvcnues $ 211sso,s5s $ 2~043,437 $ 14 248 819 s 17681677 s IS 970 336 s 16829 S77 s 17,963,010 $ 1727740S s 16 8S8 291 $ 161237,:57 

Not CE•-1/Rennur 
Cio\'Cfflfflffl acti~iries s (59,817.100) s 168,295,629) s (72,848,099) s (74,254.200) s (74,798,654) S (73.281.100) s (81,400,255) s (88,763,571) s 199.S48.SOJ) s (102.781.996) 
Du:s1ness•l\,>e adJ\1tJ~ !2 9381 ll9 IS6 225 337 {6111 (1346831 148 862 90537 26S 295 172 229 1i431 
Total d1Slri<1-widc net (e,cpcnse)lrn...,,.. s 159,820.0381 s !68 1564731 s 172622 7621 s !74JS4,s111 s ""·9])1)171 s 1n,1n,21B1 s 1si,309111s1 s 1ss 498 2761 s 199.176.2741 s 11~169,56SI 

CtlWnl ltnffl.... Gd Odiff 0-in Not Position 
Govcmmaual actiwries 

P,-rtv taxes ln1ed (o: i:enetol pu,poses s Jl.39S.338 s 32.6SI.IS2 s 33,957,198 s 33,957.198 s 33,957.198 s ]4,636,342 s JS.329.068 s 36,0lS,649 36,756,362 37,491,489 
p,_ taxes ln-ied for debt scn;cc S90.914 294,400 608,133 596,900 574,252 
Un:esuicted "'2fflS and ain1nhuScm 37,972.016 JB,761,487 36,251,321 39,017,032 39.338,JOI J9,766,7SS 46.846.336 49,813,714 S6.0S1,469 59,309,626 
1n-eamm~ 80.816 JI.IS4 13.227 1.196 2.286 2.043 2.JIS 9,064 21.IS6 Sl.240 
Miscdlan«,us ,,_... 824,735 792,IIS 1.203,181 701.379 769.S9S 415,341 92J,384 SBl.027 714.009 1,699.573 
Trmmers (S3.920) 
Lonmsalcof aa,11>1....,. (7171 
Spoaal nm, • prior,..., a«ruol <ancdled 999S,l.l 

TOW J.!o\·cmmmi..J acrnlzin 70.809.182 72.SJO.JOB 72,0ll.260 74.271 70S 74 64l 61l 74 820481 83 101 103 86 S094S4 94.S4J.S40 98.SS2 928 

O\ISV'l:C'SS•t\pr Kb,1bes 

Olh<r 101.930 430.968 J,037 25S.J88 4)0 341 JBS S1.4bS l.Jl7 7.983 
Tram.fas SJ.920 

T01:aJ Mlmss·"~ ac-1,,11ars ISS.8SO .i;o.968 3037 2SS,388 430 341 38S SI 46S l ll7 7983 
Tot~ d1stn,Hude i0.965,0.H 72.96l.27o s 72.0J6,2Q7 s 7-l.~!(109} s 7-1 b-12.062 s 7,1820 822 s 81,101.488 s 86 S60919 s CM.'--16877 s 98 S60,911 

Cba~ ia Nrl Posilioa 
C.0\fltirnc:nuJ act:i,1IJ.CS s 10.992.082 s 4,214.679 s 1814.Sl9) s 19,SOS s (IS7,0221 s l,Sl9,J81 s 1,700.848 s fl.2S4.1171 s CS.004,9631 s 14.229.068) 
Buslness·h~ ac1J\lttts IS?.912 S70.ll4 228)74 2S4 777 jll4 2s11 149203 90922 )16 760 17S S66 20414 
TOWd:is1rie1 s II 14-1994 s 4,&<M,801 s !S8646SI s 274 282 $ 1291 m1 s 1688SU s I 791 770 s 11917 lS?j s (4 829 397) s (4 208 6S4) 

Sour<e: CAFR Schedulo A·2 and Disuict records. 

Noic: The si,cni&ant OIICllmion from v- to year in lhc a;,ital Jl1lllllS and a,ntnlnlliom is ~ upon 
lhc rmovations of' various schools handl..t bv oho NJSDA 

NOi< 2: The Disuict paid off oho mnaindcr o(ils outsunding debt clurinil oho 2014 fisal var 

GASB 63 was implomented in oho 2013 &seal v-. which miuiml oho rcdassifi<lllion of'bolanccs prcmusJy rcponed u ne1 assets to net position. 

GASB 7S was jn,plernem,d in 11,o 201 B &seal var. which incmiscd lhc omnstricted ,u:rnts and ccntnbunons and various expense lines Crom lhc pmious var. 
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Ncp1une Township School District 
Fund Bol1111ces • Governmental Funds 

Las1 Ten Fiscal Ycms 
(modified accrual basi• of accounting) 

Unaudited 

June 30, 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201$ 2016 

General Fund 
Resen·ed S 5,727,715 S S,768,475 
Unreserved (defitil} (703,433) (1,679,851) 
Reslricled s 6,437.867 s 7,784,498 s S,230,939 s 8,872,036 s IS,145,020 S 14,754,667 
Assigned 10 563,189 1,530,301 1,446,475 2,246,231 
Unassigned (dcficil) fund ba!IIIICC f8S31IS3! {l,JSS,431! 

T ouil gener.,I fund S S.024.282 s 4,088,624 S 7.001.0S6 s 6,931.345 s 6,761J40 s 10.318.SII s 13.789,589 S 17 .000.898 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved s 9,584 s 158 
UnnssiJ!tled•spccial revenue fund (deficit) s (598,554) s (626,485) s (S72,778) s (591,845) s (S9S,I II) s (612,217) 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue fund (deficit) (519,944) (591,683) 
Debt service fund IS8 

Total all olhcr 1to\·em111e111nl funds s ISI0.202) s (591,525) s (598.554} s (626.485) s (S72.778j s (591.845) s (595,11 ll s (612.2171 

Source: CAfR Schedule H· 1 ond IJistrict records. 

'.'l:ote I: G,\SB S4 "a' implemented in the 2011 fis.:al year. "l1ich required the pn,scnlation of !,!o,·emmental f1md balances lo bc: reported in diffen:nt classifications from lhose presented 
in prior years. Prior years ha,·e not been restated and arc not required to be:. 

No1c 2: The dcfici1s in the general fund and special rc,·enuc fund arc the result oflhe last state aid payments 
from 1he Stale being dcfened until aficr the end oflhc fiscal year. Sec notes 10 the basic financial statemenls for 
additional information. 

J-3 

2017 2018 

s 9,293,018 S ll,112,815 
3,236,814 1,982.535 

s 12,S29.832 S 13,09S,3SO 

s (534,576) s (SIS,602) 

s (534,576) s (515,602) 
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Nq>IUIIC T......ship School Disirict 
Changes in Fund~. Gomnmcmal F-SS 

Lls1 Tm Fiscal Yan 
Unaudilcd 

Year ended June 30 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Revenun 
TAX levy s 31,986,252 s 32,945,552 s 34.S6S.331 s 34.554,098 s 34.S31.4SO s 34.636.342 s 35,329,068 s 36,035,649 s 36,756,362 s 37,491,489 
Tuiliondwgcs 3,172.528 3,025,839 3,748,115 5,104,323 4,792,109 5,822,990 6.S33,294 S.S20.923 5,741,618 5,300,608 
Tronspo,wion fees 404,954 441,037 311,736 338,185 334.182 S12.S31 640,065 566,422 511,800 557,288 
lntetCS1 wnings 80,816 31,154 13.227 1,196 2.286 2,043 2.JIS 9,064 21,156 52,240 
Miscelbneous 824,735 792,IIS 1,203.381 701,379 683,104 415,341 923,384 581,027 714.009 1.097.737 
Sta1eSOUttCS S7.167.117 47.026,348 40,793.432 44,768.850 45,159,401 4S,SS0,014 4S.S04,438 46,711,950 47,069,403 47,683,591 
Fedenlsoun:cs 2.88S 109 8.188 )07 3.429263 4,1~819 268S.70S 2.2111MB 2.431 136 281S088 2,ss~21 !,S6-1166S 

TOll!rn..., .. 96 S21.SII 92,450.352 84.064.48S 89630850 18188.237 89 IS0.919 91363.700 9!,240,12J 93 438171 94 747618 

u..-tiruns 
lnstnlClion 

RCllular and Special Education Instruction 35.768,872 35,565,498 34,150,760 35,106.067 35.299.S48 35,409.155 36,293,143 38.474,929 3B,48S,6S8 38,264.216 
Suppon Sermes: 

Attendance and social work 512,016 574,892 372.281 390.137 308,837 249,674 279,571 292,453 296.S77 299.ISS 
llealll, se,.iccs 567,791 608,502 553,923 674.046 672.915 689,880 6S0,333 665,854 674.76S 702.770 
Other support ser\ices 6,690,538 6,974.725 6.768.042 7.S60.746 7,054,925 6,657,031 7,117,676 7,494,SSI 7.063.019 7,354.001 
lmpJowment or instruction 585,723 620,538 S21,288 545,713 6S2.S99 719,314 803.641 874.028 812,163 732.070 
S<hool hbrmy I.OSS.279 1.092,814 1,139,672 1,116,033 I.07S.343 956,821 945,071 992,076 907.170 853.439 
lnsll\lCtioiw stall' trmnmg 7,593 17.059 3.300 
~a! ad.ffllniSlration 1.892,000 1,518,592 1.8SU70 1.710.MJ2 1.409.429 1,388,744 1,414,399 l.6S0.624 I.S17.394 1.304.437 
School ndminis1ratt0n 2,751,777 2.672.63S 2.410,661 l.621.072 2,790.090 2,79.1.312 2,886.452 2.992.232 3.090.738 3,086,644 
Cffltrals.cr'\1ca 81S.247 BS0.743 717.716 1m,.sw 814.631 840,494 84S.S7S 839.666 828,450 779.804 
lnfonmuon 1Khnoloe, ... · 26-1~280 257,677 l2l.7l? )6!.222 341.949 682.111 371.008 392,956 393,190 440.010 
Rcquirtd ma:ntenmtie of pfant 4,827.159 4,486,980 ~.M1 . .!il7 l.17011 3.199.271 l,498,4H 3.102.SS4 2.9)8.90) 2.784,6)2 l.9JO,JS3 
()pffahon of plms S.869.6S9 6.892.061 6.)92.6)7 S,999,691 6.0H.966 b,S4S.991 6.,12.922 6.579.764 6,601.201 6.599.984 
Studfflt tril1'11plrta11on J.48S.782 J.H0,917 2.972.3S7 2.361,935 2,467.605 2.487.772 2.604.)17 2.604.089 2.S35.922 2.780,152 
Ow.tn"1.S .vtd othc-r suppon stn·iciC'S and btntfits 11.)67.)18 12.-'~~.bl? 11.492.920 11.866.966 12.J27.J07 11,2S.,,837 11.419.999 11.601,462 14.)81.272 l4.0J3.2SO 
On•b<holf pJym,nts 4.002,701 J,94S.S6S 4.122.JJS 4,834.047 6,142,SSJ S,608,25) 6.319.011 7.41),175 8.237.108 9,494,767 

Clurttr schools 411,6)1 384,188 -1,'J,982 6'16,116'11 515,081 608,907 626.222 SJ2.146 520,780 1,)82,965 
C:ipital oull•y lS.096.262 10.437.175 -178,(13-1 5,23,,fiM l.617.698 S.067,141 5,703.994 2.707.012 9,401.801 1,125.079 
Debt 1c-rvi,e 

Prlncipal 472.000 485,000 ,01,000 1,716.140 ).470.000 145,000 
Interest and other dwges 313.127 292.140 270.605 l48.U8 153.375 3 625 

TOia! expend!lurcs 96.776.755 93 467 333 81 159082 8972!492 88.391.126 85612 71S 87 89S 888 89045 920 98 831.840 94163 126 
Excess (Defici<n<yl of m·enucs 

0'"1 (under) e,q,cnditures (255.244) (1,016.981) 2.905.403 (97,642) (202,889) 3,538,204 3.467.812 ),194.203 (5,392.969) 584,492 

Olbor F'"nw>ri,,a sourus (.,...) 
Tnnsfmin 2.422,849 1,842.515 I.S09.929 2.772.39) 4,4)2.270 2.182,521 l,SJS,199 1,583,727 1,673,869 1,735,587 
Tnnsfmo,n (2.476.769) (1,842.515) (1,509,929) (2.nl.393) (4,43U70) (2.182.521) (1,535,199) (I.SBJ,727) (1,67),869) (1,735,587) 
Proceeds from insunnce 86,491 
Spccw item • prior ya, l<CIIW ancelled 999 S44 

TOia! <Mher fuwtcina sowces (....,.) 153,9201 86491 999544 

Net change in fund balances s !309,1641 s 11,016,9811 s 2 905 403 s !9716421 s !116,3981 s 11sn1204 s )1467.812 s J 194 203 s j41393142Sj s S84492 

Debt sernce u • percentage of 
noncapilal e,q,endi1wes 1.0% 0.9% 1.0'1. 2.J% 4.)% 0.2% 0.0'1. 0.0'1. 0.0% 0.0% 

Souru: CAFR Sdledule e.2. 
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Refund of 
Fiscal Year Prior Year 

Ended June 30, Expenditures 

2009 $ 91,143 
2010 58,322 
2011 520,591 
2012 151,239 
2013 168,240 
2014 40,855 
2015 436,640 
2016 2,273 
2017 116,812 
2018 40,027 

Source: District records. 

Neptune Township School District 
General Fund - Other Local Revenue By Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Void Checks Utility Facility 
of prior year Rebates Rentals 

$ 482,608 
$ 30,178 500,102 

36,850 389,271 
22,278 390,274 

$ 6,089 11,733 387,310 
121,926 231,814 

1,153 102,522 373,651 
502 109,105 400,466 

1,716 80,126 437,469 
3,471 414,626 366,536 

Misc. 

$ 250,984 
172,359 
47,599 

137,588 
109,732 
20,459 

9,417 
68,681 
77,886 

273,077 

J-5 

Total 

$ 824,735 
760,961 
994,311 
701,37'9 
683,104 
415,054 
923,384 
581,027 
714,009 

1,097,737 
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F"ucal 
Year 

Ended 

N<11111ne Township School Distria 
Assessed Value and Ac1uaJ Value ofTuzble Propcny 

Last Tm F"ucal Years 
Unwdi1ed 

Jun• JO. Vacant Land Residential Fann Res. Qfarm Commercial Industrial Al!!nmcnl Total Assess.ed Value 

2009 s 32,036,800 s 2.334,168,100 $ 601,000 $ 16,100 s 403,116,100 $ 66,831,700 
2010 36,214,SOO 2.323,286,400 601,000 16,100 387.008,100 66,471,800 
2011 3S, 9<>4,600 2,321,826,600 601,000 16,100 384,342,700 64,489,400 
2012 39,161,300 2,319,104,800 601,000 16,100 391,353,700 63,807,800 
2013 36,583,800 2,316,591,000 601,000 16,100 393,364,400 62,881.200 
2014 36,376,700 2,220,414,000 601,000 16,100 398,406,880 62,881,200 
2015 · 41,063,JSO 2,742,469,140 612,800 16,800 5)4,199,000 68,542.400 
2016 43,696,200 2,787,426,410 619,SOO 16,800 508,736,700 67,108,300 
2017 52,887,300 2,827,296,800 274,800 9,800 SI 3,065,000 64,298,800 
2018 54,JSS.JOO 3,064,590,900 286,800 9,800 560, 720,800 68,656.000 

Note 

Real rropmy is required to he anCS-'lled at some pcrctntagc of tnac: va1uc U'air or marl.ct \-alue) as established by t!ach coumy board of l.t'(ation 
Rcas~curncnt.5 occur \\-hen ordered b"· the counw board of t,n .• ttion A pilot proArDm was introduced in Monmouth Countv in :?01) to conduct 

$ 

1no11C11,· in~pl"(lions / ancssmcnts (1<r-·o ofth-e i1wemorv per year). resuhinj( in closer to market valuacioni .1nd the m,elihood of fewer u,~ appc-als overall 

a Ta-•bl• \'olu< onlachinctV, lmplcmc111<and Equipmenl of Telephone. Tclcw,iph and M....,..)I.,. S~·sten, Companies-
So loni,:rr subitct 10 propc1t\· ta,. phased out throu)lh ~.-rou rcc~pts tax or. as in the- case of Verizon. 5talulol\' rdic-fas diahonr knice d.eclined 

b T .. rain arc per SIOO 

Source: Dis1ria records, Municipal Tex Asscuor and Collcclor, Abstract ofRau,bles, County Board orT ... tion. 

88,702,000 $ 2,925,471,800 
89,ISS.SOO 2,902.783,400 
90,747,800 2,897,988.200 
90,771,800 2,904,816,SOO 
89,953,900 2.899,991.400 
88,611,400 2,807,307,280 

121.ssr.soo 3,508,485,290 
129,652, I 00 3,SJ7,2S6,0IO 
157,863,300 3,615,695,800 
157,773,100 ),906.392,700 

Total Direct Estimated Aau.11 
N<l Voluotion SchoolTox (Counly Equalized 

Public Ulililies • Toxable Rote• Value! 

s S,168,938 s 2,930,640,738 s 1.124 s J,940,S60,07S 
S,437,906 2,908,221,306 1.188 J,789,039,812 
S,364,247 2,903,352.447 1.190 J,6S0,778,786 
S,640,333 2,910,456,833 1.186 3,666,486,310 
S,640,333 2,905,631.733 1.193 3,S8S,S48,220 

2,807,307,280 1.2S9 3,400,323,740 
J,SOS,485,290 1.027 J,S08,48S,290 
J,Sl7,2S6,0J0 I 039 3,S37,2S6,0IO 
3,6IS,69S.800 I 037 3,61 S ,69S ,800 
3,906,392,700 0979 3,906,392,700 
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(Rare ptr $JOO of auessed ,·alue) 

Neptune Township School District 
General 

Obligation Debt 

Neptune Township School District 
Direct and Overlapping Propeny Tax Rates 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Neptune 

Overlapping Rates 

Neptune Fire 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended Basic Rate Service Total Direct Township Lib!J!!l'. Districts 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

s 1.114 
1.168 
1.170 
1.166 
1.193 
1.259 
1.027 
1.039 
1.037 
0.979 

(Pera11tt1ge llftlltt1/ twt mte) 

s 0.010 s 1.124 
0.020 1.188 
0.020 1.190 
0.020 1.186 

1.193 
1.259 
1.027 
1.039 
1.037 
0.979 

Nc[!tunc Township School Distric1 
General Fiscal 

Year Obligation Debt 
Ended Basic Rate Sen·ice Tolal Direct 

2009 47.40 % 0.43 % 47.83 
2010 47.56 0.81 48.37 
2011 46.86 0.80 47.66 
2012 46.25 0.79 47.04 
2013 46.49 46.49 
2014 46.47 46.47 
2015 46.12 46.12 
2016 45.87 45.87 
2017 46.15 46.IS 
2018 45.11 45.11 

SoUJCC: District records and Municipal Tax Assessor. 

s 0.746 s 0.129 
0.786 0.129 
0.777 s 0.044 0.130 
0.808 0.042 0.130 
0.837 0.041 0.132 
0.908 0.042 0.139 
0.762 0.033 0.113 
0.785 0.035 0.112 
0.788 0.035 0.097 
0.759 0.034 0.104 

Ovcrlappinl? Rales 

Ncplunc Neptune Fire 
Township Librarv Districts 

% 31.74 % 5.49 
32.01 S.2S 
31.11 1.76 % 5.21 
32.05 1.67 5.16 
32.62 1.60 5.14 
33.52 1.55 5.13 
34.22 1.48 S.07 
34.66 1.55 4.94 
35.07 1.56 4.32 
34.98 1.57 4.79 

Monmouth 
Countv 

s 0.351 
0.353 
0.3S6 
0.355 
0.363 
0.361 
0.292 
0.294 
0.290 
0.294 

Monmouth 
Count\' 

% 14.94 
14.37 
14.26 
14.08 
14.15 
13.33 
13.11 
12.98 
12.90 
13.55 

% 

J-7 

Total Direct and 
Overlapping 

Tax Rate 

s 2.350 
2.456 
2.497 
2.S21 
2.566 
2.709 
2.227 
2.265 
2.247 
2.170 

l'crccntage 
To1al Direct and 

Overlapping 
Tax Rate 

100.00 % 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 
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Neptune Township School District J-8 
Principal Property Tax Payers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
Unaudited 

2018 2009 
Taxable % of Total Taxable %ofTotal 
Assessed Rank District Net Assessed Rank District Net 

Taxpayer Value [Optional] Assessed Value Value [Optional] Assessed Value 

Neptune Partners, LLC % BNE Real Estate $ 38,925,200 I 1.00% 
Neptune Plaza Shopping Center, LLC 34,135,600 2 0.87% $ 27,692,100 I 0.95% 
Jumping Brook Real % Mack-Cali Corp 26,175,600 3 0.67% 20,596,200 2 0.70% 
Walmart Real Estate Prop Tax Dep 23,741,700 4 0.61% 13,709,400 4 0.47% 
Woodlands Neptune, LLC 22,947,100 5 0.590/o 16,800,000 3 0.57% 
JB Neptune Holdings 22,805,100 6 0.58% 
Ocean Grove Camp Meeting Assoc. 19,327,600 7 0.49% 
HD Development of Maryland 16,503,300 8 0.42% 13,391,600 5 0.46% 
Ocean Grove NJ, LLC 15,155,000 9 0.39% 
OFW, LLC 12,504,000 10 0.32% 
West Grove Square Assoc., LLC 9,728,300 9 0.33% 
Neptune Park for Industry 9,804,600 8 0.33% 
Gannett Partners 10,200,000 6 0.35% 
East Coast Jumping Brook 10,200,000 6 0.35% 
Jumping Brook Country Club 9,425,200 7 0.32% 

Total $ 232,220,200 5.94% $ 141,547,400 4.83% 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor. 
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School Truces 
Fiscal Year Levied and 

Ended Collected for the 
June 30, Fiscal Year 

2009 $ 31,986,252 
2010 32,945,552 
2011 34,565,331 
2012 34,554,098 
2013 34,531,450 
2014 34,636,342 
2015 35,329,068 
2016 36,035,649 
2017 36,756,362 
2018 37,491,489 

Neptune Township School District 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Municipal Taxes 
Levied for the 

Fiscal Year 

Municipal Truces Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Percentage of 
Amount Levy 

$ 66,855,097 $ 65,616,236 98.15% 
68,683,743 67,406,492 98.14% 
68,696,683 67,405,185 98.12% 
69,576,960 68,254,998 98.10% 
70,652,979 69,739,042 98.71% 
72,147,797 71,202,661 98.69% 
74,151,121 73,150,000 98.65% 
76,157,122 75,100,000 98.61% 
80,311,054 79,172,112 98.58% 
83,650,190 * 82,479,088 98.60% * 

Collections in 
Subsequent 

Years 

1.85% 
1.86% 
1.88% 
1.90% 
1.29% 
1.31% 
1.35% 
1.39% 
1.42% 
1.40% * 

Note: School truces are collected by the Municipal True Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality 
is required to remit to the school district the entire balance prior to the end of the school year. The above 
school true levies were collected in full as per statutory requirements. 
* Municipal collections run through the end of the calendar year thus collection amounts and rates are estimated. 

Source: District records and Municipal True Collector. 

J-9 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

2009 $ 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Neptune Township School District 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Governmental Activities 

General 
Obligation Certificates of 

Bonds Particieation Total District 

734.000 $ 5,590,000 $ 6,324,000 
584.000 5,255,000 5,839,000 
436.000 4.900.000 5.336.000 
290.000 3.325.000 3,615,000 
145.000 145.000 

J-10 

Percentage of 
Personal Income 

PerCaeita • 

0.48% $ 30,224 
0.52% 30,636 
0.57% 30,404 
0.84% 30,279 

21.95% 31.830 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

a See J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and 
population for the prior calendar year. 

Source: District CAFR Schedule 1-1. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended June 

30, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Note: 

Neptune Township School District 
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

General 
Obligation 
Bonds and 

Certificates of 
Participation 

$ 6,324,000 
5,839,000 
5,336,000 
3,615,000 

145,000 

Deductions 

$ 

Net General 
Bonded Debt 
Outstanding 

6,324,000 
5,839,000 
5,336,000 
3,615,000 

145,000 

Percentage of 
Actual Taxable 

Value a of 

Property 

0.22% 
0.20% 
0.18% 
0.12% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

a See J.6 for property tax data. 
b Population data can be found in 1·14. 

J.11 

Per Capita h 

30,224 
30,636 
30,404 
30,279 
31,830 
31,830 
31,830 
31,897 
32,737 
33,679 
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Neptune Township School District 
Ratios of Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

As of June 30, 2018 
Unaudited 

Debt Outstanding 

Estimated 
Percentage 
Applicable 

J-12 

Estimated Share of 
Overlapping Debt 

Debt repaid with property truces 
Neptune Township $ 26,615,056 100.00% $ 26,615,056 

Other debt 
Neptune Township Sewerage Authority 
County of Monmouth 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

Neptune Township School District Direct Debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

3,900,000 
462,342,600 

100.00% 
3.21% 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District. 
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents 

$ 

3,900,000 
14,844,929 

45,359,985 

45,359,985 

and businesses of Neptune Township. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term 
debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply 
that every trucpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment. 

Source: District records and Neptune Township Finance Officer. 
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200•, 

Dchtlin1i1 s I l(,.?41.546 s 

Total n.i dcbl applicable 10 hmil 6.llMOO 

Lcgol debt morgin s 110.617.S,I<, s 

Total n.i dcbtapplic:ablc 10 1he limi1 
.u .t pcrceoiai;e of debt limil s.-11,~ 

2010 

I H,,S7S.S 7S 

S.U9.000 

111,039.S 18 

s 00'1. 

Dd,t linut (4 %of Al!V) 

Net bond..t school debt 
Lqpl d.:bt m>rgin 

2011 

$ 1St,7;S.466 

5.336.000 

s 146.399.466 

J.s2•4 

Neptune To"11Ship Board or Educa1ion 
IAg•I Debt MMlJin Information 

Lasl Ten f",scal Yws 
Unaudited 

Legiil Dehl MMlJin Calcubtion for Fiscal Yc•r 201& 

Eq...,lizcd valuation basis 
201S S l,906,392,700 
2017 l,61S,69S,800 
2016 l,S37.256,0IO 

(AJ.,s= .. 1 .. 1 ... o .. s9 ... J.,4 .. 4 . .,s.10.., 

s 3,686,448.170 

$ 147,457,927 
[CJ 

(D·CJ .,S====l4""1=14aaS7"',9"'2aa,7 

2012 2013 

s HS,084,065 s 14S)10,S44 

J.615.000 l,IS,000 

s H4.469.0<,S s 14 S.!lS.844 

2 ... u~~ O.!"'"-

Source: Abs1met ofR:ilables, ,\nnU.tl Rcpon of Ilic SI.tic or New Jctscy, Dcponment orlhc Tr=u,y. Di,ision ofT:wition ond District rte0rds. 

Noie: · The Distriel paid offlhc remainder oriis oulSlanding bonds dwing the 2014 facal )UI'. 

J.ll 

2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 

s 142,0l I ,444 s 122,948,724 s IJl,373,981 s 142, I S2.49S s 147,457,927 

s 142.031,444 s 122,948.724 s 13U7J.981 s 142.1 S2.4?S s 147.457.927 

o.~. o.oo,, 0.00°/o 0.00,~ ooo,• 
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Year 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Source: 

Neptune Township School District 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

Per Capita Unemployment 
Population Personal Income 

28,410 $ 30,224 
28,349 30,636 
27,935 30,404 
27,963 30,279 
27,889 31,830 
27,914 31,830 
27,902 31,830 
27,574 31,897 
27,789 32,737 
27,844 33,679 

NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development 
Regional Economic Information System 
Bureau of Economic Analysis 
US Department of Commerce 

2009-2018 Per Capita Income for Neptune Township 

Rate 

7.1% 
11.9% 
12.1% 
12.0% 
10.7% 
8.2% 
7.8% 
5.8% 
5.3% 
5.0% 

J-14 
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J-15 

Neptune Township School District 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
Unaudited 

2018 2009 

Percentage of Percentage of 
Total Total 

Employer Employees Rank (Optional) Employment Employees Rank (Optional) Employment 

Jersey Shore University Medical Center 3,808 I 58.33% 2,839 41.51% 
Neptune Township Board of Education 674 2 I0.32% 602 3 8.80% 
Children's Center of Monmouth County 355 3 5.44% 
Neptune Township 303 4 4.64% 303 7 4.43% 
Wal-Mart 300 5 4.60% 319 6 4.66% 
Asbury Park Press / Gannen 282 6 4.32% 1,239 2 18.11% 
Neptune Shop-Rite 231 7 3.54% 286 8 4.18% 
United Methodist Homes 209 8 3.20% 125 IO 1.83% 
Home Depot 187 9 2.86% 266 9 3.89% 
Sanitary Linen Supply 179 10 2.74% 0.00% 
AIG / American General 426 5 6.23% 
CPC Behavioral Health 435 4 6.36% 

6,528 100.00% 6,840 100.00% 

Source: NeptuneTownship Finance Officer. 
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J-16 

Neptune Township School District 
Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

2009 20!0 2011 2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 
FuncJiontProgmm 

Instruction 
Regular 318 321 310 318 324 322 319 319 314 318 
Special education 120 123 119 126 122 126 124 135 145 139 
Other instruction IO 10 10 II II II 12 IO 9 12 

Support Services: 
Student &. instruction related services 78 81 71 73 75 79 80 77 76 75 
General administrative services 8 8 8 7 8 7 7 8 7 7 
School administrative services 36 36 32 38 39 38 38 38 39 41 
Busin~'SS administrative services 8 8 8 IS 15 15 16 20 18 14 
Plant operations and maintenance 60 60 60 60 63 64 65 67 65 66 
Pupil transportation 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Total 640 649 620 650 659 664 663 676 675 674 

Source: District records. 
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2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

l\otts· 

• 
b 

Operating Cost Per Percentage 
r:1Uollmen1 Expenditures• Pupil Change Teacl1in5 Stair• 

4,SJS s 80,895,366 s 17,838 2.70% 3S8 
4,4S3 82,253,018 18,471 3.5S% l6S 
4,S4S 79,906,843 17,581 •4.82% 370 
4,446 82,S28,56l 18,562 S.S8% 369 
4,4SO 81,150,0SJ 18.236 -1.76% 376 
4,469 80.396,749 17,990 ·l.3S% 378 
4,408 82.191,894 18,6-16 J.6S% 381 
4.278 86,BS,90S 20,182 s2-1,, 386 
4,256 S9.430.03ll 21,013 4.12~· 3'>0 
J.2n 91,03S.Ot7 21,60'.l 28-1~- 386 

l!mollmcn,s arc bnscd ~m ofticinl annual Octol'IC'r J15tnct comu and rellect ·0n Roll• studcuts. 
011,,rotm~ •·'1"-~"limres equal 10,al e,p~n,111111.s less debt .. ,mcc and capual O\ltlay. Schedule J.-1 . 
Tcac1nns s1nff includes only full-umc cquivakn1s of ccni1kated stalf 

NeplUne To"nship Scoool Disttict 
Opcmtins Statistics 

Last Ten FiKal Years 
Uruiuditcd 

Tcac:hc:/l'ueil Ratio 

Elementary Middle School 

1:16 1:12 
!:IS 1:12 
!:IS 1:12 
1:13 1:11 
1:13 I :13 
1:12 1:10 
1:12 1:10 
1:11 I 09 
1-10 I 09 
1:11 I O'l 

C ,\wrngc daily eurolhnenl and av~rayt daily n1tcnda11cc arc ob1nincd from the School l!cgistcr Summa!)' (SRS). 

Source: Disuict record$. 

J.17 

A,-c:age Daily Menge Daily %Change in S1Udcn1 
Enrollment Allendancc A,-c:age Daily Ancndance 

High School lt\DEI' (ADA)' Enrollment Percentage 

1:16 4,4S2 4,14S 0.06% 93.10% 
1:16 4,4S6 4,IJS 0,09% 92.80% 
l:IS 4,458 4,151 0.04% 93.11% 
1:13 4,373 •l,078 ·l.90% 93.2s,, 
1:14 4,440 4,131 1.52% 93.04% 
1:13 4,434 4,)23 ·0.14% 92.99% 
1:14 4,300 3,976 .J.02% 92 . .t~-
1:14 4,2"5 3,9N ·0.81% 93 IS~. 
1:12 4,169 3,849 -2.26,~ 92 32~~ 
1:12 3.'186 3.6<JO -4.Jn-~ '>2.S7~~ 
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Neptune Township School District J-18 
School Building lnfonnation 

Last Teo Fiscal Years 
Unaudited 

PioocJ QujJdjng 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 

Eh;meotm 
Early Childhood Center (2004) 

Square Feel 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 44,774 
Capacity (students) 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 
Enrollment 187 240 220 179 186 203 207 171 IS9 200 

Shark River Hills Elementary 
Square Feet S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 S9,327 
Capacity (students) soo 500 soo soo soo soo soo 500 500 soo 
Enrollment 406 434 43S 41S 408 38S 352 316 282 2S8 

Gables Elementary 
Square Feet S3,606 53,606 S3,606 53,606 S3,606 SJ,606 S3,606 53,606 S3,606 S3,606 
Capacity (students) soo 500 soo soo soo soo soo 500 soo soo 
Enrollment 414 380 368 341 320 311 287 300 281 272 

Green Grove Elementary 
Square Feet 66,567 66,567 66,S67 66,567 66,567 66.S67 68,S24 68,524 68,S24 68,S24 
Capacity (students) S2S S2S S25 525 S2S S2S S2S 525 S25 S25 
Enrollment 428 412 406 388 377 369 374 36S 371 342 

Summcrucld Elemental)' (200<,1 
Square Feet 1112511! 102.S18 102.518 102.518 102.518 IU2.518 102.518 I02.518 102.518 102.S18 
Capacity (studrrus) 72~ 725 725 725 ns 72~ 725 725 725 ns 
Enrollment -117 407 4n 4SI 461 460 443 480 492 nc, 

:\hdto"n Cmmnunity Ekment~· aoo81 
Square Feet 18<1.'190 189.990 189,990 189.990 189,<190 18'1.'190 189.990 189.990 189.990 189,990 
Capacity (stud,.,,ts) 750 750 7SO 750 750 750 7SO 7SO 750 750 
Enrollment 457 454 43S 431 468 489 449 461 434 373 

Middle School 
Neptune Middle School 

Square Feet 177,509 177,509 177,509 177,509 177,509 177,509 177,509 177,509 183,109 183,109 
Copacity (stullcnts) 1,200 1,200 1,200 1.200 1,200 1.200 1,200 1.200 1,200 1,200 
Enrollment 84S 840 844 864 888 8S6 830 798 798 738 

HiGIJ School 
Neptune High School 

Square Feet 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 277,049 
Capacity (students) 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 
Enrollment 1,299 1,290 1.269 1,304 1.332 1,361 l,3S8 1,375 1,350 1,327 

lllm 
Administration Building 

Square Feet Sl,S96 SJ,S96 SJ,S96 Sl,S96 SJ,S96 Sl,S96 Sl,S96 Sl,S96 Sl,S96 Sl,S96 
Aquatic Center 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 32,000 
Outbuildings· Team, Concession. Storage 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 

Note: Y Clll' of original coDStruction is shown in parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity arc lhe result of 
building additions. Enrollments arc based on average daily enrollments from the School Register Summazy Repon. 
One half oflhc Administration Building is leased cffccuvc 2008. 
The Neptune Aquatic Center, housed in Ncptunc High School, opened Fcbnwy 27, 20 JO. 
BegiMing in 2018 Prcscbool classes from lhe Midtown school were moved 10 lhc Early Childhood Center. 

Source: District reamls. 
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School Facilities School# 
Neptune High School 50 
NeptWIC Middle School ss 
Early Childhood Center S9 
Gables Elcmenlary 61 
Green Grove Elementary 63 
Midtown Community ElemenlaI)' 80 
Shark River I lills Elementary 90 
Summerfield Elemelllary 100 
Grand Total 

lligh School c~pcnditures include those of the Annex / BOE. 

Source: District records. 

2009 2010 
s 1,299,736 s 1,206,854 

822,493 887,590 
113,132 189,442 
561,563 643,138 
265,970 344,574 
774,216 500,976 
316,603 382,088 
673 446 332.318 

s 4.827,159 s 4.48(,.980 

NcptWlc To\\nship School District 
General FWld 

Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

2011 2012 2013 
s 1,328,093 s 1,463,016 s 890,022 

759,468 976,490 544,505 
304,IIS 294,987 IS2,44S 
878,395 607,809 253,889 
509,840 729,051 306,300 
511,062 595,115 281,629 
986,049 443,182 260,435 
404.S6S 764 008 510,048 

s 5,681.587 s 5,874.318 s 3,199.273 

J-19 

2014 201S 2016 2017 2018 
s 975,947 s 879,993 s 785,988 s 669,405 s 874,0SS 

921,212 667,378 579,957 341,607 S27,S49 
216,736 213,407 290,996 274,699 196,649 
229,804 261,566 269,336 200,0SS 199,671 
351,759 281,580 233,455 312,009 289,294 
225,506 317,895 226,405 316,740 319,735 
205,662 170,845 224,686 258,452 208,652 
371 827 309.890 328,080 411 66S 314 778 

s 3,498.453 s 3,102.554 s 2.938.903 s 2.784.632 s 2.930.383 
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Type of Coverage 

Multi Peril Package Policy 
Diploma Joint Insurance Fund 

Section I - Property: 
Blanket building and contents 
Flood Zone A or V 
Flood Zone - All Other 
Earthquake 
Valuable papers and records 
Extra expense / business income 
EDP equip, data, media, extra expense 
Cameras, musical instruments 
Glass coverage 
Demolition/Iner. Cost of Construction 
Blanket contractors equipment 
Energy systems-boiler and machinery 

Section II - General Liability: 
Bodily injury and property damage 
Sexual misconduct 

Neptune Township School District 
Insurance Schedule 

Year ended June 30, 2018 
Unaudited 

Coverage 

$ 500,000,000 
25,000,000 
75,000,000 
50,000,000 
10,000,000 
50,000,000 

500,000 
Inc in property 
Inc in property 

25,000,000 
Inc in property 

I 00,000,000 

11,000,000 
17,000,000 

Section Ill - School Board Legal Liability Policy: 
Aggregate limit ofliability 

Section IV - Crime: 
Blanket employee dishonesty 
Depositors forgery 
Computer Fraud 
Money and securities 

Workers Compensation: 
Section A 
Section B 

5,000,000 

500,000 
500,000 
500,000 
25,000 

Statutory 
2,000,000 

J-20 
p.l 

Deductible 

$ 2,500 
Excess ofNFIP 

1,000 
5% 

10,000 

1,000 
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TyPe of Coverage 

Automobile: 
Bodily injury and property 
Personal injury protection 
Uninsured/underinsured 

Bodily Injury per Occurance 
Bodily Injury per Accident 
Property Damage per Accident 

Comprehensive and collision 

Environmental Laibility: 
Policy aggregate limit of liability-primary 

Umbrella Excess Liability: 
Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability - Primary 

Student Accident: 
Medical per injury 

Fidelity Bonds: 
Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
Asst. Bus. Admin. / Asst. Bd. Secretary 
Accountant I 

Source: District records. 

Neptune Township School District 
Insurance Schedule 

Year ended June 30, 2018 
Unaudited 

Coverage 

$ I 1,000,000 
Statutory 

15,000 
30,000 
5,000 

ACV 

1,000,000 

50,000,000 

5,000,000 

300,000 
300,000 
300,000 

J-20 
p.2 

(Continued) 

Deductible 

$ 1,000 

10,000 
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Single Audit Section 



WISS 
A Partner to Grow With 

K-1 

Report on In ternal Control Over f:'inancial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 

Neptune Township School District 
Neptune, New Jersey 
County of Monmouth 

Independent Audi tors' Report 

We have aud ited, in accordance with the aud iting standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State 
of New Jersey; and the standards app licable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genera l of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Neptune Township School District, in the County of Monmouth, New Jersey (the 
"District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018. and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District' s bas ic fi nancial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated February 6, 20 19. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District' s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances fo r the purpose of express ing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an op inion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the dc!>ign or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of perfo rming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely bas is. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibil ity that a material misstatement of the District's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination or deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identil'y all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these I imitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in interna l control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

1-l P1:1n Plaza. Su t:c 1010 
·~"'.'. Y rk. NY 10122 

212 594 8155 

354 E1senl1ower Pilrkw;iy, Su,te 1850 
Livingston. NJ 07039 

973 994 9400 

5 Bartles COf nt:".! Road 
Flemingtor. ~1--08822 

908. 782. 7300 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards and the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School 
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

February 6, 2019 
Livingston, New Jersey 

Scott A. Clelland 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 1049 

WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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WISS K-2 
A Partner to Grow With 

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal and State Program and 
Report on In terna l Control Over Compliance Required by the 

Uniform Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 

Neptune Township School District 
Neptune, New Jersey 
County of Monmouth 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Report on Complia nce fo r Each Major Federal a nd State Program 

We have audited the Neptune Township School District' s, in the County of Monmouth, New Jersey (the 
"District") compliance with the types of compliance req uirements described in the 0MB Compliance 
Supplement and the New Jersey State A id!Cirn11t Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the District's major t"ederal and state programs fo r the year ended June 30, 20 18. 
The District's major federal and state programs arc identified in the summary of auditors' resu lts section of 
the accompanying schedule of find ings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regu lations and the terms and 
conditions of its federa l and state awards app licable to its federal and state programs. 

Auditors' Respousibility 

Our responsibi lity is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal and state 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits conta ined in Government AudiJing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of 
School Finance, Department of Education , State of New Jersey; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform .-ldmi11is1ra1ive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awardv (Uni form Gu iclance); and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit 
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, ,\'rare Crams a,,d State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform 
Guidance and New Jersey OM B Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the aud it to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, ev idence about the District's compl iance with those requirements and 
perform ing such other procedures as we cons idered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our aud it provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance fo r major each federal 
and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compl iance. 

14 PC'll Pli11c1. Suite 1010 
'Je:1, ~ NY 10122 

2i2 C),: 8155 

354 E1sPnl1ower Parkwc1y, Suite 1850 
Llv1nqston NJ 07039 

973.994.9400 

5 Bartles corn~ Road 
Flerninqior N:l 'J882 2 

908.782.7300 



Opinion on Eaclt Major Fetlert1/ mu/ State Program 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal or state program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or 
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

February 6, 2019 
Livingston, New Jersey 

~a. 
Scott A. Clelland 

Licensed Public School Accountant 
No. 1049 

WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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1. General 

Neptune Township School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

K-5 
p.1 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance present the 
activity of all federal awards and state financial assistance of the Neptune Township School District 
(District). The District is defined in Note I to the District's basic financial statements. All federal awards 
and state financial assistance received directly from fed~ral and state agencies, as well as federal awards and 
state financial assistance passed through other government agencies are included on the schedules of 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented 
on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the enterprise fund, which 
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and those recorded in the special revenue fund, which are 
presented using the grant accounting budgetary basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are 
described in Note l to the District's basic financial statements. The infonnation in these schedules are 
presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awardv and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit 
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grams. Stale Grants and State Aid Therefore, some amounts presented in 
these schedules may differ from amounts presented. or used in the preparation of, the basic financial 
statements. 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the District's basic 
financial statements. The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a 
GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements and schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and 
special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted 
by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the fiscal year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not 
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. The general fund is presented in 
the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of the revenue 
recognition of the two last state aid payments in the current year, which is mandated pursuant to NJSA 
l SA:22-44.2. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and ~tate Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

K-5 
p.2 

( continued) 

For GAAP purposes those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral 
and recording of the last state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in 
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as 
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special 
revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with NJSA 
l SA:22-44.2. 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $68,335 for the general fund 
and $18,974 for the special revenue fund. See Note to Required Supplementary Information for a 
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special 
revenue funds. Federal and State award revenues are reported in the District's basic financial statements on 
a GAAP basis as follows: 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $ 153,483 $ 42,256,855 $42,410,338 
Special Revenue Fund 2,411,182 5,426,736 7,837,918 
Food Service Enterprise Fund 1,512,565 22,969 1,535,534 

Total award revenues $4,077,230 $ 47,706,560 $ 51,783,790 

4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and 
state financial reports. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

5. School-wide Program Funds 

K-5 
p.3 

( continued) 

School-wide programs are not separate Federal programs as defined in the Uniform Guidance amounts used 
in school-wide programs are included in the total expenditures of the program contributing the funds in the 
schedule of expenditure of Federal Awards. The following funds by program are included in school-wide 
programs in the District. 

6. Other 

IDEA Part B 
Title I 
Title IIA 
Total 

$ 951,736 
673,503 
110.348 

$1,735,587 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Donation Program represent current year value received 
and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions represent the amount 
reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 

The post retirement pension, disability insurance and medical benefits received on-behalf of the District for 
the year ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $7,221,111. Since on-behalf post retirement pension, disability 
insurance and medical benefits are paid by the State directly, these expenditures are not subject to a single 
audit in accordance with New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, however, they are required to be reported on the 
Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, as directed by the funding agency. 

7. lndircct Costs 

The District did not use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with GAAP: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? ' 

Noncompliance material to the basic financial 
statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major 
federal programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.5 l 6(a)? 

Identification of federal major programs: 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Unmodified 

X 

X 

X 

X 

K-6 
p. 1 

No 

None Reported 

No 

No 

X None Reported 

Unmodified 

X No 

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Special Education Cluster: 

84.027 
84.173 

H027A170100 
H173Al70114 

I.D.E.A. Part B, Basic Regular 
I.D.E.A. Preschool 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X 

$750 000 

Yes No 
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p. 2 

Neptune Township School District 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 
 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

 
Part I – Summary of Auditor’s Results (continued) 
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State Awards  
 
Internal control over major state programs:     
     

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes X No 

 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

  
Yes 

 
X 

 
None reported 

 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major 
state programs: 

 
 

Unmodified 

 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with NJOMB Circular 15-08 as applicable? 

 
 

 
 

Yes 

 
 

X 

 
 

No 

 
Identification of major state programs: 

    

     

  

       GMIS/Program Number Name of  State Program or Cluster 

 General State Aid Cluster: 

495-034-5120-078 

495-034-5120-089 

495-034-5120-084 

495-034-5120-085 

495-034-5120-097 

495-034-5120-098 

495-034-5120-101 

Equalization Aid 

Special Education Categorical Aid 

Security Aid 

Adjustment Aid 

Per Pupil Growth Aid 

PARCC Readiness Aid 

Professional Learning Community Aid 
 
 

    

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

 
$1,211,944 

     
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes  No 

     



Neptune Township School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part II-Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

K-7 
p. 1 

No financial statement findings noted that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part III - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings 
and Questioned Costs 

K-7 
p.2 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of 
noncompliance, including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, 
as required by 2 CFR 200 Section 516(a) and New Jersey Treasury Circular 0MB 15-08, 
respectively. 

Federal Award Programs 

No compliance or internal control findings noted that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200 Section 5 I 6(a). 

State Award Programs 

No compliance or internal control findings noted that are required to be reported in 
accordance with New Jersey Treasury Circular 0MB 15-08. 
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Neptune Township School District 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Not applicable as there were no prior year findings. 

K-8 
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